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Profiles of Directors and Senior Executives

EERSERTHRAEEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Joseph LAU, Luen-hung, aged 57, joined the Company in 1989.
Mr. Lau is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a non-
executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (“Lifestyle”),
a company whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He holds a Bachelor Degree of Science
from the University of Windsor, Canada. Mr. Lau has over 33 years of
experience in corporate finance, manufacturing and property investment
and development. He is the father of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai and the elder
brother of both Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai and Mr. Thomas Lau, Luen-hung (a

substantial shareholder of the Company).

Mr. Lau's discloseable interest in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance is set out in Directors’ Report under the sections of “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Securities of the Company and
Associated Corporations” and “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the

Securities of the Company” of this annual report.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU, Ming-wai, aged 28, joined the Company as an Executive
Director in 2006 and was redesignated as a Non-executive Director on
31st October, 2008. He was the chairman of the Company’s subsidiary,
G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (“G-Prop”), a company whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange, for the period from 1st March, 2007 to 31st
May, 2007. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws from King's College
London, a Master Degree of Laws from The London School of Economics
and Political Science, and a Doctor Degree of Philosophy in Laws from
King's College London, University of London. He previously worked at The
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and Longview Partners LP, both in London. Mr.
Lau is a registered attorney in the State of New York and a CFA (Chartered
Financial Analyst) charterholder. He is the son of Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-
hung and the nephew of both Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai and Mr. Thomas Lau,

Luen-hung.

Mr. Lau's discloseable interest in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance is set out in Directors’ Report under the sections of “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Securities of the Company and
Associated Corporations” and “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the

Securities of the Company” of this annual report.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (cont'd)

Ms. Amy LAU, Yuk-wai, aged 56, joined the Company in 2004. Ms.
Lau is also a non-executive director of Lifestyle. She is registered with
the Royal College of Dental Surgeons of Ontario, Canada and a practising
dentist in Ontario. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Science and a
Doctor Degree of Dental Surgery from the University of Toronto, Canada.
She is the younger sister of Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung, the elder sister of

Mr. Thomas Lau, Luen-hung and the aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN, Kwok-wai, aged 50, joined the Company in 2004. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration
from the Monash University, Australia. He is also a member of the Hong
Kong Securities Institute and an associate member of CPA Australia. He
has over 29 years of experience in finance and accounting industry. Mr.
Chan is currently a director of High Progress Consultants Limited. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Junefield Department
Store Group Limited, China Investments Holdings Limited, Tern Properties
Company Limited, National Electronics Holdings Limited and Far East
Consortium International Limited, the shares of all of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of
Anex International Holdings Limited (now known as Bright Prosperous
Holdings Limited) for the period from 12th September, 2005 to 9th
February, 2006, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Phillis LOH, Lai-ping, aged 44, joined the Company in 2006. She
is also a member of the audit committee and remuneration committee
of the Company. Ms. Loh holds a degree of Bachelor of Laws and a
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws both from The University of Hong Kong.
Ms. Loh was a practising solicitor from 1990 to 1997, and has since
become a practising barrister-at-law after she was called to the Hong Kong
Bar in 1998. She was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong (1990) and
the United Kingdom (1991), and is also a barrister and solicitor in the

Supreme Court of the Australian Capital Territory (since 1991).
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Executives

EERSERTHRAEEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(cont'd)

Mr. MA, Tsz-chun, aged 43, joined the Company in 2008. He is also
a member of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Ma is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and has
over 21 years of experience in auditing, finance and accounting industry.
He is currently the managing director of ACE (CPA) Limited and a
director of Sino-Bridge China Consulting Limited. Mr. Ma holds a Master
of Science Degree in E-Commerce (Business Programme) and a Master
Degree in Business Administration both from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Ma is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, an associate member of
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries in Hong
Kong and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Hong
Kong respectively. He was an independent non-executive director of Asia
Aluminum Holdings Limited for the period from 14th June, 2001 to 15th
March, 2009, a company whose shares were previously listed on the
Stock Exchange and were subsequently delisted from the Stock Exchange
since 24th May, 2006.

SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Mr. Matthew CHEONG, Veng-va, aged 51, joined the Group (the
Company together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in 1994 and is the
General Manager — Operations of the Group. He is also an executive
director and the chairman of Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited
(“Chi Cheung"), a subsidiary of the Company whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheong is a chartered engineer. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Science from the University of Toronto, Canada, a
Master Degree of Science in Automation Systems and Management and
a Doctorate Degree of Engineering both from the City University of Hong
Kong. He is also a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
The Royal Institute of Measurement and Control and The British Computer
Society. Mr. Cheong is responsible for the general operations of the Group
including information technology, corporate communications, human
resources and administration. He has over 23 years of experience in the

management and operations.
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SENIOR EXECUTIVES (cont'd)

Ms. CHEUNG, Mun-yi, aged 41, joined the Group in 2007 and is the
Head of Legal Department. Ms. Cheung is a practising solicitor. She holds
a Bachelor Degree of Laws and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws both
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms. Cheung has been working in
both private sector as a solicitor and public sector as an in-house legal
counsel. Ms. Cheung is responsible for overseeing the legal aspects of the
Group's various businesses, including project development, commercial
investments, conveyancing and tenancy. She has over 17 years of legal

experience.

Mr. Ivan IP, Ka-fai, aged 45, joined the Group in 1999 and is the Senior
Manager of China Business Department. Mr. Ip holds a Master Degree
of Business Administration from The University of Hull, United Kingdom.
He is responsible for the management and development of projects in
Eastern and Southern China. He has over 15 years of experience in the

property field of the Mainland China.

Mr. Alec KONG, Chi-ming, aged 45, joined the Group in 1994 and
is the Head of China Business Department. He is also an executive
director and deputy chairman of G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (“G-Prop”),
a subsidiary of the Company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Kong holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master Degree of Arts
in Quantitative Analysis for Business and a Master Degree of Business
Administration both from the City University of Hong Kong. He is
responsible for the overall management and development of projects in
the Mainland China. He has over 18 years of experience in the property
field of the Mainland China.

Ms. Hazel LAI, Ming-yan, aged 40, joined the Group in 2000 and is
the Senior Manager — Contracts of Project Development Department. Ms.
Lai is a registered professional surveyor. She holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Building from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master
Degree of Science in Construction and Real Estate from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors. Ms. Lai is responsible for the quantity surveying affairs. She

has over 18 years of relevant experience.
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EERSERTHRAEEN

SENIOR EXECUTIVES (cont'd)

Mr. LAM, Kwong-wai, aged 53, joined the Group in 1989 and is the
Group Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Company, Chi
Cheung and G-Prop. Mr. Lam is a qualified accountant and holds a Master
Degree of Business Administration from the University of Warwick, United
Kingdom. He has over 31 years of experience in auditing, finance and

accounting.

Mr. Kenneth NG, Yik-hei, aged 41, joined the Group in 2004 and is
the Senior Manager of Project Development Department. Mr. Ng is a
chartered building surveyor, a registered professional surveyor and an
authorised person under the List of Surveyors of the Building Authority.
He holds a Bachelor Degree of Science in Building Surveying from
the University of Greenwich, United Kingdom and a Master Degree of
Practising Accounting from the Monash University, Australia. He is also a
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and The Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors. He has been appointed by The Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region as a member of the Appeal
Tribunal Panel (Buildings) from 1st February, 2007 to 30th November,
2009. Mr. Ng is responsible for the project development affairs. He has

over 19 years of relevant experience.

Ms. Teresa POON, Mun-chie, aged 38, joined the Group in 2002 and
is the Senior Manager of Project Development Department. She is also an
executive director and the chief executive officer of Chi Cheung. Ms. Poon
is a registered architect in Hong Kong and an authorised person under the
List of Architects of the Building Authority. She holds a Bachelor Degree
of Arts in Architectural Studies and a Master Degree of Architecture
both from The University of Hong Kong. She is also a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Architects. Ms. Poon is responsible for the
project development affairs. She has over 14 years of experience in the

management and development of property projects.

Most of the above senior executives, namely Mr. Matthew Cheong, Veng-
va, Mr. lvan Ip, Ka-fai, Mr. Alec Kong, Chi-ming, Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai, Mr.
Kenneth Ng, Yik-hei and Ms. Teresa Poon, Mun-chie also hold position as

a director in one or more of the subsidiaries of the Company.
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I am pleased to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group") for the year ended 31st December, 2008 (the "Year") to

the shareholders of the Company.

RESULTS

Loss attributable to equity holders of the parent for the Year (from
continuing and discontinued operations) was HK$1,494.4 million as
compared to profit of HK$8,195.8 million for the same period last
year. The loss for the Year was mainly due to the fair value losses on
investment properties. Loss per share was HK$0.67 (year ended 31st
December, 2007: earning of HK$3.60).

If the net losses on the major non-cash items of HK$5,943.2 million
(2007: gains of HK$5,463.7 million) are excluded, the Group will have
a core profit attributable to equity holders of the parent for the Year of
HK$4,448.8 million (2007: HK$2,732.1 million) and a core earnings per
share of HK$2.00 (2007: HK$1.20), an increase of 62.8% and 66.7%

over 2007 respectively.

The major non-cash items are fair value losses on investment properties
together with their respective deferred tax credit of HK$6,235.7 million
(2007: gains of HK$5,463.7 million) and credit effect of deferred tax on
reduction in tax rate in respect of the fair value changes on investment

properties of HK$292.5 million.

DIVIDENDS AND SHARE REPURCHASE

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) has recommended
the payment of final dividend of HK1
“Final Dividend”) (2007: HK22.5 cents). During the Year, the Group

cent per share for the Year (the

has realised all its listed securities investments. Out of the core profit
HK$4,448.8 million (2007: HK$2,732.1 million), a profit of HK$3,690.5
million (2007: HK$1,200.0 million) was generated by the listed securities
investment activities. With such results, the Board has recommended the
payment of a special dividend of HK99 cents per share for the Year (the
“Special Dividend") (2007: nil), amounting to HK$2,033.8 million (2007:

nil), which are summarised on next page.
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EFRBES

DIVIDENDS AND SHARE REPURCHASE (cont'd)

Profit on listed securities investments (HK$m)
Special Dividend (HK$m)

On a share basis

Profit on listed securities investments (HK cents)

Special Dividend (HK cents)

Special Dividend as a percentage of profit on
listed securities investments

IHEHFREEN (BEET)

Rk e (B8ET)

PE=3 3y

EmESRERN GBI

AR (B

A B N Bt BB (48 )

For the year ended
31st December

BE+-A=+t—-BHLEFE

FRIBRER EMERRERN

ALt

In addition to the Special Dividend, during the Year, the Company has

allocated an aggregate cash amount of HK$4,648.4 million (2007:
HK$825.5 million) (or HK216.2 cents per share (2007: HK36.0 cents))
which would be paid to shareholders. Out of such sum, an amount of
HK$306.2 million (2007: HK$308.4 million) (or HK13.5 cents per share
(2007: HK13.5 cents)) has been applied for the payment of interim
dividend; an amount of HK$20.5 million (2007: HK$517.1 million) (or
HK1 cent per share (2007: HK22.5 cents)) would be applied for the
payment of Final Dividend; and an amount of HK$2,287.9 million (2007:
nil) (or HK102.7 cents) has been utilised for the repurchase of the

Company's shares.

The aggregate of interim dividend, Final Dividend, Special Dividend and

share repurchase are summarised as follows:—

Core profit (HK$m)

Share repurchase (HK$m)
Interim Dividend (HK$m)
Final Dividend (HK$m)
Special Dividend (HK$m)

On a share basis

Core profit (HK cents)

Share repurchase (HK cents)
Interim Dividend (HK cents)
Final Dividend (HK cents)
Special Dividend (HK cents)

Share repurchase, Interim, Final and Special
Dividend (HK cents)
As a percentage of core profit

1z A
B tn @ B

otoa # Bl
Bty =8 GEALD
AR S (B AL)
RERLE OBAL)
Bl B S GEALD

2008 2007
3,690.5 1,200.0
2,033.8 -

165.6 52.7

99.0 -

59.8% -
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2008 2007
4,448.8 2,752.1
2,287.9 -
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DIVIDENDS AND SHARE REPURCHASE (cont'd)

Factors Considered

In its decision of recommending the Final Dividend and Special Dividend,

the Board has taken into consideration the following factors:—

M

2

3)

Q)

5)

(6)

)

The profit on listed securities investments was arose from disposal
of the entire portfolio of listed securities investment during the Year.
After such disposal, there is no intention to invest in listed securities

in a similar level as in 2008 in the near future.

Cash and bank balances of the Group amounted to HK$10,419
million as at 31st December, 2008. A significant portion of such
balance was derived from the disposal of the entire portfolio of

listed securities investment during the Year referred to above.

Following the financial tsunami since late 2008, the economic
condition and operating environment have deteriorated. Rental for
2009 is expected to decrease and properties are likely to be sold at

a low price.

The current difficult economic condition and operating environment
would have an adverse impact on the Group's business activities

and thus on its ability to pay dividend.

The prevailing Hong Kong dollar interest spread for placing deposit
and bank borrowing has widen by 200 to 250 basis point or 2% to
2.5% per annum as compared with the market spread in the first
half 2008, which implies a higher cost of negative carry in holding
cash and bank balances by the Group.

The Group has outstanding bank borrowings of HK$11,669 million
and contingent liabilities in respect of bank borrowings by its
associated companies of HK$1,080 million as at 31st December,
2008. Following the financial tsunami since late 2008, a number of
foreign banks have withdrew their participation in Hong Kong loan
lending market while some local banks have reduced the size of
their loan books. The loan syndication market in Hong Kong is weak.
In general, refinancing bank borrowings would be a challenge to

many corporations in 2009.

If the Final Dividend and Special Dividend are approved by the
shareholders and payment made, the cash and bank balances of
the Group will be reduced by such amount. In the event that the
Group encounters difficulties refinancing its bank borrowings in the
years ahead, the Company could at that time raise fund through
equity issue including seeking the support from its shareholders by

way of rights issue.
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DIVIDENDS AND SHARE REPURCHASE (cont'd)

Approval of Dividend by Shareholders and Expected Timeframe

Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, the dividend warrants will be posted on or
about 8th June, 2009 to shareholders whose names appear on the

register of members of the Company on 27th May, 20009.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from 22nd May, 2009 to 27th
May, 2009, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the recommended
Final Dividend and Special Dividend and for the purpose of ascertaining
the members’ entitlement to the attendance of the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, all share transfers documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's Branch Registrar and Transfer Office in Hong Kong, namely
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 21st May, 2009.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong Property Investment

Rentals from investment properties continued to be one of the major
sources of our income. The overall occupancy rate of the Group's retail
portfolio was 89.49% during the Year excluding the renovation area of
Windsor House. The occupancy rate achieved 96.11% if non-core and
disposed properties are excluded. Such sustainable high occupancy rate
is attributable to the prime locations of the majority of the Group's retail

properties.

The Group's gross rental growth was 25.37% with rental income of
HK$880.9 million for the Year as compared with last year, and the
respective increases in retail and non-retail portion have been 22.17%
and 32.10%. The increase in gross rental income is mainly attributable
to the high reversionary rental rate of the office properties and the
completion of renovation work of Silvercord and the first phase of Windsor
House in the third quarter of 2007.

During the Year, the average occupancy rates of the shops of Excelsior
Plaza — Laforet and Causeway Place were approximately 98.95% and

95.04% respectively.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (cont'd)

Hong Kong Property Investment (cont’d)

The first phase renovation of Windsor House was completed in the third
quarter of 2007 and the second phase renovation commenced in March
2008. The scope of works include re-layout of basement, ground and first
floor, sub-dividing the retail space previously occupied by supermarket,
department store and an anchor tenant to provide greater varieties of
prime retail shops and specialty restaurants. Portions of the ground
floor and first floor have been re-opened in December 2008 and it is
anticipated that the renovation work of second phase will be completed
by early 2010. The revamped Windsor House will have improved and

diversified trade mix.

The renovation work of Silvercord which involves the conversion of the
bubble lifts and cinema to shops was completed in the third quarter
of 2007. The overall rental income of Silvercord was raised 67.88% for
the Year as compared with last year due to the increase in more quality

brands, and its average occupancy rate was 96.15% during the Year.

The occupancy rate for the Group's office properties maintained at
a satisfactory level throughout the Year. During the Year, the average
occupancy rates of Windsor House, MassMutual Tower and Harcourt
House were approximately 91.70%, 97.04% and 84.13% respectively,
bringing the approximate occupancy rate of the overall office portfolio to
91.67%.

The basement construction work of the redevelopment project of
Tung Ying Building in Tsim Sha Tsui was completed in October 2008.
The superstructure work is in progress. MTR Corporation Limited
commissioned to construct a pedestrian subway linking the existing
Tsim Sha Tsui MTR Station to, amongst other exits, the future Tung Ying
Building under redevelopment. Our redevelopment will benefit from this
pedestrian subway and this direct path to the MTR Station will provide
a highly accessible link for the shoppers to our redevelopment. Tung
Ying Building is to be redeveloped into an integrated shopping and
entertainment complex and is expected to be a landmark shopping arcade

in Tsim Sha Tsui upon completion scheduled in 2010.

Sun Fair Mansions, 12 Shiu Fai Terrace, a residential site in Mid-Levels
East, which is a traditional prestigious location for luxury residential project
in Hong Kong. A luxury residential tower which provides a total residential
gross floor area of around 39,700 square feet will be redeveloped.

Demolition work is in progress.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (cont'd)

Hong Kong Property Development

In general, the Group’s development projects have been progressing

satisfactorily and the sales have been achieving pleasing results.

The superstructure work of York Place, i.e. the former Tung Sang Building,
Wanchai, is in progress. York Place is a brand new residential/retail
composite building having 94 units with flat size ranging from gross floor
area of approximate 576 square feet to 2,037 square feet. The sale is
in progress and 35 units were presold up to 31st December, 2008. The

occupation permits are expected to be obtained in March 2009.

The Zenith (87.5% interest) is a two-phase redevelopment project at Tai
Yuen Street, Wanchai undertaken with the Urban Renewal Authority. 651
units of phase | were sold up to 31st December, 2008, representing
99.859% of total units. For phase Il redevelopment, the master layout plan
for the core elements preservation of the existing Wanchai Market has
been approved on 4th July, 2008 by the Town Planning Board. Phase Il
will be a residential/commercial complex development with a gross floor
area of approximately 159,700 square feet. Redevelopment work is in

progress. Completion of phase Il is re-scheduled to end 2013.

MOD 595 is a joint venture project with the Urban Renewal Authority
located at Reclamation Street, Mongkok. It provides a single residential
tower block comprises 85 units with flat size ranging from gross floor area
of approximate 483 square feet to 1,188 square feet. The project was
launched in April 2008. A total of 62 units, representing 72.94%, were
sold up to 31st December, 2008.

i-home is another joint venture project with the Urban Renewal Authority
located at Larch Street/Bedford Road in Tai Kok Tsui. It provides a single
residential tower block comprises 182 units with flat size ranging from
gross floor area of approximate 462 square feet to 1,182 square feet. The
whole project is re-scheduled to be completed in early 2009. The pre-sale
consent has been obtained in February 2009 and the launching of this

project is currently re-scheduled to the first quarter of 2009.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (cont'd)

Hong Kong Property Development (cont’d)

The Group has two joint venture development projects in West Kowloon
Reclamation Area. One is located at Hoi Ting Road and junction of Hoi
Wang Road and Hoi Ting Road (25% interest). Its foundation work was
completed and superstructure work is in progress. Residential and retail
properties with a total gross floor area of around 1,095,980 square feet
will be developed and the whole project is expected to be completed in
end 2010.

The other one is located at the junction of Hoi Wang Road, Yan Cheung
Road and Yau Cheung Road (15% interest). Its foundation work was
completed and excavation work is in progress. Residential and retail
properties with a total gross floor area of approximately 650,600 square
feet will be developed. Completion of the whole project is re-scheduled
to 2011.

No. 55 Conduit Road (70% interest), a residential site in Mid-Levels with
site area about 36,000 square feet which can provide a total residential
gross floor area of around 87,800 square feet. This site will be developed
into a luxury residential project. Site formation work was completed
and the foundation work is scheduled to be commenced in the second
quarter of 2009.

Macau Property Development

The Group is planned to develop the site at Avenida Wai Long, Taipa,
Macau (70.01% interest) into a high-end residential project with total
gross floor area of approximately 5,786,242 square feet (excluding
basement car park). It will comprise one serviced apartment tower and
25 residential tower blocks and will be developed in phases. Proposals
for site formation and basement excavation works of phase | have been
submitted for government's approval and the first phase of the site

formation works is scheduled to be commenced in 2009.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (cont'd)

Mainland China Property Investment

Evergo Tower, located at Central Huaihai Road in Shanghai, is a 21-storey
office and shopping complex with a 2-storey basement and has a gross
floor area of around 263,708 square feet. The average occupancy rates of
the office and retail spaces were 90.60% and 73.02% respectively for the

Year.

Hilton Beijing (50% interest) maintained an average occupancy rate of
70.03% and achieved a gross operating profit of HK$164 million for
the Year. The expansion of Hilton Beijing by redeveloping the adjacent
auditorium into an executive tower was completed in June 2008. The

tower has operated since 1st July, 2008.

Oriental Place (50% interest), a

Beijing, was 96.56% let out as of December 2008.

10-storey office building next to Hilton

The average occupancy rate of the 79 retail outlets with a total area of
approximately 29,000 square feet in Lowu Commercial Plaza, Shenzhen
was 91.05% for the Year.

Mainland China Property Development

Metropolis Height and Splendid City are residential projects at Dongda
Street of Jinjiang District and Yingbin Road of Jinniu District in Chengdu,
with respective site area of approximately 194,411 square feet and
795,625 square feet and corresponding gross floor area of approximately
1.65 million square feet and 3.74 million square feet. Metropolis Height is
in site formation process, project completion is re-scheduled to mid 2012.
Phase | of Splendid City is in superstructure construction process and is

expected to be completed in mid 2010.

Chinese Estates Plaza, a commercial and residential project at South
Taisheng Road of Qingyang District in Chengdu has a site area of about
404,267 square feet with a development scale of 3.2 million square feet.
The project is in site formation process and is expected to be completed
in mid 2012.

The residential project at Huaxinjie Street of Jiangbei District in Chongqing
(25% interest), with a site area of 2,207,546 square feet and a gross floor

area of approximately 11.08 million square feet, is at design stage.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (cont'd)

Mainland China Property Development (cont’d)

As the projects in Chengdu and Chongging are in preliminary stage,
development schedules have not been affected and no estimated loss
has been incurred to the Group as a result of the Sichuan earthquake in
May 2008.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS

The Group defines corporate social responsibility as a way of conducting
business that creates social, environmental and economic benefits for the

community.

During the Year, the Group continued to significantly support meaningful
causes in the community and encouraged its employees to extend their
help and support to the underprivileged and needy. Following the Sichuan
earthquake in May 2008, the Group has promptly provided funds,

materials and personnel in support of the disaster relief work.

The Group and its employees together mobilised over HK$6 million for
the earthquake victims. Out of such sum, approximately HK$1.54 million
was raised under a campaign in which for every dollar donated by the
employees, the Group matched with ten additional dollars and such
donation was passed to Sichuan Red Cross through Hong Kong Red
Cross. In addition, the Group donated an extra amount of RMB5 million
to the Chengdu government to assist the relief and rehabilitation works.
Furthermore, the Group donated more than 100 temporary houses to
the earthquake-stricken areas which were used as temporary school and

dormitory.

On the other hand, the Group has also donated to various charitable
organisations such as the "ORBIS Pin Campaign 2008" sponsorship to
help bring light to the blind worldwide and “Medecins Sans Frontieres
Hong Kong".

The Company has registered as corporate member of the Hong Kong
community volunteers of “Agency for Volunteer Service” that spares no
effort in lending a helping hand to those in need. During the Year, it
participated in regular and ad hoc community projects, such as visits to

elderly homes and rehabilitation centers.

The Company was awarded again as “Caring Company” in 2008/09
by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of our good
corporate citizenship. The Group will continue to actively participate and
initiate an extensive range of community programmes, charitable activities

and voluntary services.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is continuously committed to maintaining good
communication with shareholders, investors and analysts in order to
ensure their thorough understanding of the Group's strategies and
business development, thereby enhancing transparency and investor

relations.

The Company has used various channels to disseminate timely
information. They include formal announcements; press releases;
press conferences and analysts presentation meetings after results
announcements; regular meetings and conference calls with institutional
investors, fund managers and analysts; local and overseas roadshows;

company and site visits; and extensive use of the Company website.

During the Year, the management has participated in a total number of
24 company visits and conference calls as well as the following major
investor relations activities, in which the management has met totally

around 236 shareholders, investors and analysts.

Date Events
January « Property conference
February * Property Access Day
March «  Press conference and analysts presentation
meeting for 2007 annual results announcement
+ Roadshows in Hong Kong, Singapore, U.S.A. and
Europe
May +  Property conference
July * Property Access Day
August «  Press conference and analysts presentation
meeting for 2008 interim results announcement
+ Roadshow in Hong Kong
September « Property conference
December » Property Access Day

The Company is one of the constituent stocks of Hang Seng Hong Kong
MidCap Index and Properties and Construction Industry Index in the Hang

Seng Composite Index Series.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Transaction with Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited (“Chi
Cheung”)

On 17th January, 2008, the Group entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement with Chi Cheung in relation to the acquisition of
share interests in and loans to certain subsidiaries of Chi Cheung, subject
to the fulfilment of certain conditions precedent (the “Transaction”). All
conditions precedent had been fulfilled on 30th September, 2008 and

the Transaction was formally completed on the same day.

Shareholding in G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (“G-Prop”)

In February 2008, Mass Rise Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, had
acquired 740,518,325 shares of G-Prop, representing 36.51% of shares
of G-Prop then in issue, at a consideration of approximately HK$120.8
million. Accordingly, the Group’s shareholding in G-Prop had been
increased from 13.69% to 50.20% and thus G-Prop became a subsidiary
of the Company.

PROSPECTS

The global economic downturn has affected most industries in Hong
Kong. It is however hopeful that the macro-economic policies being
implemented by governments across the globe will soon filter through the
economies, leading to recoveries. In particular, with the experience gained
from the financial turmoil in 1997, Hong Kong has the potential of being
one of the earliest economies to recover. Meanwhile, although anticipated
to grow at a slower pace, the economic growth of Mainland China is still
expected to be the higher one in the World through her effective and

innovative policies.

While this year is set to be a challenging one, the Group remains
optimistic in its core businesses, albeit not without caution. The Group
expects its property development business in Hong Kong will benefit from
low interest rate and particularly prime locations of its main properties for
sale. The Group will continue to strengthen the value of its investment
properties and enhance returns through redevelopment and renovation,
such as Tung Ying Building and Windsor House. The Group considers that
the current market sentiment would offer opportunities for the Group to
further strengthening its land bank for development projects in Hong Kong
and Mainland China.
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PROSPECTS (cont'd)

The Board will continue to review the share price of the Company and its
underlying net asset value regularly and consider repurchase its shares on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, as and when the share price

represents a significant discount to its net asset value.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the shareholders for their

continuing support. | also thank my fellow directors and staff members for

their dedication and hard work.

On behalf of the Board
Joseph Lau, Luen-hung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16th March, 2009
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RESULTS

Continuing Operations

Turnover for the Year amounted to HK$1,264.9 million (year ended 31st
December, 2007: HK$4,478.1 million (restated); previously stated as
HK$8,446.9 million), a 71.8% decrease over the same period last year.
It was mainly due to the decrease in turnover for sales of development

properties.

During the Year, the Group changed its presentation in the sale of held-
for-trading investments to a net basis. The sale proceeds of HK$1,413.1
million (year ended 31st December, 2007: HK$4,151.6 million) had
been offset against the corresponding carrying amount of the disposed
held-for-trading investments of HK$1,525.0 million (year ended 31st
December, 2007: HK$3,963.1 million) and its related transaction cost
of HK$4.2 million (year ended 31st December, 2007: HK$5.7 million).
The gains and losses were then presented in turnover and comparative
figures for 2007 have been amended to conform with the current year's

presentation.

For property leasing, following the completion of renovation on the first
phase of Windsor House and on the cinema portion of Silvercord at the
end of 2007, new letting transactions with very favourable rentals have
been recorded, thus the rental income in retail section jumped by 21.2%.
Rental income from non-retail section had also shown a very satisfactory
increase of 30.6% during the Year. The Year recorded an increase of
24.3% in total rental income to HK$961.6 million as compared with
the corresponding period in 2007 of HK$773.3 million. Together with
the attributable rental income generated from associates of HK$116.0
million (year ended 31st December, 2007: HK$89.3 million), the total
attributable rental income to the Group after minority interest reached to
approximately HK$1,074.6 million (year ended 31st December, 2007:
HK$859.3 million), which achieved a 25.0% increase over the same

period last year.

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$985.1 million, a 49.1%

decrease as compared with the same period last year.
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RESULTS (cont'd)

Continuing Operations (cont’d)

In relation to property development, a profit of HK$186.0 million (year
ended 31st December, 2007: HK$1,201.8 million) was recorded. Sale
of MOD 595 in Mongkok had been successful and had contributed an
attributable profit to the Group of approximately HK$52.3 million. Certain
units at Gemstar Tower in Hunghom (61.96% interest) and at The Zenith
in Wanchai (87.5% interest) sold during the Year had contributed an
attributable profit to the Group of HK$61.3 million (year ended 31st
December, 2007: HK$27.4 million) and HK$9.8 million (year ended
31st December, 2007: HK$757.0 million) respectively. In addition, Miami
Crescent in Sheung Shui (50% interest) and Indihome in Tsuen Wan
(50% interest) continuously had generated profit of HK$26.6 million
(year ended 31st December, 2007: HK$47.4 million) and HK$5.8 million
(year ended 31st December, 2007: HK$26.1 million) respectively, which
were included in share of results of associates. For the sale of Parc
Palais in Homantin (10% interest), a contribution of HK$25.4 million
(year ended 31st December, 2007: HK$33.0 million) was recorded in

investment income.

Investment properties of the Group were revalued as at 31st December,
2008 and recorded a decrease in fair value of HK$7,467.7 million as
a result of the downturn of the property markets in Hong Kong and
Mainland China.

During the Year, the total gains recognised on listed securities investments
were HK$3,690.5 million (year ended 31st December, 2007: HK1,200.0
million), including listed equity securities investments included in
available-for-sale investments, listed held-for-trading investments and

treasury products.
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RESULTS (cont'd)

Continuing Operations (cont’d)

The Group had disposed all listed equity securities investments included
in available-for-sale investments. A gain of HK$3,647.8 million (year
ended 31st December, 2007: HK$888.7 million) was recognised as
net investment income, after deducting transaction costs of HK$8.2
million (year ended 31st December, 2007: HK$2.0 million), which
was transferred from a cumulative gain of HK$3,656.0 million (year
ended 31st December, 2007: HK$890.7 million) in equity as securities
investments reserve. Together with the respective dividend income of
HK$116.2 million (year ended 31st December, 2007: HK$86.1 million),
the total gains of HK$3,764.0 million (year ended 31st December, 2007:
HK$974.8 million) were recognised for the Year. In addition to the profit
recognised in the consolidated income statement, a deduction of fair
value changes on listed equity securities of available-for-sale investments
of HK$4,501.1 million (year ended 31st December, 2007: addition of
HK$4,505.8 million) was recognised to the securities investments reserve

during the Year.

In respect of the performance of other listed held-for-trading investments
and treasury products, the Group had recorded loss of HK$77.0 million
(year ended 31st December, 2007: profit of HK$344.0 million) and
HK$73.5 million (year ended 31st December, 2007: profit of HK$225.3
million) before and after finance costs respectively. The components
in the consolidated income statement for the Year were gross loss of
HK$116.1 million (year ended 31st December, 2007: profit of HK$182.7
million), unrealised gain of HK$26.4 million (year ended 31st December,
2007: HK$26.0 million), realised loss on equity-linked note of HK$16.2
million (year ended 31st December, 2007: realised gains on equity-
linked note and derivative financial instruments of HK$68.3 million)
and dividend and interest income of HK$28.9 million (year ended 31st
December, 2007: HK$67.0 million). Net gain on finance costs of HK$3.5
million (year ended 31st December, 2007: finance cost of HK$118.7
million) included interest expense and exchange gain in the sum of
HK$4.4 million (year ended 31st December, 2007: HK$106.4 million)
and HK$7.9 million (year ended 31st December, 2007: loss of HK$12.3

million) respectively.
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RESULTS (cont'd)

Continuing Operations (cont’d)

Other income recorded an increase of 20.8% to HK$39.0 million when
compared with the same period last year. Administrative expenses
decreased by 2.2% to HK$224.1 million as compared with the same
period last year. Finance costs recorded a decrease of 50.8% to

HK$283.2 million as compared with the same period last year.

Other gains and losses recorded a net gain of HK$10.2 million (year
ended 31st December, 2007: losses of HK$71.7 million), including
gains on purchase of convertible bonds of G-Prop (Holdings) Limited
("G-Prop”) and redemption of the remaining convertible bonds of G-Prop

and impairment loss recognised in respect of advance to an associate.

The share of results of associates for the Year was a loss of HK$8.4
million as compared to the profit of HK$601.4 million for the same
period last year, it was mainly due to the decrease in contribution from
sales of development properties and decrease in fair value of investment

properties.
Discontinued Operation

On 1st February, 2008, G-Prop entered into a conditional agreement
with Fame Ascent Investments Limited to dispose the operation
in production and sale of methanol (the "Methanol Project”) for
approximately HK$183.7 million. The disposal was completed on 25th
July, 2008, following the disposal, the results of Methanol Project was
reported as a discontinued operation and presented separately in the
consolidated income statement in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

Operations”.

LOSS, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS, REPURCHASE
AND CASH PAYMENT

Loss

Loss attributable to equity holders of the parent for the Year (from
continuing and discontinued operations) was HK$1,494.4 million as
compared to profit of HK$8,195.8 million for the same period last
year. The loss for the Year was mainly due to the fair value losses on
investment properties. Loss per share was HK$0.67 (year ended 31st
December, 2007: earnings of HK$3.60).
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LOSS, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS, REPURCHASE
AND CASH PAYMENT (cont'd)

Core Profit

If the net losses on the major non-cash items of HK$5,943.2 million
(2007: gains of HK$5,463.7 million) are excluded, the Group will have
a core profit attributable to equity holders of the parent for the Year of
HK$4,448.8 million (2007: HK$2,732.1 million) and a core earnings per
share of HK$2.00 (2007: HK$1.20), an increase of 62.8% and 66.7%

over 2007 respectively.

The major non-cash items are fair value losses on investment properties
together with their respective deferred tax credit of HK$6,235.7 million
(2007: gains of HK$5,463.7 million) and credit effect of deferred tax on
reduction in tax rate in respect of the fair value changes on investment

properties of HK$292.5 million.
Dividends

A final dividend of HK22.5 cents per share in amount of HK$517.1 million
for the year ended 31st December, 2007 (year ended 31st December,
2006: HK18.0 cents) and an interim dividend of HK13.5 cents per share
in amount of HK$306.2 million for the half year ended 30th June, 2008
(half year ended 30th June, 2007: HK13.5 cents) were paid in cash and
in form of new shares in lieu of cash (scrip dividend) during the Year.
90.7% and 9.3% were paid in cash and in scrip dividend respectively for
the final dividend as well as 98.7% and 1.3% were paid in cash and in

scrip dividend respectively for the interim dividend.

A final dividend and a special dividend have been recommended at
HK1 cent (2007: HK22.5 cents) and HK99 cents (2007: nil) per share
respectively. Together with interim dividend of HK13.5 cents (2007:
HK13.5 cents) per share, the total dividend for the Year is HK113.5 cents
(2007: HK36 cents) per share.

Repurchase

During the period from March 2008 to December 2008, the Company
has utilised HK$2,287.9 million (2007: nil) in repurchase of the
Company's shares, such amount is equivalent to HK102.7 cents per
share, calculated based on weighted average number of shares during the

Year.
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LOSS, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS, REPURCHASE
AND CASH PAYMENT (cont'd)

Cash Payment

Based on (a) the core profit for the Year of HK$4,448.8 million (2007:
HK$2,732.1 million) or HK$2.00 (2007: HK$1.20) per share; (b) the
amount utilised for share repurchase during March 2008 to December
2008 of HK$2,287.9 million or HK102.7 cents per share; and (c) final
and special dividends of HK100 cents (2007: HK$22.5 cents) per share
proposed and interim dividend of HK13.5 cents (2007: HK13.5 cents)
per share paid for the Year, the ratio of such cash payment to the core
profit is 108% (2007: 30.0%)

NET ASSET VALUE

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group's total net asset to equity holders
of the parent amounted to approximately HK$34,651 million (31st
December, 2007: HK$47,162 million), a decrease of HK$12,511
or 26.5% when compared with 31st December, 2007. With the total

million

number of ordinary shares in issue of 2,077,750,079 shares as at 31st
December, 2008 (31st December, 2007: 2,300,443,378 shares), the
net asset value per share to equity holders of the parent was HK$16.68,
a decrease of 18.6% over 31st December, 2007 (HK$20.50). The
movement in net asset value was mainly due to (a) loss for the Year of
HK$1,494.4 million; (b) reduction in the reserve for the listed available-
for-sale investments of HK$8,159.0 million; and (c) reduction in share

premium for share repurchase of HK$2,289.2 million.

As at 31st December, 2007, the carrying amount of the cumulative gain
on fair value changes of listed equity securities investments in equity as
securities investments reserve (the “Listed Equity Securities Investments
Reserve"”) was approximately HK$8,157.1 million. A reduction in fair value
on the listed equity securities investments of approximately HK$4,501.1
million (year ended 31st December, 2007: addition of approximately
HK$4,505.8 million) was recognised for the Year and a cumulative gain
of approximately HK$3,656.0 million (year ended 31st December, 2007:
HK$890.7 million) was transferred to consolidated income statement
upon disposal. The carrying amount of the Listed Equity Securities

Investments Reserve as at 31st December, 2008 is HK$nil.
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NET ASSET VALUE (cont'd)

Included in the total net asset is net deferred tax liabilities of HK$3,769
million on fair value gains of investment properties. If the deferred tax
liabilities are excluded, the total net asset to equity holders of the parent
will become HK$38,420 million or HK$18.5 per share.

During the Year, the Group had acquired additional 36.51% interest in
G-Prop and acquired and redeemed certain convertible bonds of G-Prop,
disposals of certain investment properties and bought and sold listed and
unlisted securities investments. Other than the existing projects and those
disclosed in the annual report, the Group did not have any future plans

for material investment or capital assets.

SECURITIES INVESTMENTS

As at 31st December, 2007, the listed equity securities investments and
treasury products was HK$11,808.0 million. During the Year, the Group
disposed all the listed equity securities investments. As at 31st December,
2008, after adding the fair value gain of HK$26.4 million, the carrying
amount of the treasury products was HK$24.4 million, which was included

in current liabilities.

During the Year, Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited (“Chi Cheung”,
a 61.96% subsidiary of the Company) and G-Prop (a 50.20% subsidiary
of the Company) acquired various long term floating rate notes and
fixed rate notes (the "FRN") in principal amount of US$28.5 million
and EUR3.8 million as available-for-sale investments. The denominated
currencies of the FRN are United States dollars and Euro and the maturity
dates are between 2011 to 2016. The interest rates are calculated mainly
with reference to the respective country’s LIBOR. No hedging for interest

rate and foreign currency were subsisted during the Year.

As at 31st December, 2008, the carrying amount of the FRN amounted to
HK$216.7 million, representing 0.42% of the total assets of the Group at
the year end.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management procedures that
enable it to identify, measure, monitor and control various types of risk it
faces. This is supplemented by active management involvement, effective
internal controls and adequate internal audit in the best interests of the

Group.
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EQUITY

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 31st December, 2008 and
31st December, 2007 were 2,077,750,079 shares and 2,300,443,378

shares respectively.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The zero-coupon convertible bonds (the “Bonds") were issued by G-Prop
on 25th October, 2007 in a face value of HK$180 million due in 2010.
On 31st October, 2008, G-Prop, upon request of the bondholders,
had redeemed the Bonds with principal amount of HK$180,000,000
(including the Bonds with face value of HK$108 million held by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) in full at par value by cash. The Bonds
so redeemed had been cancelled simultaneously. As at 31st December,
2008, the Group had no outstanding Bonds.

DEBT AND GEARING

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group's bank and other borrowings
amounted to HK$11,669 million (31st December, 2007: HK$12,330
million). Cash and deposit at bank amounted to HK$10,419 million
(31st December, 2007: HK$6,168 million), pledged deposit amounted
to HK$478 million (31st December, 2007: HK$486 million) and net
borrowings amounted to HK$772 million (31st December, 2007:
HK$5,676 million).

Total debt to equity ratio was 33.1% (31st December, 2007: 25.9%) and
net debt to equity ratio was 2.2% (31st December, 2007: 11.9%), which
are expressed as a percentage of total borrowings, and net borrowings
respectively, over the total equity of HK$35,303 million (31st December,
2007: HK$47,666 million).

The decrease in net debt to equity ratio was due to an increase in cash
and deposit balances. Increase of cash and deposit balances was mainly

due to the disposals of listed available-for-sale investments.
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DEBT AND GEARING (cont'd)

At the balance sheet date, the Group's bank and other borrowings were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings of HK$11,669 million, 27.1%, 20.2%, 51.2% and

repayable within 1 year, 1 to 2 years, 2 to 5 years and over 5 years

1.5% were

respectively. The Group's bank and other borrowings carrying interest rates
were calculated mainly with reference to HIBOR. No hedging for interest
rate and non-Hong Kong dollars assets or investments were subsisted at

the end of the year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group had pledged the following assets:

(a) The Group's investment properties, property and other fixed assets,
prepaid lease payments, stock of properties and time deposits with
their respective carrying amount of approximately HK$28,643.2
million (31st December, 2007: HK$37,048.5 million), HK$60.3
million (31st December, 2007: HK$47.6 million), HK$319.6 million
(31st December, 2007: HK$239.2 million), HK$2,995.2 million
(31st December, 2007: HK$561.9 million) and HK$149.3 million
(31st December, 2007: HK$485.7 million) were pledged to the
Group's bankers to secure general banking and loan facilities

granted to the Group.

(b) As at 31st December, 2008, a cash deposit of HK$328.7 million
was pledged to the Group's financial institutions to secure the

derivative financial instruments transaction.

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group's investments held-for-
trading with carrying amount of approximately HK$194.7 million
was pledged to the Group's financial institutions to secure margin
and securities facilities granted to the Group in respect of securities
transactions and utilised by the Group as borrowings due within one

year of approximately HK$177.5 million.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS (cont'd)

(c) Interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company have been pledged
as part of the security to secure certain bank borrowings granted to

the Group.

(d) The Group has subordinated and assigned its advance to an
associate and advance to an investee company of approximately
HK$1,275.0 million (31st December, 2007: HK$1,152.0 million)
to financial institutions to secure banking general credit facilities

granted to associate and investee company.

FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/EXPENSES

Interest income was included in turnover and investment income. Interest
income for the Year was HK$228.4 million, representing a decrease of
15.7% from that of 31st December, 2007 (HK$270.8 million). Finance
costs included interest expenses on bank and other loans, imputed
interest expenses, exchange difference on foreign currency loans and
arrangement, facility and commitment fee expenses. Excluding imputed
interest, interest expenses for the Year amounted to HK$274.3 million,
representing a 50.5% decrease over the interest expenses of HK$553.8
million recorded for the same period last year. The decrease in interest
expenses was mainly due to decrease in interest rate during the Year.
Interest capitalised for the Year was HK$52.7 million as compared to
HK$101.0 million for last year. The average interest rate over the year
under review was 2.63% (2007: 4.81%), which was expressed as a

percentage of total interest paid over the average total borrowings.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

During the year under review, the Group employed a total of 306 staff
(year ended 31st December, 2007: 300 staff) (excluding about a total
of 301 staff (year ended 31st December, 2007: 270 staff) for estate
management employed under the Group’s estate management company,

Perfect World Company Limited).

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. Remuneration packages
comprised salary and year-end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The Executive Directors continued
to review employees’ contributions and to provide them with necessary
incentives and flexibility for their better commitment and performance. No

share option scheme was adopted for the Year.
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MAINLAND CHINA AND MACAU

Excluding the discontinued operation, profit contribution from the Group's
investment in the Mainland China (including gross profit, fair value
changes on investment properties, share of results of associates and
taxation) for the Year amounted to HK$116.7 million (year ended 31st
December, 2007: HK$222.8 million). The Group's net investment as at
31st December, 2008 amounted to HK$6,877.5 million (31st December,
2007: HK$4,295.4 million) representing approximately 13.3% of the

Group's total asset value and 19.8% of the Group's net asset value.

Further, the Group's net investment in Macau as at 31st December, 2008
amounted to HK$1,665.0 million (31st December, 2007: HK$1,660.7

million) representing approximately 3.2% of the Group's total asset value.

LISTED SUBSIDIARIES

At the year end date, the Group owned 61.96% interest in Chi Cheung.

On 5th February, 2008, the Group acquired 740,518,325 shares
of G-Prop, representing 36.519% shareholding, at a consideration of
approximately HK$120.8 million. Accordingly, the Group held 50.20%
shareholding of G-Prop and G-Prop became a subsidiary of the Company.

PROPERTY VALUATION

A property valuation has been carried out by Messrs. Norton Appraisals
Limited, independent qualified professional valuers, in respect of
the Group's investment properties as at 31st December, 2008 and
that valuation was used in preparing 2008 vyear results. The Group's
investment properties were valued at HK$30,303 million (31st December,
2007: HK$38,498 million), a 20.5% decrease over 2007 after adjusted
for additions and disposals of investment properties during the Year. The
decrease in fair value of approximately HK$7,468 million was recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the Year. The Group also
shared a decrease in fair value of investment properties of the associates
of HK$63 million (net of deferred tax of HK$14 million) for the Year.
Development properties and non-investment properties of the Group

were stated at cost less impairment, if any, in the financial statements.
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The Board of Directors (the “Directors” or the “Board") and management RAR(ERENBLAR [FEE])EESE
of the Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) are ([BEF]d[EZg ) REBREERTRIND

committed to principles of good corporate governance in safeguarding the

interests of the shareholders and enhancing shareholders’ value.

Throughout the year ended 31st December, 2008 (the “Year"),
the Company has applied the principles of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) and complied with the code provisions
(the “Code Provisions”) and certain recommended best practices (the
“Best Practices”) set out in the Code contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules") on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, except for the following

deviations:—

Deviations

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung (“Mr. Joseph Lau"), acts as both the chairman
(the “Chairman”) and chief executive officer (the “CEQ") of the Company
since December 2006. The Board considers that this structure will not
impair the balance of power and authority of the Board. It currently
comprises one Executive Director, two Non-executive Directors (the
“NEDs” or "NED") and three Independent Non-executive Directors (the
“INEDs" or “INED"), with INEDs representing 50% of the Board, which
is higher than the Best Practices. Such a high percentage of INEDs in
the Board could ensure their views carry significant weight and it reflects
a strong independence element in the composition of the Board. At
present, the Board also believes that under the leadership of Mr. Joseph
Lau as the Chairman and CEO, the Board's decision could be made
effectively and it is beneficial to the management and development of
the Group's businesses. The Board would still consider segregation of the

roles of Chairman and CEO if and when appropriate.

Chairman Attending Annual General Meeting

Mr. Joseph Lau, the Chairman of the Board, suffered from illness and
therefore could not attend the Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 15th May, 2008 (“2008 AGM"). Mr. Lau, Ming-wai, being the
then Executive Director of the Company, was elected as the chairman
of the 2008 AGM and Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, chairman of Audit and
Remuneration Committees, had attended the 2008 AGM to ensure

effective communication with shareholders of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES (cont'd)

Revocation of Additional Corporate Governance Measures

The Company has adopted the following additional corporate governance
measures exceeded the Code Provisions since 2006, details of which
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28th April,
2006.

(1) Fees and Emoluments

Fees and emoluments entitlement of the Executive Director(s)
of the Company shall not exceed in aggregate an amount of
HK$8,000,000 per annum.

(2) General Mandate

The Company is committed to propose to the shareholders at
annual general meetings to issue and allot new shares up to 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company. The Company is also
committed not to issue any shares pursuant to the general mandate
at a discount of more than 12% to the benchmarked price (as
defined in Rule 13.36(5) of the Listing Rules), unless approved by

an independent board committee.
(3) Connected Transactions

The Company will ensure that the aggregate of all connected
transactions over any 12-month period not exceeding HK$500

million unless approved by the independent shareholders.
(4) Independent Non-executive Directors

The number of INEDs of the Company will not be less than 50% of

the total number of Directors of the Company.

As announced on 31st December, 2008, the above additional corporate
governance measures were revoked with effect from 1st January,
2009 after taking into account the existing protection available to the
shareholders of the Company under the Listing Rules, the additional
burden on the Company in terms of time and administrative costs in
complying with such additional measures, and the scope of discretion

which should be left to the Board to allow sufficient flexibility.
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Board Composition EZECARK

Under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the board of directors of a listed
company must include at least three independent non-executive directors.
The Best Practices recommend that at least one-third of the directors

should be independent non-executive directors.

The Company considers that it is important for the Board to include a
balanced composition of Executive Directors, NEDs and INEDs, so that
there is a strong independent element on the Board which can effectively
exercise independent judgement on the actions of the Company. The
Board currently comprises one Executive Director, two NEDs and three
INEDs, with INEDs representing 50% of the Board, which is higher than
the Best Practices. During the Year, Mr. Cheng, Kwee resigned as an INED
with effect from 21st November, 2008. Immediately upon the resignation
of Mr. Cheng, Kwee, Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun has been appointed as an INED of
the Company on the same day to fill the casual vacancy left by Mr. Cheng,

Kwee.

The Directors’ biographies and the relationship among the Board
members, if any, are set out in the Profiles of Directors and Senior
Executives of this annual report and available on the Company’s website.
Save as disclosed in the Profiles of Directors, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among the

Directors.

Responsibilities of Directors

The NEDs and INEDs with diversified expertise, skills and experience play
an important role on formulating strategy and ensuring that the Board
maintains high standards of corporate governance as well as taking the
lead where potential conflict of interests arise. The Board has received
from each INED a written annual confirmation of their independence
and satisfied that their independence up to the date of this report is in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Company encourages its Directors to possess up-to-date knowledge
in order to discharge their duties. Information regarding the updating of
Listing Rules had been provided to the Directors. Directors could have
recourse to seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged to access and to

consult with the Company's senior management independently.

B EHRBIEII0)EMBRE ETHRFZ
EEEVERERL S RBUENTES &
EERBEERL A2 NEZTUEARB I
BiTEE-

ARRRBERETENRTES  FATES
FBUFRTESHEHEZHEUNEBESR
NEEEEEREBZBULE AIHEARAEZ
THELERBTHE -EFSRE LR
EX MEFNTEER=2BIUIHNTES
MR MBS IFMITER 2 ABUAEEE50%
BREFHRAR - RAFERN EELLHIAR
REAZBIFNTEE R_TZN\EF+—A
“t—AREER - BREEELRLEZERI  FEE
REERFAREZIRARRZBEIIFNTE
EONEMBERERT TR

EEZEANREFEXNEZ2EANBEERE(WA)
ERAER [EERSBTRAEEN] A X
BEHERARAWU -BRESHNAMKESE
S BEZMWEM B RE RRIHEMBEKR
SRR

EscEE

BETRAZEMANEZ RORERIIFNITES
RBUFRTESERERB T AREEEA
B REITBRREFSHFTSKTLEESR

RHEREBEENGSEREEEBFER -EFEC
EREXBUIFNTESREBELETRARERER
BEBIUMCFRERE WRBHERNERS
AL RE 2B -

ARBAEBEEERAZERAANBABITH
BE-FRLTRAUENZEHNCRETSE
Z-BEENRABETRAMSKBIEXER
ERBARRAXN MARARNEBESTEY
EBIHAANRRZGRERE-



Corporate Governance Report

—ZF)\EFE, Annual Report 2008

>
e

*E

B

HES

THE BOARD (cont'd)

Retirement by Rotation and Specific Term of Office

The Company's Bye-laws provide that no Director (save for the executive
chairman and any managing director) shall hold office for a continuous
period in excess of three years, or past the third annual general meeting,
following the Directors’ appointment or re-election, whichever is longer,
without submitting himself/herself for re-election at the annual general
meeting of the shareholders. Accordingly, Directors (save for the executive
chairman and any managing director) shall retire by rotation at least
once every three years and a specific term of office has been fixed for
appointment of Directors (save for the executive chairman and any

managing director).

However, according to the Private Act for incorporating the Company
as an exempted company under the laws of Bermuda in 1989, it is
stipulated that the executive chairman and any managing director should
not be required to retire by rotation. In order to comply with the Code
Provisions, the Chairman and CEO of the Company is willing to voluntarily
retire from his directorship at future annual general meetings of the
Company at least once every three years, and being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election at the relevant annual general meetings. Mr. Joseph
Lau retired voluntarily at the 2008 AGM and had been re-elected by the

shareholders thereat.

Every Director will therefore retire either by rotation under the Bye-laws or
voluntarily at least once every three years and will subject himself/herself
to the absolute and free choice of the shareholders for re-election at the

annual general meetings.
Board Meeting

The Board meets regularly throughout the Year to discuss the overall
strategy, the operational and financial performance of the Group. Four
regular Board meetings were held during the Year with advance notice
of not less than 14 days were served upon each Director. Individual
attendance of each Director is indicated in the table of "Attendance
Records of Board Meetings". All accompanying Board papers were sent
to the Directors in a timely manner and at least 3 days before the
Board meetings. Adequate explanation and information were given to
the Directors by the management to facilitate the Directors in decision-
making. Each Director has to declare interest and abstain from voting on
any Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associates has a

material interest in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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THE BOARD (cont'd)

Board Meeting (cont’d)

558 (&)

Exeesd (&)

Attendance Records of Board Meetings

ExegedmERE

Attendance records

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai*

SIS & o

i FE 7 8%
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung D) 4/4 (100%)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FEFTHAR)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai AEExL 4/4 (100%)

3/4 (75%)

Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES

Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai PR B9 {2 5% A4 4/4 (100%)

Mr. Cheng, Kwee** 88 | S A 3/3 (100%)

Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping EREEZL 4/4 (100%)

Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun*** 55 BRF (£ 5 A v 1/1 (100%)

Dates of meetings e h=g=p- 07/03/2008
23/06/2008
07/08/2008
24/11/2008

* Mr. Lau, Ming-wai redesignated from Executive Director to Non-executive Director on 31st October, 2008.

HBEEER _FTZN\FHA=ZT BHRTEFEBERFENTES-

ok Mr. Cheng, Kwee resigned as Independent Non-executive Director on 21st November, 2008.

BEEER_ZTN\FT—AZ T —HEEBLIFNTESR

k% Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun appointed as Independent Non-executive Director on 21st November, 2008.

BREEAER_ZZNF+ AT —BEZERABUFNITES:

The agenda of each Board meeting is set by the Chairman in consultation
with members of the Board such that they are given an opportunity to
include agenda items. On an on-going basis, senior executive(s) provides
the Directors with operational and financial reports of the Group's
performance, position and prospects. All Directors are kept informed of
and duly briefed of major changes and information that may affect the
Group's businesses in a timely manner. Draft and executed Board minutes
were sent in good time to all Directors for their comment and records
respectively. Minutes of the Board meetings recorded in sufficient details

were kept by the Company Secretary.
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THE BOARD (cont'd)

Board and Management Functions

The functions reserved to the Board are basically provided in the Bye-laws
of the Company and the Board from time to time delegates the functions
to the senior management whenever required. In short, the Board has
reserved for its decision on matters relating to the Group's strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, major capital expenditure, annual and
interim results, Directors’ appointment and other significant financial and

operational issues.

On top of daily business operation, senior management is responsible for
the preparation of annual and interim consolidated financial statements
for the Board's approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate systems of internal
control and sound risk management practices and is required to report to
the Board and obtain its prior approval in important matters at all times.
Notwithstanding the delegation, the Directors acknowledge that it is the
responsibility of the Board for preparing the financial statements, which

give a true and fair view of the financial results of the Group.
Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its
Group's directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The

insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee (collectively the “Committees”) with clear written terms of
reference which are of no less exacting terms than those set out in
the Code. Details of the Committees’ terms of reference are available
at the Company's website. Members of the Audit Committee are also
members of the Remuneration Committee and all of them are INEDs of
the Company. As at 31st December, 2008, members of the Committees
were Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun;
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai acted as chairman of the Committees. Two members
of the Audit Committee possess appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting or related financial management expertise as required under

the Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd) TE5Z85g (H)
Audit Committee EREES
Role and Function BEER ) BE

The Audit Committee was formed to review the Group's corporate
governance, financial reporting, internal control, risk management and

make relevant recommendations to the Board.

Meetings

The Audit Committee met four times during 2008, on 5th March, 7th
August, 10th November and 24th November. Individual attendance of
each member is indicated in the table of "Attendance Records of Audit
Committee Meetings”. All members and also the Company's senior
executive(s) attended the said meetings to review the Company's external
auditors’ (the “Independent Auditors”) audit findings as appropriate,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the
requirements of the Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and to discuss
auditing, internal control, risk management and financial reporting matters
(including the interim and annual accounts for the six months ended 30th
June, 2008 and for the year ended 31st December, 2008 respectively
before recommending them to the Board for approval) with the presence
of the Independent Auditors on 5th March, 2008. All accompanying
meeting papers were sent to the members in a timely manner and at
least 3 days before the meetings. Draft and executed minutes of the
meetings were sent in good time to all members for their comment and
records respectively. Minutes of the meetings recorded in sufficient details
were kept by the Company Secretary. Sufficient resources had been
given to allow the Audit Committee to discharge its duties and the senior
management were co-opted to join the meetings of the Audit Committee
to explain the financial and business conditions of the Company to the

committee members from time to time.
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Attendance Records of Audit Committee Meetings BEEXZEE 2B HFLE

No. of
meetings attended | Attendance rate

Name of members REEAE HEEBAY HE=
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai PR B & % 4 4/4 100%
Mr. Cheng, Kwee (resigned on BEAE (R-ZFZENF 3/3 100%

21st November, 2008) +—HA=-+—HEIT)
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping EEYZLE 4/4 100%
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun (appointed on BRELEE (RZFENE /1 100%

21st November, 2008) +— A=+ —HEEZ(T)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd)

Audit Committee (cont’'d)
Independent Auditors

In order to enhance independent reporting by Independent Auditors,
INEDs hold meeting(s) with the Independent Auditors without the
presence of the Executive Director(s). In addition, the engagement
partner of the Independent Auditors is subject to periodical rotation, and
the nature and ratio of annual fees to Independent Auditors for non-
audit services and for audit services are subject to scrutiny by the Audit
Committee. A policy of non-audit services from Independent Auditors
was established. The Audit Committee considers whether there are
clear efficiencies and value-added benefits to the Company from that
work being undertaken by the Independent Auditors; whether there is
adverse effect on the independence of their audit work or the perception
of such independence; the nature of the non-audit services envisaged
to be provided by the Independent Auditors; and the related fee levels
individually and in aggregate relative to the audit fees. In addition, a
policy restricting the employment of employees or former employees of
Independent Auditors as senior executives and financial positions with the

Group has also been in place.

During the Year, the Independent Auditors provided audit services for
auditing the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2008 at a fee of HK$2,276,000. Engagement
agreements with the Independent Auditors had been reviewed and
approved by the Audit Committee. The Independent Auditors did not

provide any non-audit services to the Group during the Year.

Prior to the commencement of the audit of accounts of the Group, the
Audit Committee had reviewed the Independent Auditors’ independence
and objectivity as required under the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, reviewed the terms of their engagement and discussed with

them the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the findings of their review of
the process and effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the

Independent Auditors.

A statement by the Independent Auditors about their reporting

responsibilities for the Year is set out in this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd)

Audit Committee (cont’'d)

Amendment of Terms of Reference

As a result of implementation of certain amendments to the Listing
Rules effective on 1st January, 2009, the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee have been amended by deleting any reference to the qualified
accountant as it is no longer necessary to have qualified accountant for
a listed company in Hong Kong. Instead, the terms of reference now
requires the Audit Committee to discuss on the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget. The Audit Committee assists the Board to have effective internal
controls for proper financial reporting, adequate accounting systems and
appropriate human resources to fulfill its continuing financial reporting

obligations.
Remuneration Committee
Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee is responsible to review and approve the
existing remuneration policy for all Directors and senior executives. It is
also responsible to review and approve performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from
time to time. It would consult the Chairman and CEO on the remuneration

proposals whenever it thinks fit.
Meetings

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings in 2008, on 5th March,
23rd June, 10th November and 24th November (individual attendance
of each member is indicated in the table of “Attendance Records
of Remuneration Committee Meetings"), to review and approve the
Executive Directors’ and senior executives’ remuneration packages and
the terms of service agreements as appropriate as well as to propose to
the Board the annual remuneration of NEDs and INEDs. During the Year,
the Remuneration Committee recommended the adoption of a share
award scheme to the Board which enables the Company to recognise and
reward certain employees for their contributions to the Group and to give
long-term incentives for retaining them for the continued operations and
development of the Group. It also intends to attract suitable professional
recruits to join the Group, to assist in the further development of the

Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d)
Meetings (cont'd)

Professional advice and sufficient resources will be given to the
Remuneration Committee whenever it considers necessary in order
to discharge its duties. Draft and executed minutes of the meetings
were sent in good time to all members for their comment and records
respectively. Minutes of meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept

by the Company Secretary.

ARBERFMEE G AT ERRERMREE
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Attendance Records of Remuneration Committee Meetings HFHZE2SFH L FET &
No. of
meetings attended | Attendance rate

Name of members HE&AB HEEBRY HER
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai PR B {2 2 A& 4/4 100%
Mr. Cheng, Kwee (resigned on EEERE (RZFEENEFE

21st November, 2008) +—HAZ=+—HEHF) 3/3 100%
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping EBRYZLE 4/4 100%
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun (appointed on BRELE (RZFENEF

21st November, 2008) +— A -+ —HEEZ(T) 1/1 100%

Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors HITEFZF B R

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive director(s)’
remuneration packages is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
Executive Director(s) by linking their compensation with performance as
measured against corporate objectives. In determining guidelines for each
compensation element, the Company refers to remuneration surveys
conducted by independent external consultants on companies operating
in similar business. Under the policy, a Director is not allowed to approve

his own remuneration.
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Remuneration Committee (cont’d) FMEES (&)

Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors (cont'd)

The Listing Rules require disclosure of the compensation and emolument
payable to each director in the accounts and annual reports of listed
companies. Save for such disclosure requirements, there are no
stipulations on maximum limit of emolument payable to the directors.
As part of the policy observed by the Company in respect of the
determination of the remuneration of the Executive Director(s), all fees
and emoluments paid to the Executive Director(s) and their associates
(as defined in Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules as extended by Rule
14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules), shall not exceed in aggregate an amount
of HK$8,000,000 each vyear, plus any adjustment by reference to the
changes in consumer price index published by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, save with the prior approval
of an independent board committee comprising only the INEDs. The
total emoluments paid to the Executive Directors for the Year were
approximately HK$4,647,000, details of which are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report. Such policy
was abolished on 1st January, 2009 as mentioned under “Revocation
of Additional Corporate Governance Measures”. The Remuneration
Committee approved the increase of Mr. Joseph Lau's emolument to
HK$18,000,000 per annum with effect from 1st January, 2009 as set
out in the service agreement of Mr. Joseph Lau. The Remuneration
Committee will continue to review the remuneration package(s) of
Executive Director(s) regularly pursuant to its terms of reference and the

Code.

Remuneration Policy for NEDs and INEDs

The Directors’ fees of NEDs and INEDs are subject to annual assessment
with reference to his/her duties and responsibilities and the prevailing
market condition. Each NED and INED (except Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai)
is entitled to a director's fee of HK$200,000 per annum as determined
and approved by the Board (with the Director involved abstained from
voting). Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in
connection with the performance of their duties including attendance at

the Company’s meetings.

The Directors’ fees paid to each NED and INED of the Company for
the Year (if any) are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial

statements of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd)

Nomination Committee

No Nomination Committee is established. At present, the Board is
responsible for the appointment of Directors, evaluation of the Board's
composition and the management of the Board's succession with
reference to certain guidelines. These guidelines include appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, personal ethics, integrity
and personal skills as well as time commitments of the Board members.
It carries out the process of selecting and recommending candidates
for directorship including the consideration of referrals and engagement
of recruitment firms, whenever necessary. The Board also reviews and
recommends the re-appointment of retiring Directors for shareholders’
approval at the annual general meetings. The Board shall exercise its
power under Bye-law 94 of the Company's Bye-laws to appoint additional
Director(s) whenever the business of the Company requires. During the
Year, the Board approved the re-designation of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai from
Executive Director to NED with effect from 31st October, 2008, and
the appointment of Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun in place of Mr. Cheng, Kwee, the
resigned INED, effective on 21st November, 2008.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms without deviation from the required
standard set out in Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code"). All
Directors, after specific enquiries by the Company, confirmed they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the

said code of conduct during the Year.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code. All the relevant employees
(“Relevant Employees”) who, because of office or employment, is likely
to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation
to the Group's securities have been requested to follow such code when
dealing in the securities of the Company. All Relevant Employees, after
specific enquiries by the Company, confirmed they have complied with

the required standard set out in the said code during the Year.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal
control in the Company and reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit
Committee. The senior management is responsible to the implementation
of such system of internal control. The internal auditors are responsible
to review relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions and report their findings and advice to the Audit

Committee.

Special Reviews

To have an in-depth review on the existing structure for internal control,
Ernst & Young, an independent international professional accounting firm
was engaged as the consultant to carry out two internal control reviews
for the Group during the Year, namely the Risk and Control Framework
Assessment and the Procurement Review. The reports of the said reviews
which were completed in late August 2008 have been presented to and
discussed by the Audit Committee. Majority of the recommendations
stated in the reports have been followed up by the senior management in

order to enhance the internal control policies, procedures and practices.
Annual Review

Based on the annual assessment made by the Independent Auditors, the
Audit Committee and the Board are satisfied with the effectiveness of the

system of internal control of the Group and concluded that:

(1) the Company has complied with the Code Provisions on internal

control during the Year;

(2) a framework of prudent and effective controls has been established

to identify, evaluate and manage the risks;

(3) internal control and accounting systems of the Group are efficient

and adequate;

(4) significant risks that may influence the Group have been identified,

evaluated and managed through ongoing monitoring process; and

(5) material transactions are executed with the management's

authorisation.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (cont'd)

Internal Audit

Besides, an internal audit function has also been established with the key

tasks to:

(1) review all aspects of the Group's activities and internal control
with unrestricted direct access right to any levels of management

whenever it considered necessary;

(2) conduct comprehensive audits of the practices and procedures,
income and expenditures, and internal control of all business units

of the Group on a regular basis; and

(3) carry out special reviews and investigations on areas of concern

identified by the management for corrective actions.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with shareholders that the Directors and the
chairman of Board committees are encouraged to attend and to answer
questions at annual general meetings. Majority of the Directors, the
chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee and
also Independent Auditors had attended and were available to answer
questions at the 2008 AGM.

Procedures for demanding a poll were set forth in a circular accompanying
the notice of general meetings. At the commencement of each general
meeting, the chairman of the meeting had explained the procedures
for demanding a poll to the shareholders and the shareholders were
allowed to raise any question concerning the poll procedures. At each
of the meetings, separate resolutions were proposed by the chairman of
the meeting and put forward to the shareholders for voting. The level of
proxies lodged on each resolution, and the balance for and against each
resolution, were indicated by the chairman of the meeting after each

resolution had been dealt with on a show of hands as appropriate.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(cont'd)

With the implementation of certain amendments to the Listing Rules
effective on 1st January, 2009, the voting at all general meetings of a
listed company should be conducted by poll. It is believed that the voting
by poll can fully reflect the proprietary rights of shareholders and is a
fairer method of determination for the shareholders than voting by a show
of hands. Pursuant to Bye-law 75 of the Bye-laws of the Company, a
resolution put to vote at general meetings shall be decided on a show of
hands, unless a poll is demanded in accordance therewith. The Company
will procure the chairman of general meeting to demand for voting by
poll on every general meeting to comply with the newly amended Listing

Rules.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a corporate website (www.chineseestates.com) to disseminate
the Group's information. Investor Relations Department is responsible to
answer enquiries raised by the investors of the Company and the general

public.

A corporate communications manual which provides guidance for
coordinating the disclosure of material information to investors, analysts
and media, identifies who may speak on the Company's behalf, and
outlines the responsibility for communication with various stakeholder

groups has also been in place.

The above corporate governance practices will be reviewed, amended and
revoked from time to time as considered necessary by the Board and its

committees.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”) present
to the shareholders their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) for
the year ended 31st December, 2008 (the "Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Company acted as an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in property investment
and development, brokerage, securities investment, money lending and

cosmetics distribution and trading.

OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION

The Group's turnover and contribution to loss for the year from operations
analysed by principal activities are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries and associates as at
31st December, 2008 are set out in notes 56 and 57 to the consolidated

financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

income statement on page 67.

The Directors had declared an interim dividend of HK13.5 cents (2007:
HK13.5 cents) per share. The Board resolved to recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK1 cent (2007: HK22.5 cents) per share and a
special dividend of HK99 cents (2007: Nil) per share for the Year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five years is set out on pages 193 and 194.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the Year, the Group acquired certain leasehold properties in
Hong Kong for a total consideration of approximately HK$33,962,000
(2007: Nil). Investment properties with an aggregate net book value of
approximately HK$179,650,000 (2007: HK$101,011,000) were disposed
of during the Year.

Details of the above and other movements in investment properties
during the Year are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PROPERTY AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

Movements in property and other fixed assets during the Year are set out

in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties of the Group as at 31st December,

2008 are set out on pages 195 to 212.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set

out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out on

pages 70 and 71.

As at 31st December, 2008, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), amounted to approximately HK$3,237,996,000
(2007: HK$2,803,243,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the laws of Bermuda, being the

jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company purchased a total of 226,873,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at an aggregate consideration of
HK$2,287,860,250. All of the purchased shares were cancelled.
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A (B2 FT) ) B Bl & $£226,873,0000% & A% E
H0.10/ T 2 LBk - 88X 8 /22,287,860,250
PETC e T W B Bl AR 15 B M s o

Total number of

Month of the ordinary Highest price
the purchases shares purchased paid per share
ETBEZAH FrBEEERAEH ENERESE
HK$
BT
March 2008 1,959,000 11.70
—TZNF=A
May 2008 2,820,000 13.30
—ETENFHA
June 2008 11,888,000 11.80
—ZEENFERA
July 2008 19,546,000 12.12
—EENFELA
August 2008 58,078,000 11.26
—EENFENA
September 2008 94,207,000 10.96
—EENFAA
October 2008 16,917,000 9.48
—TENEFETA
November 2008 14,601,000 6.04
—ZEENFE+—H
December 2008 6,857,000 6.80
—ZEENFE+HA
226,873,000

Lowest price Aggregate
paid per share consideration
ENERBEE BRE

HK$ HK$
BT BT
11.40 22,810,560
13.10 37,355,040
10.72 134,170,860
11.16 223,825,360
10.64 639,076,040
9.04 971,141,110
6.13 137,688,150
4.60 78,652,710
5.47 43,140,420

2,287,860,250

The Directors considered that the aforesaid shares were purchased at a
discount to the net asset value per share and resulted in an increase in

the net asset value per share then in issue.

Save as disclosed herein, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities

during the Year.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
HK$14,032,000 (2007: HK$17,019,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Director:

Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun

(appointed on 21st November, 2008)
Mr. Cheng, Kwee

(resigned on 21st November, 2008)

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun will retire
from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election in accordance with Bye-laws 94 and

111 of the Bye-laws of the Company.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employer within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31st December, 2008, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the "SFQ")) as recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Appendix 10 of Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the

“Listing Rules") were as follows:—

1 The Company

AT
Number of
Name of Directors Shares Held Note
EEHE FERGEAR B =
Joseph Lau, Luen-hung 230,984,820 @)
("Mr. Joseph Lau")

D (T2 xE])

1,183,663,448 ()

1,414,648,268

Lau, Ming-wai 230,984,820 @)
("Mr. MW Lau")
ez (2B ELEE])
1,183,663,448 (2)
4,000 (3)

1,414,652,268

7
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Percentage
of Issued

Capacity Share Capital

B EBROTRFEIL

Founder and beneficiary of trust
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Founder and beneficiary of trust
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Beneficiary of trust

Beneficiary of trust
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Other interests

Hi s
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(cont'd)

Notes:

(1) These shares were indirectly owned by a discretionary trust of which Mr.
Joseph Lau was the founder. Mr. Joseph Lau, Mr. MW Lau and certain other
family members of Mr. Joseph Lau were eligible beneficiaries of that trust.

(2)  These shares were held by a unit trust of which Mr. Joseph Lau was one
of the unit holders. The rest of the units in the unit trust were held by a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Joseph Lau was the founder. Mr. MW Lau and
certain other family members of Mr. Joseph Lau were eligible beneficiaries of

the discretionary trust.

(3) These shares were held under the estate of Ms. Theresa Po, Wing-kam, the

late mother of Mr. MW Lau, of which Mr. MW Lau is the executor.

Il Associated Corporations of the Company

ADAZABEE

1. Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited (“Chi Cheung")

ERBEFERAR(T2H])

Number of
Shares Held
EERR iR & E

Name of Director

Mr. Joseph Lau
RIS e

2. G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (“G-Prop”)
SECEARAR ([2E])

Number of
Shares Held
EEHR iR & E

Name of Director

Mr. Joseph Lau
DR E

493,678,883

209,931,186

1,018,380,590

1,512,059,473
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(cont'd)

Notes:

(1) Mr. Joseph Lau by virtue of his 68.08% interests in the issued share capital
of the Company as disclosed in paragraph | above, was deemed to be
interested in 209,931,186 shares of Chi Cheung held by Billion Up Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

(2) The Company was interested in a total of 1,018,380,590 shares of G-Prop.
Mr. Joseph Lau by virtue of his 68.08% interests in the issued share capital
of the Company as disclosed in paragraph | above, was deemed to be
interested in 1,018,380,590 shares of G-Prop under the provisions of the
SFO.

(3)  Such interests are held by a company of which Mr. Joseph Lau is the sole
ultimate beneficial owner.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. The percentage
shown was the number of shares the relevant Directors were interested
in expressed as a percentage of the number of issued shares as at 31st
December, 2008.

Save as disclosed above, none of the other Directors and chief executives
of the Company had or were deemed under the SFO to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as at 31st December, 2008.

During the Year, none of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age were
granted or had exercised any right to subscribe for any securities of the

Company or any of its associated corporations.

/. />

EFZNERITHABERAKNR T
B EE  ESER ()
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GEE

(1) FWEXNFIBRFESR ZE2ELEREER
AT D EITHAT68.08%2 # % KR A
RARRE 2 [ # 2 & %A N & 2 FBillion Up
Limited# & 209,931,186/ =& Ik h R A
e

2) ARFHEAEFH1,018,380,5900 & EMRG o
W EEIRFERE  AEERERBEBEAR
BT AT 68.080% 2 #Ex  IRIEE S N E E‘?
&G AR A51,018,380,590 & ER M H#HA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

TERRNARAIZEFEm

As at 31st December, 2008, so far as are known to any Directors or chief Tzé%&?%’ TTHRABRTME RZTENF
executives of the Company, the following parties (other than Directors or TZA=1T—B XRAFREESKBAE KD
chief executives of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by F336f4A 1%TZ%Z‘.:EHHFF[$X§5“X ﬁ%ﬂ@$
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to AR BEEAEEREERERAEEARR
the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be BITAR A0 A FREZ 2 AT (%%Eﬁzﬂi%ﬁ
interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:— BWABBRIN T —
Percentage
Name of Number of of Issued
Substantial Shareholders Shares Held Notes Capacity Share Capital
FTERRER FRERGEEB M 3 56 BEROTRETEIL
GZ Trust Corporation 1,414,648,268 (1), (2)  Trustee, beneficiary of a trust and 68.08%
interest in controlled corporation
BERA —HERZERARK
MEFEHRA 2 #R
Global King (PTC) Ltd. (formerly 1,183,663,448 @) Trustee 56.96%
known as Global King Ltd.) EFEA
(A1#8 Global King Ltd.)
Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments 230,984,820 ) Beneficial owner 11.11%
Limited EmEA A
Favor Gain Limited (“Favor Gain") 150,036,697 (3) Beneficial owner 7.22%
BERBEA
Thomas Lau, Luen-hung 150,036,697 (3) Interest in controlled corporation 7.22%

("Mr. Thomas Lau")
e (T2 B/EE])

MNEER ARz s
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN

THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)

Notes:

(1) GZ Trust Corporation as trustee of a discretionary trust held units in a unit
trust of which Global King (PTC) Ltd. was the trustee and therefore was
regarded as interested in the same parcel of shares held by Global King
(PTC) Ltd. These shares were the same parcel of 1,183,663,448 shares
of the Company referred to in both “Founder and beneficiary of trust” and
“Beneficiary of trust” of Mr. Joseph Lau and Mr. MW Lau respectively under
“Directors’ and Chief Executives' Interests in the Securities of the Company

and Associated Corporations” as disclosed in paragraph | above.

(2)  GZ Trust Corporation as trustee of another discretionary trust held the entire
issued share capital of Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited and
therefore was regarded as interested in the same parcel of shares held by
Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited. These shares were the same
parcel of 230,984,820 shares of the Company referred to in both “Founder
and beneficiary of trust” and “Beneficiary of trust” of Mr. Joseph Lau and
Mr. MW Lau respectively under “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
the Securities of the Company and Associated Corporations” as disclosed in

paragraph | above.

(3)  Mr. Thomas Lau was deemed to be interested in 150,036,697 shares of the
Company by virtue of the SFO as he owned the entire issued share capital of

Favor Gain.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31st

December, 2008, no short positions were recorded in the register kept by

the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

(1) GZ Trust Corporation ({fFR—EHMBEFEZE
5t A) #58 —IELAClobal King (PTC) Ltd. & 155t
A2 BRI ETtEe 2 B MR BB Global
King (PTC) Ltd.FifsB 2B —#LARH 2 R e
LA ENERABEREIEERESIT
BABRARAR KB EE 2 #E A5 Em] BT
Rl ERBBREEEZTBZ [EEAIZA
EZ@mAIRMEaZm Al maiEz B —4#t
1,183,663,448% 24X A1 f& 15

(2) GZ Trust Corporation (fEAS —HEEIEE
2578 A)H5 B loseph Lau Luen Hung
Investments Limitedz 2 #B 2 B TR A - 04K
R RHE A Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments
Limited T #5752 A —#E I 2 #E %5 o Eall R 15
REXFIRFFEEIEERESTRAERSE
RARMEEER 2 ES#m | BTS2 ERE
RBGEEEZRBZERAIZARERA]
K [MEFEE s Al i ATiE 2 A —#£230,984,820
A& AR DB AD

(3) Bk AREEAFavor GainZ 2B HTR
AOWIRBEFRBEGRN BEERAES £
3150,036,697 88 A R RIAR 1D 2 #E % ©

L EREARTRE - RETN\F+ A
=+—H REAXRZESF MG RIIFE336
R F 2B M AAE B EE AR -
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING EENREFMER 2 ER

BUSINESSES

During the Year, the following Directors declared their interests in the
following companies with businesses which competed or were likely to

compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group:

RAFER UNTEFRHEN T EAEEE
BERREEBRBRFRATEBRET ZEB
ZRBR R

Nature of Business

Considered to Compete or

Likely to Compete with the

Businesses of the Group Nature of Interest of the
Name of Directors Name of Companies BRAEAEEMEBBRBRT Directors in the Companies
EEnE CIECE RURBRBRFZEBMEE EENZE PR ZERME
Mr. Joseph Lau Chi Cheung* and its subsidiaries Property investment and Having certain deemed
i ERAREME AR development interests in Chi Cheung
MERERER and is a director of certain
subsidiaries of Chi Cheung
WRAEAERE TERRR
EHEZETHERRIZES
G-Prop* and its subsidiaries Property investment Having certain direct and
BE R HKE AR MERE deemed interests in G-Prop
HERBERESR
TESETHER
Mr. MW Lau Chi Cheung* and its subsidiaries Property investment and Having certain deemed
BINS 18 4 EERENBERF development interests in Chi Cheung and
MERERER was a director of certain
subsidiaries of Chi Cheung
HRAEEERE TS
REFZETHBRARZES
G-Prop* and its subsidiaries Property investment Having certain deemed
BE*RHKME AR MERE interests in G-Prop
WRREESES THR

* listed subsidiary of the Company

AR 2 KB R
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES (cont'd)

The above-mentioned businesses were managed by separate publicly
listed companies with independent management. The respective board
composition of such listed companies are different and separate. In this
respect, coupled with the diligence of its Independent Non-executive
Directors (whose views carry significant weight in the Board's decisions)
and the independent audit committee, the Group was capable of carrying
on its businesses independently of, and at arm's length from, the

businesses of the above companies.

For better delineation of property investment business, the Company, will
give Chi Cheung the priority over the future property investment project
with the value of less than or equal to 50% of the net asset value of Chi
Cheung with reference to the latest published accounts and subject to the

financial resources of Chi Cheung from time to time.

Other than the businesses of the Company's subsidiaries mentioned
above, Mr. Joseph Lau and Mr. MW Lau had personal interests in private
companies engaged in businesses consisting of property development
and investment in Hong Kong as well as securities investment. Mr. Joseph
Lau also had personal interests in private companies engaged in money
lending business. As such, they were regarded as being interested in such
businesses, which competed or might compete with the Group. However,
when compared with the dominance and size of operations of the Group,

such competing businesses were immaterial.

The Directors are aware of their fiduciary duties and will act honestly and
in good faith in the interests of the Company and will avoid any potential
conflicts of interest and duty. The Company comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors and all of them are audit committee members of
the Company, so that the interest of its shareholders can be adequately

represented.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors were interested in
any business apart from the Company's business, which competed or
was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company's

business.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate during the Year.

i

PRAEBIBHBLETAREE ZFELHA
AEABILIEEE RS LT AREREEZA
REBTRNARBIL SIS - A HEE
BREBERZEBNZBUFNTEF RSB
UEREZEEGZB N AEEEBEI ML IR
FRERRAEERER-

RTERMHMBIDMEREES  ARRHL2E
ENROBRAMZREREARENR ARG M
BER $EEIRIBEREHEEFS0%
ZAKMEREBRBBERTEREZE

BB ARR 2 ETRHEB AR 2 EBHN - B8
FERBSBEERELEERBEBNEERR
KREMBHREZMARRPHEABEARES -
BB ENNEENEEE ZLARB T
BlEAEm F WERRSNEREERE
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o tERFEEERAEE BT REBR
AL T 28

EENTEBGELE BERATEUFTAR
RAEZMas - W REREEN R REEFHR
RRARZBEREZEEM =R WUIFRITEENK
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DIRECTORS" AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below and apart from the agreement disclosed
under the heading “Connected Transaction”, where Mr. Joseph Lau has/
was deemed to have certain interests and/or deemed interests in the
shares of G-Prop/Chi Cheung (as disclosed in paragraph Il of “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Securities of the Company and
Associated Corporations”), there were no other contracts of significance in
relation to the Company's business, to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end of the Year or
at any time during the Year, and in which a Director had, whether directly
or indirectly, a material interest, nor there were any other contracts of
significance in relation to the Company's business between the Company
or any of the Company's subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any

of its subsidiaries.

On 17th January, 2008, the Company together with its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary — Victory Gain Holdings Limited entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with Chi Cheung, in relation
to, inter alia, the acquisition of share interests in and loans to certain
subsidiaries of Chi Cheung at a provisional consideration of approximately
HK$518 million. The transaction was formally completed on 30th
September, 2008 and the final consideration was approximately HK$531

million.

On 1st February, 2008, Mass Rise Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Fame Ascent Investments Limited to acquire, inter alia, 740,518,325
shares of G-Prop at a consideration of approximately HK$120.8 million.
Completion of the transaction took place on 5th February, 2008.
Accordingly, the Group's shareholding in G-Prop had been increased to
50.20% and thus G-Prop became a subsidiary of the Company.

On 4th November, 2008, Chi Cheung as lender, Longman Limited (being
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as borrower and
the Company as guarantor entered into a loan agreement in relation to a

three-year revolving facility of up to HK$900 million.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Year, there were no discloseable non-exempted connected
transactions or non-exempted continuing connected transactions but an
exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules as

detailed below.

N

SEENMERBRRRE O Em

H

BT XA EE NN (RS ] — 8l 2 %
FH(EPENEERESTRABRAAF
REEEEZ Eriks ] FNRPATINE 818
WERERBRBNREE /EFZRHERRE
@) REBRAAFEANEAFEARRF L
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MeEAGOT ESMEERAHERRE
R¥EgR SN RRBHARE Z AERAIHE R R
TR R ERCR S MM B AR LEAR
AEBBRZEMBERNGN-

RZZEZENF-—A+tB RRFERHER
BE2EREBEWBARBSIERERAFEE
BN —HEREEEHZE EPBEKE
EHEETHBARAZRERER BRERE
#4) /518,000,000 T - ZX 5K _FEZTN
FRA=ZTHEXAZTKR XRHSREZL AL
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION (cont'd)

On 4th November 2008, the Company'’s indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
— Fancy Mark Limited as borrower entered into a loan agreement with
G-Prop as lender regarding a three-year revolving facility of up to HK$200
million, with the Company acting as guarantor for repayment of the loan
(the “"Loan Transaction”). The Loan Transaction constituted a continuing
connected transaction of the Company since G-Prop is a connected
person to the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules but exempted
from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under rule 14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules.

As at 31st December, 2008, a total sum of HK$136 million had been
drawn by Fancy Mark Limited.

Having reviewed the Loan Transaction, the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company confirmed that the Loan Transaction was made
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company, on normal
commercial terms and in accordance with the relevant loan agreement
governing on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company confirmed that the Loan Transaction
had received the approval of the Board and had been entered into in
accordance with the relevant loan agreement.

None of the “Related Party Transactions” as disclosed in note 55 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st December,
2008 constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or
non-exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Details of bank loans and other loans repayable within one year or on
demand are shown in the consolidated balance sheet. Details of long-
term secured bank loans and other loans are shown in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Interest capitalised during the Year by the Group amounted to
HK$52,716,000 (2007: HK$101,012,000).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:

(1) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong
Kong, (the "ORSO Scheme"); and

(2) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong
(the "MPF Scheme").

ER S (E)

RZZENFE+—ANB - ARFRZEEL2E
% A M B A 7] —Fancy Mark Limited{E/& & J5 2
TEVERETTERT — 1 H & %200,000,000
BTRAA=FZREERBENERRZ - A
REIAIREEERERERA ([BERZS]) -
BARBEETRASERLRRR ZHAEAL
ZERRFERAAB —BHERER S H
BREMBRAIFE14A65(M)IKERPBTHR A
R R E ZHRTE -

HE-_ZTZ)\F+=-H=+—H Fancy Mark
Limited B f& B & #£136,000,0007% 7t °
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (cont'd)

Both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes are managing by their

respective trustees accordingly.

The ORSO Scheme is available to the Group's full-time permanent staff
employed in Hong Kong before 1st December, 2000. Contributions to
the ORSO Scheme are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% based
on the staff's basic salary depending on the length of service. Staff
members are entitled to 100% of the Group's contributions together with
accrued returns after completing 10 years of service or more, or attaining
the retirement age, or are entitled at a reduced scale between 30% to
90% of the Group's contributions after completing a period of service
of at least 3 years but less than 10 years. The ORSO Scheme allowed
any forfeited contributions (made by the Group for any staff member
who subsequently left the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) to be used by the Group to offset the current level of

contributions of the Group.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and with
at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5% based on the staff's
relevant income. The maximum relevant income for contribution purpose
is HK$20,000 per month. Staff members are entitled to 100% of the
Group's contributions together with accrued returns irrespective of their
length of service with the Group, but the benefits are required by law to

be preserved until the retirement age of 65.

In order to provide similar benefits to those who joined the MPF Scheme
and the ORSO Scheme, the Group provided an additional portion (the
“Top-up Portion”) for those who joined the MPF Scheme. The purpose
of the Top-up Portion is to match up the benefits of the MPF Scheme
with that of the ORSO Scheme by providing those staff under the MPF
Scheme with basic salary over HK$20,000 and/or years of service over 5.
Contributions to the Top-up Portion are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5%
or 10% of the staff's basic salary less the Group's mandatory contribution

under the MPF as mentioned above.

The Group's total cost for the schemes charged to consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31st December, 2008 amounted to
approximately HK$4,310,000 (2007: HK$4,465,000). In addition, an
amount of forfeited employer's contributions for the schemes amounted
to approximately HK$192,000 (2007: HK$197,000) was utilised towards
reducing the Group's contributions during the Year and there was no

balance available to reduce future contributions.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme") was adopted by
the shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 14th January, 2009 (the "Adoption Date"). The Share Award Scheme
is a long-term incentive arrangement for the selected employees.
The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to recognise and reward
certain employees of the Group for their contributions to the Group
and to give long-term incentives for retaining them for the continued
operations and development of the Group. It is also intends to attract
suitable professional recruits to join the Group, to assist in the further
development of the Group.

The Board may from time to time, at its absolute discretion and subject
to such terms and conditions as it may think fit (including the basis of
eligibility of each employee determined by the Board from time to time),
after having taken into account recommendations made by member of
the Group and assessment of individual performance pursuant to internal
appraisal system, select an employee for participation in the Share Award
Scheme as a Selected Employee (“Selected Employee”) and determine
the number of shares which may be awarded to such Selected Employee
pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme (“Awarded Share(s)").
A Selected Employee shall become qualified to be allotted and issued
the Awarded Shares after all the qualifying conditions have been fulfilled,
unless otherwise determined by the Board at its discretion.

The issue price for each Awarded Share shall, subject to the terms of
the Share Award Scheme, be an amount equal to its nominal value and
shall be paid or satisfied in cash by the relevant member of the Group
engaging the Selected Employee or, if payment by the relevant member
of the Group engaging the Selected Employee is not permitted under
applicable law, any member of the Group, upon the allotment and issue
of the Awarded Shares.

The total number of shares which may be issued in response to the
Share Award Scheme and any other incentive or option schemes of
the Company (if any) shall not in aggregate exceed 207,775,007, being
10% of the total number of shares in issue on the Adoption Date and
represents approximately 10% of the total number of shares in issue at
the date of this annual report.

The maximum number of Awarded Shares to be granted to each Selected
Employee under the Share Award Scheme in any 12-month period shall
not exceed in aggregate 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of such

grant.

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of the Share Award
Scheme, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing from the Adoption Date (i.e. until 13th January,
2019).
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (cont'd)

The details of the Share Award Scheme were also set out in the circular of
the Company dated 23rd December, 2008.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The five largest customers of the Group amounted to less than 30% of

the total turnover to the Group during the Year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier and
five largest suppliers accounted for 18% and 449% of the Group's total

purchases for the Year.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) have an interest in

any of the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the
prescribed amount of public float during the Year and up to the date of

this report as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by
Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng (“HLB") who would retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed to the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint

HLB as the auditors of the Company.

There have been no other changes of auditors in the past three years
except for Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned and HLB was

appointed as the auditors of the Company in November 2006.

On behalf of the Board
Joseph Lau, Luen-hung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16th March, 2009
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HLB B &3t 0 F B oA
Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chinese Estates
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 67 to 192, which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st December, 2008, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

31/F Gloucester Tower &Hi#

The Landmark IR

11 Pedder Street 2ITH115%
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Hong Kong
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AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY (cont'd)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether

the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December, 2008 and
of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16th March, 2009
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Continuing operations
Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Investment income, net

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Gain on disposals of property and
other fixed assets

(Loss) gain on disposals of
investment properties

Fair value changes on investment properties

Finance costs

Other gains and losses, net

Share of results of associates

(Loss) profit before tax
Income tax credit (expense)

(Loss) profit for the year
from continuing operations

Discontinued operation
Loss for the year from discontinued operation

(Loss) profit for the year
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Minority interests

Dividends

(Loss) earnings per share (HK$)
From continuing and discontinued operations

— Basic and diluted

From continuing operations
— Basic and diluted

FEREXRK
-
2N

E7

H A YA
REBAFER
THRRAX

H 5 <
HEMEREMEEEE
Z W es
HEREMEZ
(B8) Wt
REMEZ A FEES
MEER

H o zs I B 1805 5
BIEBERRIRE

Br#iAT (B1R) & F
PrigaEE (FAx)

AEEREFAELERT
(B18) & A

EREREER
AEFRE DR IEEEER
ZE8

AEE (BE)EHN

PR B (538 %R -
SRR RARABEEA
SR A

RS

BR(ER)EFN (BT)
REFKBEEEBR
B IERE R
—EAR#E

KERBEREE
—HARH#E

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

2008 2007

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 7 FET AT
7 1,264,925 4,478,075
(279,811) (2,541,535)

985,114 1,936,540

9 38,950 32,256

10 3,995,971 1,399,071
(224,083) (229,125)
11 (5,260) (9,804)
102 3,109

(2,721) 1,776

21 (7,467,668) 6,421,788
14 (283,171) (575,424)
15 10,168 (71,653)

(8,388) 601,431

(2,960,986) 9,509,965
18 1,506,728 (1,177,097)
(1,454,258) 8,332,868

12

(1,950) -

13 (1,456,208) 8,332,868
(1,494,376) 8,195,857

38,168 137,011

(1,456,208) 8,332,868

19 823,345 715,238

20

(0.67) 3.60

(0.67) 3.60

BHBRM TG M BRI D -
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Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property and other fixed assets
Properties under development
Prepaid lease payments
Property interests held

for future development

Intangible assets
Goodwill
Interests in associates
Advances to associates
Interests in jointly controlled entities
Available-for-sale investments
Advances to investee companies
Loans receivable, due after one year
Deferred tax assets
Advance to a minority shareholder

Pledged deposits

Current assets
Stock of properties
Investments held-for-trading
Equity-linked note
Loans receivable, due within one year
Inventories for cosmetic products
Debtors, deposits and prepayments
Securities trading receivables and deposits
Tax recoverable
Pledged deposits
Time deposits, bank balances and cash

Sales proceeds held by stakeholders

ERBEE

REME

MEREMEEEE

BRTME
a1 & RE

FiFRARERZMEED

BVEE
B
NI

AT

I8

?ﬁ%%%\

%ﬁh’

BNEZRER

J?’@E\Hﬂzf%ﬂ—*iféiﬂﬁﬂ

EXERIREE

AIFIE

BN —BDBBRRFKR
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RBEE

MEFE

RFIFEEBEZKRE
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fe#mEE
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RS RBERIFR

&Y 78
BEQEIEE A
HRFER

Notes

B &

21
22
23
24

25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32(a)
33
46
32(b)
34(a)

35
36
37
33
38
39
34(b)

34(a)

EHEFEHR RITEHRRRE 34(0)

RE AT IEE FT1S30R

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT AT
30,302,580 38,498,440
104,739 101,846
86,496 33,548
1,536,953 1,417,631
10,010 12,870
8,310 -
869,727 1,210,936
1,784,457 1,352,741
468,127 11,916,268
332,501 310,055
60,129 61,300
96,690 66,574
14,580 9,527
99,599 79,217
35,774,898 55,070,953
4,945,495 3,781,462
~ 367,753

- 101,516

117 586

3,426 1,425
223,439 299,433
69,118 309,766
414 536
378,483 406,492
10,418,877 6,167,845
63,272 206,540
16,102,641 11,643,354
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At 31st December, 2008 —EFEENFFZA=FT—H
2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 7 FET FAT
Current liabilities REEE
Derivative financial instruments PTESMTA 40 24,432 50,851
Creditors and accruals FEATBRTE K FE AT 5K IE 41 323,026 295,766
Securities trading and margin payable ENEAFRXHEERRESR 62,702 284,165
Deposits and receipts in advance & & &8 A WK IE 391,298 297,085
Tax liabilities HIEAE 118,360 230,827
Borrowings — due within one year BEE-——FRNEH 42 3,163,925 2,949,269
Provisions B 43 16,054 16,017
4,099,797 4,123,980
Net current assets REBEERE 12,002,844 7,519,374
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBER 47,777,742 62,590,327
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Financial guarantee liabilities MBEREE 618 618
Borrowings — due after one year &8 ——F 1455 42 8,505,258 9,380,589
Amounts due to associates R BB R RIFIE 45 9,271 8,941
Amounts due to minority shareholders REDEIREREFIE 45 77,565 90,059
Deferred tax liabilities REBHIEAE 46 3,882,381 5,444,587
12,475,093 14,924,794
Total assets and liabilities EEHREEAHE 35,302,649 47,665,533
Capital and reserves MRS R 1%
Share capital [N 47 207,775 230,044
Reserves G 34,442,818 46,931,594
Equity attributable to equity holders of RBATRREEZIFTEAZ
the parent FE 15 IR s fE 2 34,650,593 47,161,638
Minority interests DERRER 652,056 503,895
Total equity PR 7 1 25 A KR 35,302,649 47,665,533

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16th
March, 2009 and signed on its behalf by:

Joseph Lau, Luen-hung e
Director EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

EREFEN_TTENF=H Tt NBHERE

BEM YHTIEEAREFTERE

Lau, Ming-wai

Director
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For the year ended 3 Ist Decembey; 2008

At Tst January, 2007 R-25t5-5-A

Share of associaes' resenve Blmelaey
movements during the year REEY

Fair value changes of RERENTEED
avallable-for-sale investments
- lsted equity investments - LHRARE
—unlisted investments

PRC statutory reserve

Bxchange adjustments

Net income recognised directly
in equity

Transfer to consolidated

income statement on disposels A NEE
of avallable-for-szle investments
- lsed equity investments - LTkERE
Profit forthe year Emigh
Totel recognised income ERERZERA
for the year
Deemed contibuton from minorty % {E) SR F R E
inerests
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHELA
Issue of ordinary shares RIRRES
fiom conversion of BRAGERR
convertble bonds
Conversion of convertble bonds R EEE A3

by cash setfement RATRRES
Issue of shares in liew of EIRBRE-TEAE

2006 final cash dividend FBReRe
Premium on issue of shares upon = EERERENK

2006 final scip dividend REmBARHZEE
Issue of sharesin leu of 2007 EARHRE-TT+E

interim cash diidend hERLRE
Premium on issue of shares upon ERANR

2007 interm scrip dividend REmEARHZER
final dividend paid BiXERE
Interim diidend paid BfinARE
At 31t December, 2007 RZ2BLE
tZA=t-8
Share of associaes' resenve Blmelaey

movements during the year REEY

Fair value changes of FERALNTEED
avalable-for-sale investments
~lised equity investments (Note 2)  — ERRARE (i2)

~listed debt investments - LERRE
-unlisted investments -k LTRE
PRC statutory resenve hEEERRE
Exchange adjustments EiBE
Share of securtes investments S BRR RS
reserve by minorty interests EEERARE
~listed debt investmens - LERRE
-unlisted investments -%LTRE
Share of exchange adjstments S HBRERS
by minoriy interests 3
Suplus on revaluation of property  EfENERH
Defered tax BEHE
Netincome (expense) recognised  ERRRAERRERZ
directly n equity FRA ()

Transfer to consolidted HERERERERE
income statement on disposels  EFANKER
of avallable-forsale investments
- lsted equityinvestments (Note 2)  — ERRARE (iz2)

- unlisted investment -FETRE
Transfer to consolited HEWBATEERZE
ncome statement on GakEx

disposal of subsicaries
Share of disposal of subsidiaries D ERFELEE
by minoriy interests HEMEAF
Loss for the year EhER

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

BAARAREREARERARR

Convertible Convertible

Properties bonds-  Securities Capital bonds equity
Share Share  revaluation equity investments  Statutory Other Special  redemption  Translation  Retained reserve ofa  Minority Total
capital ~ premium feserve reserve reserve feserve reserve reserve feserve feserve profits Total  subsidiary interests equity

-8

KEAEZ
TRRRS % &% TERRE  JHBR  BAEE
Bk RHEE AREGEE  BEERE  REGE  GEEE ARBE  BNBE  WERR  ERGRR  REE BF  REER i# a5
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin TR TERL Fin TR TER Fin Fin TER TiEn Fin TR TERL Fin TR
2591 3236338 = 55435 4761630 8 (35202) 2,499,685 98,362 - 24689741 35532698 = 42993 35962,634
= = = = (17445) = 2601 = = = = 8,626 = = 8,626
= = = - 4505768 = = = = = - 4505768 = - 4505768
= = = - (@ = = = = = - @ = - (@
- - - - - 1447 - - - - - 1447 - - 1447
= = = = = = = = = 132,509 = 132,509 = = 132,509
= = = - 4465969 1447 2607 = = 132,509 - 46259% = - 46259%
- - - - (89066 - - - - - - (89066 - - (89066
- - - - - - - - - - 8195857 8195857 - 1301 8332868
- - - - 35T 1447 2071 - SIS0 8195857 11931191 - 137011 12068202
- - - - - - - - - - - - - 177 1717
- = - - - - - - - - - = - (4769 (64769)
57 4106 - (687) - - - - - - - 3476 - - 3476
- - - () - - - - - - - (5479) - - (474
2383 = = = = = = = = = = 2383 = = 2383
= 274m = = = = = = = = = 274m = = 24m
1623 = = = = = = = = = = 1623 = = 1623
= 185,542 = = = = = = = = = 185542 = = 185,542
- - - - - - - - - - (406B6Y)  (406869) - - (406869
= = = = = = = = = - (30839)  (308369) = - (308369)
BO044 3700697 - - 836937 2175 (©131) 2499685 9362 132509 32170360 47161638 - 503895 47665533
= = = = = = 1,186 = = 11,563 = 12,749 = = 12,749

(Note1)
(B3t1)

- - - - (4501,157) - - - - - - (4501,157) - - (4501,157)
= - - - (379 - = = = = - (3792) - - (3792)
- = = - (38%) = = - = = - (38%) = - (388)
- - - - - 2192 - - - - - 219 - - 219
= = = = = = = = = 212215 = 212215 = = 212215
- - - - 1888 - - - - - - 1888 - (1,888) -
_ R = = 13973 = = - = = - 13973 - (139m) -
- - - - - - - - - (4861) - (4861) - 4861 -
- - 843 - - - - - - - - 843 - - 843
- - (139) - - - - - - = - (139) - - (139)
- - 04 - (451297) 219 1,186 - - i - (828997) - (11000)  (4300977)
- - - - (3655965) - - - - - - (3655965) - - (3655965)
- - - - (5221) - - - - - - (5221) - - (5221)
- - - - - - - - - (9761) - (9761) - - (9761)
= = = = = = = = = 4861 = 4861 = (4861) =
B i R R - - = = = - (1494376)  (1494376) - 38168 (1,456.208)
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Attributable to equity holders of the parent

BRARAREREARLRIER
Convertible Convertible
Properties bonds-  Securities Capital bonds equity
Share Share  revaluation equity investments  Statutory Other Special  redemption  Translation  Retained reserve ofa  Minority Total
aapital  premium reserve feserve feserve reserve reserve feserve feserve reserve profits Total  subsidiary interests equity
-8
KRARZ
TERES % &% EKREZ  JERR  RAER
Bx  ROEE DREGRE  REEE  REGR  RER ARER  GRER  WEER  EXER  REEH BE  REER # f1]
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR TERL Fin TER TER TiEn FiEn TER TERL Fin TER TERL Fin TR TER
Totel recognised income (expense)  FAETZEHA
forthe year (%) - - 04 - @ImIe) 219 1,186 = SO (1494376)  (9450439) = 0307 (94813)
Deemed contbuton REDBRRERTA
from minorty interests - - - - - - - - - - - - - (19) (19)
Acquisiion of subsidiries KEHEAA - - - - - - - - - - - - 30,234 163,466 193,700
Puchase of convertble bonds  BE-HE2EHEAT
issued by a nonwholly owned BT TRRES
subsidary = = = = = = = = = = = - (8M0) (03 @B
Release on redemption of BE-HHERAZ
convertble bonds of a subsidiary AR EHERE - - - - - - - - - - - - (12,094) - (12094)
Cancelltion on repurchase of ~ BEA SR EEE
onn shates (2687)  (2289182) = = s = = - = - 918 = - (918
Dividend paid to minoriy BV ERRRS
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - - (28500) (28500)
Issue of shares infieu of 2007 EFRARE-FRLE
final cash dividend 3 Ei7) - - - - - - - - - - 382 - - 8
Premium on issue of shares upon ¥
2007 final scip dividend fREFERE, Zm B - 47624 - - - - - - - - - 47624 - - 4764
Issue of shares n llew of 2008 Bf7RHKE 2%
interim cash diidend 3 - = = = = = = = = = 3% = = 3
Premium on ssue of shares upon
2008 interim scrip dividend g FW Rk zaE - 3879 - - - - - - - - - 3879 - - 3879
Final dividend paid BiIXHRE - - - - - - - - - - (TR (5171%8) - - (7%
Interm dividend paid EffSRE - - - - - - - - - - (306187)  (306,187) - - (306187)
At 31st December, 2008 RZBENE
TZB=t-R 207715 1,463,018 04 - 162,775 4,367 (1945) 2,499,685 121,049 346,526 29,852,639 34,650,593 - 652,056 35,302,649
Notes: M 5
(1)  The movement of other reserve for the year represented the release of the (1) FTEEZHMBEGEEEEAEEN —MEEE
negative reserve held by an associate of the Group upon the disposals of the ARAIRNEEEMYERBEMZE 28 AERK
relevant properties. 1
(2) As at 31st December, 2007, the carrying amount of the cumulative gain 2 RZZEZTEF+ZA=+—RH RIFERE

on fair value changes of listed equity securities investments in securities
investments reserve was approximately HK$8,157,122,000. A reduction
in fair value on the listed equity securities investments of approximately
HK$4,501,157,000 was recognised for the year and a cumulative gain of
approximately HK$3,655,965,000 was transferred to consolidated income
statement upon disposals. The carrying amount of the cumulative gain as at
31st December, 2008 is HK$nil.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

BHEPLETRAZLEREATEHEHGZ R
5T Uk 25 BR E {E 49 &88,157,122,0007% T ° 1A &
FE BEERAZLETRAZBFREQATER
4 /4,501,157,000% 7 M R & W 2= 49
3,655,965,000 B A HE ME R EHRE IR
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
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For the year ended 3 st December, 2008 BE_FEN\FH_A=1—HIFE
2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5% FTET FH&T
Operating activities REXEK
(Loss) profit before tax BREBLAT (R & A
— continuing operations —FREEEER (2,960,986) 9,509,965
— discontinued operation —ERIEREED (1,950) -
Adjustments for: THEREZ AR
Depreciation of property and W N H A E E & E
other fixed assets we 20,005 16,090
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#H 2,860 1,430
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8 {5 7 & 7B 805 609
Interest expenses A E X H 274,343 553,820
Imputed interest expenses BEMNEXZH 6,118 5,056
Interest income B U A (209,776) (227,292)
Imputed interest income HEFEWA (27,153) (33,073)
Realised gain on derivative financial MEeMIAZ
instruments B IR - (65,868)
Dividend income from listed and FikEETRE
unlisted investments Az B A (174,774) (155,741)
Impairment losses recognised (reversed) in HIEWE 5 RIERER
respect of trade receivables (BE) 2 REERE 155 (291)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of REEREERZ
available-for-sale investments DEREYSE 78,881 120
Unrealised loss on equity-linked notes e s
RERER - 46,311
Unrealised gain on investments BHIEEBIREZ
held-for-trading R W 5 - (20,372)
Unrealised gain on derivative financial MESMIAEZ
instruments REIR WA (26,419) (51,925)
Impairment loss reversed in respect of BT B R Al KIE
advances to associates gl Z/U@TEJ%TE (187) (1,719)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BB — B E A B RIA
advance to an associate R BEEE 5,472 1,884
Impairment loss recognised (reversed) in ?Jﬁ—F'EJ =N 3
respect of interest in an associate R (#0) 2R EEE 653 (1,378)
Transfer from equity on disposal of k= #%&ﬁﬁ-ﬁﬂ
available-for-sale investments % 74N 4 2 4 (3,652,989) (888,684)
Gain on deemed disposal of RAE & — B & R A
interest in an associate 1 75 U 2= - (5,103)
Loss (gain) on disposals of HEREMEE
investment properties BE (W) 2,721 (1,776)
Gain on disposals of property and &S W3 K& H At & & B
other fixed assets el & (102) (3,109)
Share of results of associates NS 8,388 (601,431)
Fair value changes on investment properties BEMEZ AN TFEE 7,467,668 (6,421,788)
Discount on acquisition of a subsidiary W g — FRI BT /B8 2 Rl 4T o8 - (624)
Gain on redemption of convertible bonds B —fRMB AR Z
of a subsidiary AR EFH 2 W (5,595) =
Loss on conversion of convertible bonds by NIREEE A HIRAT R
cash settlement RES 2 BB - 236,705
Gain on purchase of convertible bonds of BE—RMNEQF
a subsidiary AR AR (5 5 2 W (6,396) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B A |l W e (3.870) (158,212)
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Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Decrease in stock of properties
Decrease in loans receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventories
for cosmetic products
Decrease in debtors,
deposits and prepayments
Decrease (increase) in investments
held-for-trading
Decrease in equity-linked notes
Decrease (increase) in securities trading
receivable and deposits
Decrease in presale proceeds held
by stakeholders
Increase (decrease) in creditors and accruals

(Decrease) increase in securities trading and
margin payable

Increase (decrease) in deposits and receipts
in advance

Increase in provisions

Cash generated from operating activities
Net Hong Kong profits tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Investing activities

Dividend received from listed and unlisted
investments

Dividend received from associates

Interest received

Purchases of and payments
for investment properties

Purchases of property and other fixed assets

Payments for properties under development

Payment for prepaid lease payments

Payments for stock of properties

Proceeds on disposals of
investment properties

Proceeds on disposals of property and
other fixed assets

Proceeds from disposals of
available-for-sale investments

Purchases of available-for-sale investments

Acquisition of subsidiaries (net cash and cash
equivalents acquired)

Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries

Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries
Advances to associates

Repayment from an investee company
Advances to investee companies
Decrease in pledged deposits

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

%@é% AE) AT 2
KERERE
YEFER D
FE U E FORL
b E
() w4
FEUERIE - Ze Rk
T8 A FRIE R
BIEEBEZRERD
(3n)
fix = £ A R
FEWRFEHR HRER
TR A (1)
REAMBFEREE
T 15 R R
FESTBRIE K FE AT RE
Zan OB )
ERBEHRZEER
wREE OB )50
e &8 S WEURIA
2 Ot 2)
B AE G N

RELEEBz2RE
B EBFEH F5E

REREXRKZ
REeFE

REXK

EHRFLETREZ
RE1Y)

BEQRZBEWEE

B A 8

Bﬁﬁ&iﬁ&é%%ﬂ

BEMEMEMBEEEE
XA B REPYEFR
XA EE R
XM EFERA
HEREME

1S 3R
HEMEREAM

& E & E Fr 15 7R
HEFERE

PR 1S 3038
BEFERE

WEHEBAR (BAREZK

BeFEBAEBFER)
EENBAR ZEE
HEMB QB MERE
L ATHE 2 R A UR
—RAEZREQFER
BNEIRERFRA
ERFFOR D

®E/ (AR)REXKZ
REFE
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BE_FE\F+_HA="1—HIFE
2008 2007

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 53 FET FET
797,872 1,733,604

183,895 2,240,217

1,640 1,417

(2,001) 130

75,801 59,936
367,753 (205,163)

101,516 75,725
240,648 (32,937)

143,268 323,465
28,498 (154,802)

(221,463) 92,959
93,794 (456,397)

37 =

1,811,258 3,678,154
(203,073) (39,414)

1,608,185 3,638,740

174,774 155,741

286,010 872,085

208,097 227,292
(371,808) (405,793)
(9,441) (38,614)
(19,142) (8,370)
- (1,137,834)
(437,116) (1,118,222)

176,929 76,525

105 5,304

7,081,038 1,660,313
(253,223) (562,443)
48 189,858 (17,088)
(2,019) =

49 170,185 82,152
(401,477) (434,299)

- 1,188
(22,446) (309,725)

7,627 600,248
6,777,951 (351,540)
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HE=FFN\GFF A= —AUFE

Financing activities
Dividends paid
Interest paid
Advances from associates
New bank loans and other loans raised
Repayments of bank loans and other loans
Repurchase of own shares
Advances from minority shareholders
Repayments to minority shareholders
Purchase of convertible bonds issued by a
non-wholly owned subsidiary
Redemption of convertible bonds of
a subsidiary
Conversion of convertible bonds
by cash settlement

Capital contribution by minority shareholders

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

at 1st January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents

at 31st December

Analysis of the balances of
cash and cash equivalents

Time deposits, bank balances and cash

BE K

EfEE

EHE

B2 N A2 B

FIBRITE R R EME R

BERTERREMER

BB m A & B

DBR 2 B0

EE D BBIRNA

BE-RH2EMBERA
BT AR RES

BE—fEMEARZ
Al R E 75

MREEETA L%
Al IR E 75

PEBRREE

ARBMEXRB 2R FHE

ReRBEEEEEE
B ORd) FE

R—A—BZzHER
RE%EEHEA

ERSH o8

R+=ZA=+-HZHER

RE%EEHEA

REeERASEEER
EER D AT

TR RITEHRERS

The accompany notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT AT
(799,924) (250,979)

(274,343) (553,820)

- 25,458

640,000 2,496,812

(1,300,675) (4,880,497)
(2,289,182) -

- 7,509
= (442,064)

(109,335) -

(72,000) -
= (571,717)

(19,828) -
(4,225,287) (4,169,298)
4,160,849 (882,098)

6,167,845 7,034,820

90,183 15,123

10,418,877 6,167,845

10,418,877 6,167,845

MEBERMEDRAEM BRI D -
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public listed company incorporated in Bermuda as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the

Company are disclosed in the corporate information of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the Company
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except

otherwise indicated.

The Company's principal activity is investment holding and the principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities are set out in Notes 56 and 57 and 30 respectively. The Group
was also engaged in the production and sale of methanol operation,

which was discontinued in the current year (see Note 12).

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the following
amendments and new interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are effective for the

Group's financial year beginning on 1st January, 2008.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets

(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share

Transactions

HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined

Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14

Requirements and their Interaction

1. —RER

ARBAR-—MRAREEMRIRZHREAR
RRZAREM AR EROREBHERS
PRBEMR AR (TBEAZFT]) £ o AR Z iR i
FRARTZERBME Z AN AFER L2 AR
CREL

ER e B mRIAEB T ([EL]) 25 BT
RARRIZNRER BRSEHRBIN AEE
BEYMEAAEREOI 2 TR (TET) -

RARZEFEEBRBERER MEFZMNE
AR BEATRERESHRE L FEXL S
RIS HA KT 5E56 57 /%30 c AEB MK ELEER
HEFEEL HERAFERIELE (BK
£T12) °

2. HRFE RIRERT BB Y
B & 2R ([ & 7B M 55
S

WAEE  AREERER T EEEEHE

AE([EBRAMAR]) BEA 2 EHTRAR

B RSETRAREERASER -2

F—A—ABBZHRERLER-

BERHEAFONR HOBAEENHH

&8 B RS S Y A
E75% (BFIA)

58 (BBRMBRE BRI B REERE
ZEZET) 25 — KB R ETF
—R2EF1R REZS

B (BBREMBHRE Pl 765 1R 27 #E &2 HE
ZEZEY)

—ZEFE12%

55 (BBETBHRE BEBGTERE
ZEZET) 1957 — A E AR
—REE 145 FEE 2 BR

BEESERR

W& 2 BB F
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (cont'd)

The application of amendments and new interpretations had no material
effect on how the results and financial position of the Group for the
current or prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.

Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

In addition, the Group has early applied HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2009 in the current year. The application of HKFRS 8 has resulted in a
change in the presentation of the operating segments of the Group. The
changes in presentation have been applied retrospectively. The early
adoption of the HKFRS 8 does not have any financial impact to the

Group's accounting policies.

HKFRS 8 requires the issuer to report financial and descriptive information
about its reportable segments. Reportable segments are operating
segments or aggregations of operating segments that meet specified
criteria. Operating segments are components of the issuer about which
separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the
chief operating decision-makers in deciding how to allocate resources and

in assessing performance.

The application of this new standard had no material effect on the results
of operations and financial position of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been

required.

2. BERFEEI MEIEF]IE S
SR ([ EF B % H®R
EXER]) (8)

ERETRMRBYBEARE 2 A HIRH
BT STHRAEERMBERARN 2 BEK2HR
TABREREATE QU EF(EHBEEHR
LAk

AN REBERAFEREEARN
F-A-—BRZERFAIR 2 FERRERZEE
MBRELERFESR [REVE] -EREAHY
BHREENESRERAEELEN R ZER
AALREH 2RI AZEH D EHER-
REEATEVBHESEERHAEE 2
SRTRRU BB E -

—TEA

— = =

BAEMBEHEEAFREREIT A2 RS EI
EBROBZUBENRSAER -AT2HS
REAE 1Im1¢ZZ%%%§EYZ%%%iEiEA°
REDERETANBRERNREMN Z2BZY
BEMZEKRD  ZBLHBER LR E
48 R 2B TE HARTAG DAOR E 1] 55 B B R K&

BEEEE

&

ERZEL BUAKE 2 At HAHNE
EEt Rz EEEERMBRNBERERNE
AFE-BUEFFLBATHR AR
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (cont'd)

Except as described above, the Group has not early applied the following
revised standards, amendments or interpretations (“new HKFRSs") that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

2. BRAFhE] RENEF] BB ﬁ
%ﬁ%ﬁJg%%ﬁ
AR (B

)
Br EXPrat &SN REBAEIEEEA NIIE
B AE MR AE R 2 BRI A BT AN 2
(TFHEFEH B REEL]) -

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HK(FRIC) — Int 13

HK(FRIC) - Int 15

HK(IFRIC) — Int 16

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17

HK(IFRIC) — Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs !

Presentation of Financial Statements 2

Borrowing Costs ?

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements *

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation 2

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate 2

Eligible Hedged Items *

Share-based Payment: Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations 2

Business Combinations *

Customer Loyalty Programmes *

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate 2

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation °

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Owners ?

Transfers of Assets from Customers 3

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009 except

for the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods beginning

on or after 1st July, 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2008
° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st October, 2008
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BB 75 WS 22 A BB A &) ~ 2[R
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (cont'd)

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting for
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1st
July, 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for
changes in a parent's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control, which will be accounted for as equity transactions.
The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact of these
new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to determine whether these new
HKFRSs will have a significant impact on how its results of operations and
financial position are prepared and presented. These new HKFRSs may
result in changes in the future as to how the results and financial position

are prepared and presented.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies

set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the HKICPA, and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are the
entities controlled by the Company. Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating

polices of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activity.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,

as appropriate.

2. HRAFEI RIEERT BB
B 2RI ([ &8 /M5 R
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B - S5 ARSI B AR R 5 - AR ERE
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MR BT S W BB RS R RIS 2
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3.

(a)

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group's equity therein. Minority
interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority's interest
in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of
the Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the

losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of business is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree's
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the
conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date, except
for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are recognised and

measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is

recognised immediately in consolidated income statement.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the

assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

3.

(a)

(b)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (cont'd)

(c) Goodwill (c)
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or an associate
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary or associate at
the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any

accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
presented separately in consolidated balance sheet. Capitalised
goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate is included in the

cost of the investment of the relevant associate.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in consolidated income statement.
An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or an associate, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the

determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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3.

(d)

(e)

()

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of an
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost (“discount on acquisition”)

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
or an associate represents the excess of the net fair value of an
acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of the business combination. Discount on acquisition
arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is recognised immediately
in consolidated income statement. A discount on acquisition arising
on an acquisition of an associate is recognised as income in the
determination of the Group's share of results of the associate in

which the investment is acquired.

Investments in associates
An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint

venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
carried in consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets of the
associates less any identified impairment losses. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's

interest in the relevant associate.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. The condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present

condition.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of the assets’ (disposal groups’) previous

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESABRERME (F)
POLICIES (cont'd)

(g) Jointly controlled entities (8) REZF#EE
Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a HEZEHIHBIEASELTHESITRILLZ
separate entity in which ventures have jointly control over the B REE AU ZEE KB
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled V) 2 [ 2 I
entities.
The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are HEZEHBEZZEREELAEENA
incorporated in consolidated financial statements using the equity S RATALA W BHRE - B ER
method of accounting. Under the equity method, interests in jointly % RGBS AR AR S B E
controlled entities are carried in consolidated balance sheet at cost BEXRANFIER - WA KB E GRS
as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of MEBRRRAEREH 2 WEEE
the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the jointly controlled i 58 B - R (R 2 58 51 R (B S 48 1 BR o fiw
entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group's AEBEEEHEZEHEEZBEASR
share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its s H T h sz kA HI SR (81
interest in that jointly controlled entity (which includes any long- R E B B 5 B 50 5% HE (3 42 i 4
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net B2 FRE Mo cEMEBER) -8l
investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues AEEGKR EHRAE G EMEE K
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses SEeRBIMEE 2 EIERE L EER
is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that BfE HEUASEEDELETRHETEE
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made F AR 3R 5% FE [ 428 A8 A R BR
payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.
When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the fisd &5 [ B 28 B /R o (8 2 ) 42 A 4
Group, unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of IR 5 Blg AR E B Fr b A B LR % &l
the Group's interest in the jointly controlled entity, except to the MR s AR T MEE R B IR B e - MR
extent that unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment SEEEEECEREENRREE 2
of the asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is HFEREE -
recognised.

(h) Impairment losses (other than goodwill, intangible assets (h) HEERE (BEREREFHFHZELE

with indefinite useful lives)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.
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3.

(h)

(@)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Impairment losses (other than goodwill, intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives) (cont’d)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental and/or for
capital appreciation. On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured using fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment properties are included in consolidated

income statement for the period in which they arise.

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use is regarded
as held for capital appreciation purpose and classified as an
investment property, and carried at fair value. Changes in fair value
of the leasehold land are recognised directly in consolidated income

statement for the period in which changes take place.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in consolidated income statement

for the period in which the item is derecognised.

An investment property is transferred at fair value to property and
other fixed assets when the property begins to be occupied by
the owner. Gain or loss arising from change in fair value of the
investment property upon the transfer is included in consolidated

income statement.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESHRME (F)
POLICIES (cont'd)

(i) Investment properties (cont’d) (i) REY*R (#)
An owner-occupied property is transferred from property and EXTERAZYERRIEAFEFERAR
other fixed assets to investment property at fair value when it LNAFEBMEREMEETEEESRES
is evidenced by the end of owner-occupation. The difference KREMF PREREBRAEEATEZE
between the carrying amount and fair value at the date of transfer ERREEBSTEIF 165 [ME K
is accounted for as a revaluation increase in accordance with B K& ] PASE B i A BR - BL1& 1E 85
HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. On the subsequent sale ERREEER FHELFHEHEERE
or retirement of assets, the relevant revaluation reserve will be BERBEF -
transferred directly to retained profits.

(j) Property and other fixed assets ) Y¥EREMBEEEE
Property and other fixed assets (other than properties under MEREMETEEE (ZRBPWERIN)
development) are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated BRARE G RIENERZERERE
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. B8R -
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property and other MERAMETEEE (ZFRFPWERIN)
fixed assets (other than properties under development) over their ZIE N REMG A ERF R RERE
estimated useful lives and after taking into account their estimated SHEENERETE  BUAMEKAE - F
residual value, using the straight line method, at the following rates FrEXRMT:
per annum:
Type Basis B HE
Buildings Over the shorter of BF RIBL AR

the remaining unexpired period E o F ER
of the lease and 40 years P04
&R EE

Furniture, fixtures and equipments 3 to 10 years R KB REHE Sy g
Yachts and motor vehicles 3 to 10 years 5 e 2 B 4 S S

(k) Properties under development (k) ZEFHYH
When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of EERPEEE HEXTBRARZHEE
development for production, for rental or for administrative T RIEF  HE T IS B ETRMNE
purposes, the leasehold land component is classified as a prepaid ERIBRAR - WK HEAA IR E R AR -
lease payment and amortised on a straight-line basis over the TEREHA - /REE TP {E 2 BIHE
lease term. During the construction period, the amortisation charge WRABHEBETREFZKAF 5 - HEERE
provided for the leasehold land is recognised as part of costs of FRENREMNEBRREEBET K- E
buildings under construction. Buildings under construction are FRAI AR IR ITE -
carried at cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation
of buildings commences when they are available for use.

()  Property interests held for future development () BEAEZRREZYFEZ

Property interests held for future development represents a right
to develop properties on a piece of land upon payment of a final

amount, and are carried at cost less any identified impairment loss.

FIFRRERZMERSEN N RE
FORRE L EBRRYRZER - IR
AR BB EREESR-



—ZEZEN\FEFIHR Annual Report 2008

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #= & Bf 7 3R 3% M 5=
For the year ended 3 Ist Decembey; 2008

HE-FFNG+-A=+—AIFER

85

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

(m) Stock of properties

(n)

(0)

(p)

Stock of properties, which are held for trading, is stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined
by reference to sale proceeds received after the balance sheet date
less selling expenses, or by management estimates based on the

prevailing market conditions.

Inventories for cosmetic products
Inventories comprise finished goods and raw materials which are

stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost represents the invoiced cost of inventories. Costs are assigned
to individual items on the weighted-average basis. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Intangible assets

Trading rights, exchange rights and trademark

Trading rights, gold and silver exchange rights and trademark are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less any identified
impairment loss. The amortisation period adopted for intangible

assets is 5 years.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in consolidated income statement.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEETBRME (8)
POLICIES (cont'd)

(p) Financial instruments (cont’d) (p) =ATE(HE)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in

respect of such category of financial assets are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where

appropriate, a shorter period.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have two
subcategories, including financial assets held-for-trading and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in

consolidated income statement in the period in which they arise.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

(i) it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

(i) it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual

pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

(i) it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.
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3.

(p)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial assets (cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are not those
financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term but designated by management as such at inception.
A financial asset other than a financial asset held-for-trading may
be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial

recognition if:

(i) such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

(i)  the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group's documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided

internally on that basis; or

(i) it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value through

profit or loss.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in
consolidated income statement in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in consolidated income statement

includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEETBRME (8)
POLICIES (cont'd)
(p) Financial instruments (cont’d) (p) =ATE(HE)
Financial assets (cont'd) THEE (&)
Loans and receivables ERNEKEHE

Loans and receivables (including advances to associates, advances
to investee companies, loans receivable, advance to a minority
shareholder, pledged deposits, trading receivables and deposits,
time deposits, bank balances and cash) are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment

losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as any of the other categories (set
out above). In addition to equity investments, the Group has also
designated certain debt investments as available-for-sale financial

assets.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
is removed from equity and recognised in consolidated income
statement. Any impairment losses on available-for-sale financial

assets are recognised in consolidated income statement.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in consolidated
income statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is

impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or
loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance
sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future

cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.
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3.

(p)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial assets (cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost

is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:
(i)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
(i)  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

(i) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period, observable changes in national or local

economic conditions that are correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss
is recognised in consolidated income statement when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original

effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent

periods.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEETBRME (8)
POLICIES (cont'd)

(p) Financial instruments (cont’d) (p) =ATE(HE)

Financial assets (cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in consolidated income
statement. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to consolidated income

statement.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through consolidated income statement
to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost

would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed in consolidated income statement in subsequent
periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognised directly in equity. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event

occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the asset of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial

liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

(p) Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial liabilities and equity (cont'd)
Effective interest method
The effect interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life

of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial liabilities held for trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial

recognition.

A financial liabilities is classified as held-for-trading if:

(i) it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

(i) itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual

pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

(i) it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEETBRME (8)
POLICIES (cont'd)

(p) Financial instruments (cont’d) (p) =ATE(HE)

Financial liabilities and equity (cont'd)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (cont'd)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held-for-trading
may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial

recognition if:

(i) such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

(i)  the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group's documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided

internally on that basis; or

(i) it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value through

profit or loss.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in
consolidated income statement in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in consolidated income statement

includes any interest paid or received on the financial liability.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including creditors and accruals, securities
trading and margin payable, deposits received, bank and other
borrowings, amounts due to associates and amounts due to
minority shareholders) are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.
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3.

(p)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity (cont’d)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain both liability
and equity components are classified separately into respective
items on initial recognition. On initial recognition, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds
and the fair value assigned to the liability component, representing
the conversion option for the holder to convert the bonds into

equity, is included in equity as convertible bonds — equity reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component, representing by the option
to convert the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Group, will remain in convertible bonds — equity reserve until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case the balance stated
in convertible bonds — equity reserve will be transferred to share
capital and share premium). Where the option remains unexercised
at the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible bonds — equity
reserve will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated income statement upon conversion or

expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly to convertible bonds —
equity reserve. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds using the

effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEETBRME (8)
POLICIES (cont'd)

(p) Financial instruments (cont’d) (p) =ATE(HE)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group and not designed as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in

accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are deemed as
financial assets held for trading or financial liabilities held for trading.
Changes in fair values of such derivatives are recognised directly in

consolidated income statement.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in

consolidated income statement.

For financial liabilities, they are removed from consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid or payable is recognised in consolidated income

statement.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FZFHERHE (&)
POLICIES (cont'd)

(9) Revenue recognition (q9) HUAER
Revenue from properties developed for sale is recognised on BEERMEZHEWAERNTANRD Z
the execution of a binding sales agreement or when the relevant HEHENERHREEERLLAHA

occupation permit or certificate of compliance is issued by the

respective building authority, whichever is the later.

Revenue from properties held for sale is recognised on the
execution of a binding sales agreement. Payments received from
the purchasers prior to this stage are recorded as deposits received

on sales of properties and are grouped under current liabilities.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from properties
under operating leases, is recognised in consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant

lease.

Sale of securities investments are recognised on a trade date basis.
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Brokerage income on dealings in securities and futures contracts EERSLHPEA N 2K EWAARE
and the profit and loss on trade in securities and futures contracts BEEFRBAEAGN 25N REERAT
are recognised on the transaction dates when the relevant contract FHREEER 2R HBHER

notes are executed.

Management fee income is recognised in accordance with terms
of respective agreements over the relevant period in which the

services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's

right to receive payment have been established.

Revenue from sales of cosmetic product is recognised when goods

are delivered and titles have been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the

financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEMRE (&)
POLICIES (cont'd)

(r) Taxation (r) E’IE

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxation profit differs from profit as reported in consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further excludes
items that are never taxable and deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction

that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to consolidated income
statement except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in

equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the entity

intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

(s) Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental

expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

(t) Foreign currencies
The consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$, which
is the Group's functional and presentation currency. In preparing the
financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign
currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the prevailing rates on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

3.

(s)

)

T2EHRRBE (8)

A
REDGRRERHEEEREGRZE
AEbo B O RmES = AR A 2B
B AP EHL - MEREBHEHO P ERE
ELik ol

A5 3 75 4 A
EEBANZEASBAGUNEREEZEH
BOEREFANERER AR
EEMANBEEZVIZEERAGMNA
HEBEZREERE  WARLEZELD
FHBBRFZ

KE B BAAN
BELEROEN 2SS NERER
BERNFEREGERERP MR 1A
BT SL 4 TR 4 S8 2 B UR R FE UK A A
ERARERBANFRRRARSHAX
O,

s
RAMBERRTDAREEZEREIE
KAL) EREENEEER ZUB
WRE - UEBEEEERINZEE (51
BIETZRHGBEXSABRAZEXRILE
AR (IZERKEZTELER
BZER)GE-REEER AT
BzE¥BEEAEERRAZEXREN
BE  DSNETIEL RATFEIIRZIFE
KEBNEEATFTEZERBRAZERSE
FIE o IMNESIEIL AR LR ARGt EZ
FEBBEBETEENHRE -



98

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED EABX£&E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 Bf #& 3R 3% M 5

For the year ended 3 1st December, 2008 BE_FENFLT _HA=1—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEETBRME (8)
POLICIES (cont'd)

(t)  Foreign currencies (cont’d) t) SH (&)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in consolidated income statement in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in consolidated
income statement for the period except for differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the

exchange differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated into presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in consolidated
income statement in the period in which the foreign operation is

disposed of.

(u) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when

the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated income

statement in the period in which they are incurred.

(v) Retirement benefits costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

(w) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the
Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present

value where the effect is material.

(x) Prepaid lease payments
Payments for obtaining land use rights are accounted for as prepaid
lease payments and are charged to consolidated income statement

on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

(v) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (a) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (b) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or

(c) has joint control over the Group;

(i)  the party is an associate;
(i) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(iv) the party is @ member of the key management personnel of

the Group or its parent;

(v) the party is a close member of the family of any individual

referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any

individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related

party of the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

(z) Operating segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal management reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-makers. Segment assets consist primarily of fixed assets,
financial assets and other assets. Segment liabilities comprise
financial liabilities and other liabilities. The Group evaluates
performance on the basis of profit or loss from operations after
tax expense and minority interests but not including the major
non-cash items. The major non-cash items are fair value changes
on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax expense. No intersegment turnover is accounted for as the
intersegment turnover is mainly the rental income for administrative

purpose.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies which are described
in Note 3, management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (cont'd)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (cont’d)

Fair value and impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

As described in Note 5, the management use their judgment in selecting
an appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not quoted
in an active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by market
practitioners are applied. The Group's unlisted equity instruments with
carrying amount of HK$235,684,000 (2007: HK$229,954,000) are
valued using a discounted cash flow analysis based on assumptions
supported, where possible, by observable market prices or rates. The
estimation of fair value of these equity instruments also includes some

assumptions not supported by observable market prices or rates.

Impairment loss in respect of accounts receivable

The policy for impairment loss in respect of accounts receivable of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis
of accounts and on management's judgment. A considerable amount
of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. If the financial conditions of debtors of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make

payments, additional allowances may be required.

Investment properties

As described in Note 21, investment properties are stated at fair value
based on the valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based on method of valuation
which involves certain estimates. In relying on the valuation report,
the management has exercised their judgment and is satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market conditions. Should
there are changes in assumptions due to change of market conditions, the

fair value of the investment properties will change in future.

Income taxes

As at 31st December, 2008, a deferred tax asset of approximately
HK$75,153,000 (2007: HK$89,682,000) in relation to unused tax losses
has been recognised in the consolidated balance sheet. The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future profits generated are less than expected,
a material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in consolidated income statement for the period in which such

a reversal takes place.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (cont'd)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (cont’d)
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has been impairment
of goodwill and intangible assets in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Notes 3(c) and 3(0). The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units are determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by management on the future operation of the business, pre-tax discount

rates, and other assumptions underlying the value-in-use calculations.

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

4. BREF A KEET T
AR ETZ2HRR (&)

EREHEZHBEH B ()
BERELEEZHE

REBBBEH TIOR3z B BERE
FHRERELEELETRENA - REELE
iz eREREEBEEFEEETE -
FEREEAELIFEEAEEBHRRERKS
BERZAEFRBR HARREREMtAR
EREBEEEZRR-

5. @i T A

(a) @I EAEBEF

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value through RATFEFARGR CREE:
profit or loss:
Held-for-trading HIEEERR - 367,753
Designated as at fair value through WA AEA T EFT ARG
profit or loss - 101,516
Loans and receivables (including time SRk ENRE (2EEBRER
deposits, bank balances and cash) SRITEBEIRE) 13,368,932 9,154,392
Available-for-sale financial assets TEERMEE 468,127 11,916,268
Financial liabilities cRAE
Financial liabilities at fair value through BRATEFARTERZ
profit or loss classified as held-for- TREBE WORR
trading: FIEEERR
Derivative financial instruments TAESRIA 24,432 50,851
Amortised cost B A 12,522,221 13,305,874
Financial guarantee contracts MBERERN 618 618




—ZEZEN\FEFIHR Annual Report 2008

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #= & Bf 7 3R 3% M 5=
For the year ended 3 Ist Decembey; 2008

#

P oEFNEFES A=+ —HILFZF

103

5.

(b)

()

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

. the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market bid

prices and ask prices respectively;

. the fair value of derivative instruments are determined based

on the quoted prices provided by the securities’ broker; and

. the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using the
estimated future cash flows and the current market rate of

return.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity investments,
debt securities, borrowings, loans receivable, trade receivables,
trade payables, derivatives financial instruments, financial guarantee
liabilities, equity-linked notes, time deposits and bank balances.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

There has been no change to the Group's risk exposure relating
to financial instruments or the manner in which it manages and

measures the risks.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
Market risk

0]

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the Group's monetary assets and monetary
liabilities by value and the rental income are denominated in
HK$, and Renminbi (“‘RMB"), except certain debt securities
are denominated in foreign currencies. Certain cash and bank
balances are denominated in RMB, United States dollars
("USD") and Pound Sterling (“GBP"). The conversion of RMB
into other currencies is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the government
of the People's Republic of China (the "PRC"). The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk in respect of exchange
fluctuation of HK$ against RMB. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
current assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the

reporting date are as follows:

Assets BE

RMB AR #&

Euro (“EUR") BT ([Bxol)

usD ETT

Swiss Franc (“CHF") AR ([ AR ])
GBP HEE

Liabilities =

RMB AR &

usD ETT

CHF He £ A BB

SR TE(F)

EHEREERERKE (&)

% 2 %
() MR

AEBABHIEREERER AR
BEAMESBABAETEAR
BARBREBEN HE
TEBBSFNNIINEREEELN -
ETRERBRITERDAARE
SR ([Ex)) RESE ([HE )&
BE-BEARESEMERAET
PEARAMBE (THE])BFR
2 SMNEE il 2 SRR R AR BT
AEEERBTHEARE ZEXKE
i 7« 52 5 BE [ o 7N 5% 18 3R B 3
ESMNEREEE KA B2 NS
TR AKREREYEEHINE
[2\ B 3 7 4 BB B Y B KA
=

REBUINETHEZEBEERE
BaErR SR zcRESBEN
T

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
3,105,010 554,555
36,172 =
825,785 1,570,819
- 194,690

401 404
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
94,257 37953
24,273 50,851

— 177,529
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5.

(c)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
Market risk (cont'd)

0]

Foreign currency risk (cont'd)

Sensitivity analysis on foreign currency risk

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in the HK$ against the relevant foreign
currencies. As HK$ are pegged to USD, it is assumed that
there would be no material currency risk exposure between
these two currencies and therefore is excluded from the
analysis below. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management's assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items, and adjusts their translation at the period
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes external loans as well as loans to foreign
operations within the Group where the denomination of the
loan is in a currency other than the currency of the lender
or the borrower. A positive number below indicates an
increase in profit where the relevant currencies strengthen
5% against the HK$. For a 5% weakening of the relevant
currencies against the HK$, there would be an equal and

opposite impact on the profit and the balances below would

be negative.

Assets =93

Impact of RMB AREB 228
Profit or loss A&

Impact of EUR BT 2 R B
Profit or loss A&

Impact of CHF M EB e
Profit or loss BE

Impact of GBP EBEIRE
Profit or loss BB

The Group's sensitivity to foreign currency has increased
during the current year mainly due to the increase in foreign

currency denominated monetary assets.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd) 5. @I A (8)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) (c) =HEBREZEAERKE (&)

Market risk (cont'd) i E b (&)

(i)  Cash flow interest rate risk (i) BeREMNERERK

The Group has interest bearing assets and variable-rate
borrowings including advances to associates, available-for-
sale investments, loans receivable, borrowings and bank
balances, and is therefore exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk (see Notes 29, 31, 33, 42 and 34(a), (c) for details). The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure

should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Inter-bank Offer Rate, prime

rate or the respective country's inter-bank offer rate.

The followings demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonable
possible change in interest rates with all other variable held

constant, of the Group's (loss) profit before tax (through the

AEBEHEEEREZEEBE (B
REMBEQRRE FERE -
B ER BB RIBITHER) A
SEAEAREReRENERAR (5
& R EE29 31 33 ~42K34(a)
(0)) o 7= 5 B35 B N 4 B7 AR A {) 7
KERBUR - A EEE ST
KRR TREFEEREEHEFEX
R o

AEFEZREREN KRB ETESE
PREBRITRERE BEF =X
HERBERZBITREFBZRK
o

AT RESREMB B ETTE
ZBERT  AEERRBAT (B8R &
MZMEHRSBAERBE 2K

impact of floating rates in advances to associates, available- RE (BRRMNEEARIIE &
for-sale investments, loans receivable, borrowings and bank ®E - BWER EERBITERT
balances). FRERZZR) -

If the floating rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower,
the Group's:

. loss before tax for the year ended 31st December,
2008 would increase/decrease by approximately of
HK$11,102,000 (2007: profit before tax decrease/
increase HK$39,330,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable

rate borrowings.

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has decreased during

the current year mainly due to the increase in bank balances.
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5.

(c)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
Market risk (cont'd)
(i) Price risk

The Group's equity investments classified as available-for-
sale investments and investments held-for-trading which are
measured at fair value at each balance sheet date and expose
the Group to equity price risk. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles. In addition, the Group has appointed
a special team to monitor the price risk and will consider

hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

During the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Group has
disposed all listed equity securities. The sensitivity analyses
below have been determined based on the exposure to

equity price risk at 31st December, 2007.

If equity prices had been 5% higher/lower:

. profit before tax for the year ended 31st December,
2007 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$18,400,000. This was mainly due to the changes in

fair value of investments held-for-trading; and

. securities investments reserve would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$569,500,000 as a result of
the changes in fair value of listed available-for-sale

investments.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd) 5. @t T A (&)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) () zHEBREZEEFERHE (&)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31st
December, 2008 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets are: (a) the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet; and (b) financial guarantee provided by
the Group which is the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to

financial guarantee issued by the Group.

The Group made transactions with counterparties with acceptable
credit quality in conformance to the Group treasury policies
to minimise credit exposure. Acceptable credit ratings from
reputable credit rating agencies and scrutiny of financials for non-
rated counterparties are two important criteria in the selection of
counterparties. The credit quality of counterparties will be closely
monitored over the life of the transaction. The Group reviews its
financial counterparties periodically in order to reduce credit risk
concentrations relative to the underlying size and credit strength of

each counterparties.

In an attempt to forestall adverse market movement, the Group
also monitors potential exposures to each financial institution
counterparties. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group's

credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is

mainly in Hong Kong.

Liquidity risk
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate bank
deposits and cash, monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and

matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by management.
Reports with maturity dates of bank borrowings and thus the
liquidity requirement are provided to management for review
periodically. Management will contact the bankers for renewals of

bank borrowings whenever necessary.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd) 5. @@ T A (&)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) (c) =HBEBREZEHERKE (&)
Liquidity risk (cont'd) B EZEE (&)
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities that will TRERAEBEKEE 2 RBE 1T
be settled into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining RRAEEZ AR REREERES
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. WEEBRA 2 FIABARETHN - TREKE
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual face value ZE2RAERMEE  WRERARNEEE
without applying discounted cash flow model based on the earliest A ERIN &R AAMRES
date on which the Group can be required to pay, was as follows: mEENFHE

At 31st December, 2008
R-BENF+-A=1-H

Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within Within 2 Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year to 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
mEF RERRE
BRA= —£R MEEREF RENE mEEE REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
Derivative financial liabilities f74=4®& &
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4£ &R T A - - - 24,432 24,432 24,432
Non-derivative financial FTELRER
liabilities
Borrowings fEE
- Current — 1.23% 3,163,925 - - 3,163,925 3,163,925
- Non-current N 0.77% - 8,330,083 175,175 8,505,258 8,505,258
Creditors and accruals FREN Y HE - 323,026 - - 323,026 323,026
Securities trading and ERESZHREAR
margin payable REE - 62,702 - - 62,702 62,702
Amounts due to associates REBENRHIE 4.00% - 9,736 - 9,736 9,271
Amounts due to REHHRRHE
minority shareholders 4.00% - 86,235 - 86,235 71,565
3,549,653 8,426,054 175,175 12,150,882 12,141,747

Total @t 3,549,653 8,426,054 199,607 12,175,314 12,166,179
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5.

(©

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

Liquidity risk (cont'd)

Derivative financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Borrowings
- Current
- Non-current
Creditors and accruals
Securities trading and
margin payable
Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to

minority shareholders

Total

At 31st December, 2008 and 2007, it was not probable that the
counterparties to the financial guarantee contracts will claim under
the contracts. Consequently, the carrying amount of financial
guarantee contracts of HK$618,000 (2007: HK$618,000) has not
been presented above.

TEERAR
TEERTA

gAY

fEE
— 51
—3EEDE
e RIE R EGHE
EREFRHEER
REE
REBEDRANE
REDERRTA

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
MiE¥H

LGS

2.33%
3.77%

5.00%

5.00%

5. T HE (&)

(c) ZHEBREZERFERHE (&)
RBEZERE (&)

At 31st December, 2007
RZBB+E+ZA=1—H

Total Totel

Within Within 2 Over  undiscounted carrying

1 year to 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
AERRE

—FR MEEDE RENE mEBR REEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THER FHEL TR THL TAL

= = 50,851 50,851 50,851

2,949,269 = = 2,949,269 2,949,269

= 9,373,145 7444 9,380,589 9,380,589

277,200 15,107 3,459 295,766 295,766

284,165 = = 284,165 284,165

= 9,754 = 9,754 8,941

= 101,063 = 101,063 90,059

3,510,634 9,499,069 10,903 13,020,606 13,008,789

3,510,634 9,499,069 61,754 13,071,457 13,059,640

R=ZTN\FR_FELFT=A=+—
H WBEREHZHFIAERBES
ARERE UL MBERAENZER
{618,000 T ( ZZFZ £ 4F : 618,000/
TOWER ERET -
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6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders of the Company
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at

a reasonable cost.

The Directors actively and regularly review and manage the Group's
capital structure to maximise the returns to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in economic

conditions. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2007.

During the year ended 31st December, 2008 the capital structure of
the Group mainly consists of debts, which include borrowings from
banks, time deposits, bank balances and cash, and equity attributable
to equity holders, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained
profits respectively. The Directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital to monitor its capital structure
on the basis of a gearing ratio. The Group has a target gearing ratio of
30% — 50%, determined as the proportion of net debt to equity. This
ratio is expressed by as a percentage of net borrowings over the total
equity. Net borrowings is calculated as total borrowings (as shown in the

consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents.

6. EXNERERE

A& B EBRE R K4 T Em M RF A
EE REREAEKRARHUBE 2 HAEE
EXN TZERAREAKSBEZERSERE
ZEEN NBERANEEESARBBREER
MO W RE MRS AREE RS-

FERAEEL TR REEAEE Y AARE
BB IS B A AR 5 A AR R
BB ERDEHERRBELBE AR
REMBAL BH-AEEEREHA_TT
LRI TR

RZZEZNF+_A=+—HILFE ~&E
ZEARBEEAES (BRRITZER) &
HER RITERMASUARBRAERFTE A
FE(E AR DRI BB BTN - #if Rk
B -EFGEZERAZKARZERRANE
R NMIZEARBELREEHLEARR
B-ARBZEARABLERZ BRRI0%E
50 R{ET5 3 B A a5 2 L BB FE XL
RRBREEFRERARSER AL -
BEFRNDREERE (MEEEERBRM
NRBRReMREEEBERFE-
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6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd) 6. EXARRER (&)
The gearing ratios as at 31st December, 2008 and 2007 were as follows: RZEBZNER_BZ+LFT+_A=+—HZ
BAREGELEMT
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBIT
Borrowings — due within one year (i) BE-—FANEH®) 3,163,925 2,949,269
Borrowings — due after one year (i) BE——FE&IH() 8,505,258 9,380,589
Total debts (i) B 4RFE (1) 11,669,183 12,329,858
Cash and cash equivalents (ii) e K2 EFEIEA (i) (10,896,959) (6,653,554)
Net debts E#FHE 772,224 5,676,304
Net debts ERHER 772,224 5,676,304
Listed equity securities investments and treasury ETRAFHIEE Kk
products (iii) B & 2 (iii) - (11,808,001)
Net debts (cash position) & (RS ) F5E
(listed equity securities investments and (EMBRAEBEBHEERVE
treasury products less (in excess of) EmE (&) REBFE)
net debts) 772,224 (6,131,697)
Total equity (iv) A% AN #E 25 4R FE (iv) 35,302,649 47,665,533
Net debt to equity ratio (excluding listed equity & 75 /5 28 £ i AN #E 25 Lt 3R
securities investments and treasury products) (T"BEELTRAZFHFKRE R
MEEM) 2.2% 11.9%
Net debt to equity ratio (including listed equity B 7%/% 58 82 i% A #E %5 b & Positive cash
securities investments and treasury products) (B ETRAZARE & position
MEEMm) 2.2% RN FEE
(i)  Borrowings are detailed in Note 42; (i) BERHE25:

(i) Cash and cash equivalents comprise pledged deposits, time (i REEAZHLREEEERBER
deposits, bank balances and cash at the balance sheet date; WER EHAFER RITERRRE

(i) Listed equity securities investments and treasury products are as (i) EMRAFHRERFBEMNHEES

detailed in Notes 31, 36, 37 & 40; 36 - 37 RA40 i
(iv) Total equity includes all share capital, reserves and minority interests (iv) REEBZRAERAHESEME KA -

at the balance sheet date. F
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6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

The decrease in net debt to equity ratio was due to increase in cash and
cash equivalents. Increase in cash and cash equivalents was mainly due to

the disposals of all listed equity securities in the current year.

In relation to brokerage business, Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited,
Fair Eagle Futures Company Limited and Fair Eagle Securities Company
Limited, three wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, are required
to maintain financial resources in accordance with the specified
amount requirements that apply to them under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance imposed by Securities and Future Commission. The
requirements are internally reviewed on a daily basis and reports are
required to submit to Securities and Futures Commission monthly. Full

compliance is observed during the year.

In relation to the formation of the wholly foreign-owned enterprise for
carrying out investment consultation business in the PRC, the Group
was required to pay up the required amount of registered capital for
one wholly owned subsidiary, namely 2% & (b R) R ERBEMBR QA
in 2009. In February 2009, the required registered capital was paid up
within the specified time in accordance with the relevant laws, rules and

regulations of the PRC.

Save as disclosed, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

7. TURNOVER

Turnover represents the aggregate of amounts received and receivable
from the sales of investments held-for-trading, sale of properties held
for sale, property rental income, commission from brokerage, settlement
charges from brokerage, interest income from loan financing and cosmetic

goods sold less returns.

6. BXRAREIE (&)

BERFEARAERL R TRTTARRE R
ReEERBEMN-RENBESEERBIEMN
TEHRNAFEHEME LTRAFES -

MELEBME  ARR=REEMBRARE
ERERRE RERAEERARARKRERS
BERARARBAFA NP EERERZTEGMMA
MERRNEEFZEFRMEGRIFESRER
MR M B ER - ZEZKEBEAEB R LA
BARRZMPEEBERZE S
RAFEEBEEST -

MR EBE R ERPEETREBMRE
ME AEBARERXR _ZEZEANFR—KE
EMBAR (AEXS (R REEMARA
A XNEEMEAZRESE R_TTNF
— R BRBERERER  RAUREEREER
FABEERZEMER-

B E X EE N AR R K EAE I E A R AL
PNEINRBZA Z BR B -

U AL o
7. =xF4

EXRBEROKRMBR I HEREEEZRENRK
A HEREHEDERA DEBEESBA K
e BERBZXZER EFBREMNBK
ARBMBRERER 2 MmEE 2B
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7. TURNOVER (cont'd)

The Group's proceeds from the sale of investments held-for-trading and
the corresponding carrying amount together with the transaction costs
were separated into “Turnover” and “Cost of sales” respectively, in prior
year's consolidated income statement. During the current year, the Group
changed its presentation, as in the opinion of the Directors, it is more
appropriate to present the gains/losses from the sale of investments held-

for-trading in “Turnover” on a net basis.

The effect of this change in presentation was to decrease turnover and
cost of sales for the year ended 31st December, 2008 by approximately
HK$1,529,211,000 representing the carrying amount of investments held-

for-trading disposed of together with the transaction costs during the year.

To conform with the current year's presentation, the carrying amount of
investments held-for-trading disposed of together with transaction costs
for the year ended 31st December, 2007 of HK$3,968,790,000 has been
offset against turnover, resulting in a decrease in turnover and cost of
sales for that year by the same amount. These changes do not have any

impact on the results of the Group in respect of the prior years.

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that are used to make

strategic decisions.

The Group has seven reportable segments — property development
and trading, property leasing for retail, property leasing for non-retail,
listed available-for-sale equity investments, floating rate and fixed rate
notes, other listed held-for-trading investments and treasury products
and unlisted investments, investment holding and brokerage. The
segmentations are based on the information about the operation of the

Group that management uses to make decisions.

/EEEH
/N

i

7. EEX

RBEFEZGEARAR AEELHERFEE
BZREZFAB/FARBBEREEERRZMK
AR A TEEB| RIHEERAK] - HRES
ERAN [Z2XB| ARFEERZHRHERE
BEZREZ Wz BEBRARE BAEHE
RAFEEREBEHRTA -

EREMERIA I EAERE-_STN\F
T A=+ HLEFEZEEBRBEERAR
A#91,529,211,000% ¢ IR ANFE & 2 £
EEBZRE?REBEERRSKA -

%ﬁé$¢§22ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ§f$$t¢+:
AR=T—RILFEHEsHEEBE REE
RS 7 BREE3,968,790,000/8 ST E £ 4 %

Y SRR TFECEEERHEN AL

TR - HWEBHTIEHAEEBAFE 2 XE

SRR -

8- I\\<J_§ )é\ %ié
AEBERBETBLERRERNIELREERE
REMZBREEELENE-

AEERBELRAZHRS B NEERKREER
?E%%%%~#§%%%%E~tmh$%%
RE FELERRE HMLWRHEERRKE
MM EEREIFETRE KEEKRIELR
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont'd)

Principal activities are as follows:
Property development and —  Property development and sales of

trading trading properties

Property leasing for retail Property leasing from retail
properties

Property leasing for non-retail

Property leasing from non-retail
properties

Listed available-for-sale equity —  Listed equity securities in
investments available-for-sale investments
Floating rate and fixed rate — Listed and unlisted floating rate
notes notes and fixed rate notes in
available-for-sale investments
Other listed held-for-trading — Listed securities investments in
investments and treasury investments held-for-trading,
products over-the-counter trading and
structured products

Unlisted investments, — Unlisted securities investments,
investment holding and trading and brokerage

brokerage

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in the principal accounting policies. The Group evaluates
performance on the basis of profit or loss from operations after tax
expense and minority interests but not including the major non-cash
items. The major non-cash items are fair value changes on investment
properties together with their respective deferred tax expense. No
intersegment turnover is accounted for as the intersegment turnover is

mainly the rental income for administrative purpose.

The Group's measurement methods used to determine reported segment

profit or loss remain unchanged from 2007.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that operate
different activities. They are managed separately because each business

has different market and requires different marketing strategies.
Further, the business units are also managed to operate in different
countries separately. Revenue and result are attributed to countries on the

basis of the properties located.

No major customer is for the Group's revenue and result.

pUY =
8. KENEH(BE)

TEXHEABOT
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FEEREBRE - REFEREBEZLEWMR
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H ETHRERE — REBFEEEZLTE

BRENMMEEM HFRE B S

RAEBIEEMm

FLETRE REE -
B B2 48 40 AR 75
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B ML R

S B2 BHBR R E B BB AL E
Rl A AR X BUIRRI % R D BUR T 1%
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont'd) 8.

Operating segment information is presented below:

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FmEWER
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE_ZZ N \F+_A=+—HLHFE
Other listed
held-for- Unlisted
Listed Floating trading  investments,
Property Property Property  available-for- rateand  investments  investment
development leasing  leasing for  sale equity fixed rate  and treasury  holding and All other
and trading for retail non-retail  investments notes products  brokerage segments  Consolidated
AhET  FETRE
NERR 2ENE  FRENE EHRA H5Rk KHEEERE  REERR ]
REH BE BE H#ERE EEEE RUEER BERY AR E 58
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiExn Tin TR Tin TiEn Tin Tin Tin Tin
Continuing operations 5 Y
Major cash items excluding in WARSNZEEREER
Revenue
- Hong Kong &8 = = = 6,888,426 - 160,604 - - 7,049,030
- other countries -HER - - - - - 125,583 - - 1,252,583
- - - 6,888,426 - 1,413,147 - - 8,301,573
Revenue WA
Revenue from external customers RESRERZHA
- Hong Kong &k 370,393 581,703 299,224 - - (13,237) 2,115 26,903 1,287,101
- PRC i - 43,817 36,774 - - - - - 80,651
~ other countries —HiER - - - - - (102,827) - - (102,827)
370,393 625,580 335,998 - - (116,064) 22,115 26,903 1,264,925
Revenue from external customers REABIBRFEER KL
after minoriy interests SERPRA 314,814 624,602 333,973 = = (116,064) 0,115 26903 1,206,343
Result £ |
Segment result HE%E
- Hong Kong -&k 190,137 545,192 282,746 3,763,990 250 25,072 246,473 46,591 5,101,051
-PRC ~hE - 36,091 31,999 - - - 4,153 - 12,843
~ other countries —HiER - - - - - (102,066) (73,660) - (175,126)
190,137 581,883 314,745 3,763,990 250 (76,994) 171,566 46,591 4,998,168
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont'd) 8. (%)

HAWER (H)
BE-TTN\E+-A=f-AILFE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (cont’d)
For the year ended 31st December, 2008

Other listed
held-for- Unlisted
Listed Floating trading  investments,
Property Property Property  available-for- rateand investments investment
development leasing  leasing for sale equity fixed rate  and treasury  holding and All other
and trading for retail non-retail  investments notes products  brokerage segments  Consolidated
Hfttd  FLTRE
NEYR 2ENE  FRENE LA HERk KAEEERE  REEBRR fi&
EL HE BE HERE EEEE RUEER BER% RftAE g8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn T TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
Unallocated corporate expenses, net ~ RARZARXLFHE (210,095)
Finance costs BHER
~ finance cost on listed securities - tHEFRER
investments and treasury products HEERZHBER - - - - - 3,471 - - 3,477
- unallocated finance costs -AAEZHBER (286,648)
Other gains and losses, net s R ERFE
- impairment loss recognised
in respect of advance to an HERALRERR
associate - 342 - - - - - (5,814) (5,412)
- impaiment loss recognised in -HR-RBEATEE
respect of interest in an associate AL REER - - - - - - - (653) (653)
- unallocated other gains and —RABZEMRER
losses, net B 16,293
Share of results of associates BEBENAZE
~ property sales -NEHE 36,832 - - - - - - - 36,832
- attributable gross income —ElERALR
Hong Kong B = 2,313 18,625 - - - - - 20,938
PRC i - 90,771 3,960 - - - - - 94,737
- operating cost ~@ERA
Hong Kong B - (1.172) (3,093) - - - - - (4,265)
PRC = = (40,849) (3,488) . - 5 5 (39588) (83,925
- other results —HihRE - - - - - - 2,791 (12,006) (9,215)
Profit before tax and minarity interests BRI Rk Bk R B
(excluding major non-cash items) A (MR EE
FHERE) 4,570,172
Income tax expense FERAX (75,536)
Minority interests LURRRR
~ for property development and -NEZEREE
trading (81,019) 5 c 5 - 5 - 5 (41,019)
- unallocated minority interest -KPB2 O BRRER (3,798)
Reportable segment results T2RAEER 185,950 633,204 330,749 3,763,990 250 (73,517) 180,357 (11,470)
Profit for the year from continuing BRARFERRFEA
operations attributable to equity EhREEEEEL
holders of the parent REREH 4,449,819
Discontinued operation BRLBERY
Loss for the year fiom discontinued ~~ BAARAERHEA
operation attributable to equity BEERIEEXHK2
holders of the parent rEEBR (979)
Core profit (excluding major non-  HAEF (MEBEE
cash items) ¥REER) 4,448,840
Major non-cash items TEFREEE
~ fair value changes on investment -RENFZZATEED
properties (including share of (BEEEHENAE
results of associates and minority BROUBE
interests) ) (1,525,480)
- deferred tax -EEHE 1,582,264
Loss for the year attributable to ~ SARRAERFEEAEL
equity holders of the parent REERR (1,494,376)
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont'd) 8. KENHE(E)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET REEEARER
At 31st December, 2008 RZZEZNF+_A=+—H
Other listed
held-for- Unlisted
Listed Floating trading  investments,
Property Property Property available-for- rateand  investments  investment
development leasing  leasing for  sale equity fixed rate  and treasury  holding and Al other
and trading for retail non-retail  investments notes products  brokerage segments  Consolidated
AhET  KETRE
NEYR 2ENE  FRENE ETHRA H5Rk KHFEERE REERR k]
REE BE BE H#ERE EEEE RUEER BERY AR 8 58
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TER TiEx TER TER Tin Tin Tin Tin
Assets EE
Segment assets PRAE
- Hong Kong &k 2,274,073 19,406,122 17,845,171 - 221,813 330,021 490,545 103,282 40,671,627
-PRC —hE 5,542,424 612,654 598,822 - - - - - 6,753,900
- offer countries -EpER 1,686,144 - - - - - - - 1,686,144
Interests in associates BEDAER
- Hong Kong &k 278,400 64,701 334,951 - - - 3,517 545 682,174
- PRC —hE = 168,765 18,788 - - - - - 187,553
Advances to associates BBERANE
- Hong Kong &k 923,409 22,683 48,138 - - - 1 5,416 999,647
- PRC -1 699,075 71,147 8,588 - - - - - 784,810
Reportable segment assets 2RHBEE 11,403,525 20,352,072 18,855,058 - 221,813 330,021 494,123 109,243 51,765,855
Unallocated corporate assets Lk PNV 111,684
Consolidated total assets GR@EE 51,877,539
Liabilities af
Segment liabilities HEEE
- Hong Kong &8 201,537 336,100 16,871 - 150 25,048 64,229 16,073 720,014
- PRC —HE 67,231 16,022 14,745 - - = = = 97,998
- other countries ~HtER 118 - - - - - - - 118
Reportable segment liabilties DEE R 268,886 352,122 91,622 - 150 25,048 64,229 16,073 818,130
Unallocated corporate liabilities Lk FANGI-L 15,756,760
Consolidated total liabiities GREafk 16,574,890
Additions to non-current assets REZFRDEE
(other than financial instruments (€I ARELHE
and deferred tax assets) EERD) 537,590 294,128 154,194 - - - 2,791 13
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont'd) 8. KEDE(E)
OTHER MATERIAL ITEMS HhEREH
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE-_TTZN\F+-_A=+—HILFE

Consolidated Consolidated

Adjustments income income Consolidated
Reportable Adjustments for major  statement  statement income
segments for non-cash  (continuing (discontinued  statement
totals unallocated items  operations)  operation) totals

ITE  GEKER HKREKEXR
AE2H F*o8e HFREEA (5% (B&LE HREWER
PEBE HE ZHAE gex%K) Rexw) X

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER TER TER TR

Interest income HMEHA 228.405 - - 228,405 38 228,443
Interest expenses FIEXH 3,471 (286,648) - (283,171) - (283,171)
Net interest income FIBWA ()55

(expenses) 231,882 (286,648) - (54,766) 38 (54,728)
Depreciation and FrEREH

amortisation - (20,810) - (20,810) - (20,810)
Fair value changes on REMEZ DTEE

investment properties - - (7,467,668)  (7,467,668) - (7,467,668)
Share of results of associates {5 B & 1A\ B 2 4& 55,102 - (63,490) (8,388) - (8,388)
Income tax (credit) expense 8% (B @)% (75,536) - 1,582,264 1,506,728 - 1,506,728

Minority interests DYREE R (41,019) (3,798) 5,678 (39,139) 971 (38,168)
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W@ AL A\ K =
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont'd) 8. KENEW(E)
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT melEx
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 BE—ETEt+E+-_A=+—BItEE
Other listed
held-for- Unlisted
Listed Floating trading  investments,
Property Property Property  available-for- rsteand  investments investment
development leasing leasing for sale equity fiedrate  andtreasury  holding and All other
and trading for retail non-refail  investments notes products brokerage segments  Consolidated
Efgtm  FLmRE
PIES TENE  FTENZ ERRE FER BFEERE  REBRR g
REE ik HE RERE -6 RIrEER Bk 58 w4

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TEL TAL TEL TAL TAL TR TiEn TR

Major cash items excluding in WAL 2T EREER

Revenue
- Hong Kong ~E# - - - 1662291 - 3812319 - - 5474610
- other countries ~EHER - - - - - 339,240 - - 339,240
- - - 1,662,291 - 4,151,559 - = 5,813,850
Revenue KA
Revenue from exteral customers RESNEEPZMA
- Hong Kong -&% 3,403,535 476,129 226,513 - - 196,483 99,083 19,357 4,421,100
- PRC —f = 39,891 30,798 - - - - - 70,689
~ other countries —HiER - - - - - (13,714) - - (13,714)
3,403,535 516,020 257311 = = 182,769 99,083 19,357 4,478,075

Revenue from extemal customers after ~ REFIBRDBRERRE 2
minority interests MNEEFRA 2,960916 514,453 255,552 - - 182,769 99,083 19,357 4,032,130
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont'd) 8. KEDE(E)
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (cont’d) mEWER (E)

For the year ended 31st December, 2007 BE TS+ HE+—-_A=+—HILEE

Other listed
held-for- Unlisted
Listed Floating trading  investments,
Property Property Property  available-for- rsteand  investments investment
development leasing leasing for sale equity fixedraste  andtreasury  holding and All other
and trading for retal non-retail  investments notes products brokerage segments  Consolidated
Hgtm  FLHRE
NEER TENE  FTENR EaRE BER REEERE  RESRR it}
REE fig HE FERE EERE  RMEER BER% EAH &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Fitn TR Fin TR FiEn T#n TR Tin
Result 25
Segment result PEXE
- Hong Kong &% 980,959 432,344 207,947 974,757 = 322,939 314,039 34,438 3,267423
- PRC —if = 34211 26,525 = = = 4326 = 65,062
- other countries ~EfER - - - - - 21,065 - = 21,065
980,959 466,555 234,472 974,757 = 344,004 318,365 34,438 3,353,550
Unallocated corporate expenses, net kA EZAARHEFS (219,727)
Finance costs BHER
~ finance cost on listed securities - tTESRERGE
investments and treasury products ERBBER = - - - - (118,733) - - (118733)
- unallocated finance costs —RABHBER (456,691)
Other gains and losses, net HM&E&@@‘}%
~ impairment loss recognised -RBN-RBEAT
in respect of advance to an mlﬁﬁﬁwz
associate REER - 576 - - - - - (2,460) (1,884)
- unallocated other gains and —RABZEMKRER
losses, net BRFE (69,769)
Share of results of associates BiEBERAEE
- property sales -NEHE 463,664 - - - - - - - 463,664
- attributable gross income —ElRALR
Hong Kong BE - 1,879 14,547 - - - - - 16,426
PRC i = 69,085 3,047 - - - - - 7332
- operating cost —BERA
Hong Kong & - (464) (3.121) - - - - - (3,585)
PRC L - (36,131) (1,798) - - - - (8883)  (46812)
- other results ~Et¥iE - - - - - - 8,641 31368 40,009
Profit before tax and minoriy interests BBt AT R SRR AE 2 AT
(excluding major non-cash items) (WBRTEFREER) 3,028,780
Income tax expense FRRAX (182:891)
Minority interests LURRRR
-~ for property development and -NEXERER
trading (242,831) - - - - - - - (242,831)
- unallocated minority interest ~RPEDERERER 129,075
Reportable segment results DES ViEEe 1,201,792 501,500 247347 974,757 = 225271 327,006 54,463
Core profit (excluding major BoEf (RETEFRS
non-cash items) EH) 2,732,133
Major non-cash items TEFHLEE
-~ fair value changes on investment -RENEZATE
properties (including share of 29 (EER
resuls of associates and minority BERAFER
interests) DERRER) 6,457.930
- deferred tax —EERE (994,206)
Profit for the year attributable to ~ SAFRAEREE AL
equity holders of the parent REEEA

8,195,857
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont'd) 8. KEDME(E)

I

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET HEEERERX
At 31st December, 2007 R-ZZEZLtF+_A=+—H

Other listed
held-for- Unlisted
Listed Floating trading  investments,
Property Property Property  available-for- rsteand  investments investment
development leasing leasing for sale equity fixedrate  andtreasury  holding and All other
and trading for retail non-refail  investments notes products brokerage segments  Consolidated
Atm  FETRE:
NELRE TENE  FTENE LA FER BEERE  REBRR il
REE HE HE FERE TERE  RMEER 5k EthnE &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAL TET TAL ThT TEL THL TAL THL
Assets EE
Segment assets PEEE
- Hong Kong 1456001 24624847 17890657 11,389,662 - 504909 1,883,066 122878 57872020
- PRC 1,623,276 1,398,478 1,138,182 = = = = = 4,159,936
- other countries 1,660,631 - - - - 381,406 - - 2,042,037
Interests in associates BENAER
- Hong Kong &% 442,287 1,879 493,724 = - - - 111,174 1,049,064
- PRC —HE = 145,657 16,215 = = = = = 161,872
Advances to associates EE NG E4]
- Hong Kong &k 796,655 25,812 64,655 - - - - 6,134 893,256
- PRC ~# 373,750 71147 8,588 = = = = = 459,485
Reportable segment assets N2RABEE 6,352,600 26,273,820 19,612,021 11,389,662 - 886,315 1,883,066 240,186 66,637,670
Unallocated corporate assets OB NREE 76,637
Consolidated total assets GRBEE 66,714,307
Liabilities af
Segment liabilities AEER
- Hong Kong &% 16,404 368,750 153,951 5,287 - 99,679 231,422 29,710 905,203
- PRC -1 8531 16,336 1451 - - - - - 39,118
- other countries ~HipER 104 - - - - 177605 - - 177709
Reportable segment liabilities ERFEERE 25,039 385,086 168,202 5287 - 277284 231,422 29,710 1,122,030
Unallocated corporate liabilities FVoE PANCN-Y 17,926,744
Consolidated total liabilities GREBAR 19,048,774
Additions to non-current assets REEERBEE
(other than financial instruments (@RI ARELHES
and deferred tax assets) ERD) 2,414,530 294,154 218,759 - - - 8,641 22,667
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (cont'd) 8. KEDE(E)

OTHER MATERIAL ITEMS HitERIEH

For the year ended 31st December, 2007 HE-_TT+F+-_A=+—HILFE

Adjustments  Consolidated

Reportable  Adjustments for major income
segments for non-cash statement
totals unallocated items totals
Al 2 5 Aoz FEFRRE Halaxk
Pa E FHE EHAZHAE ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET
Interest income B U A 270,798 = = 270,798
Interest expenses FMEXZ (118,733) (456,691) - (575,424)
Net interest income (expenses) FEWA (ZH)FE 152,065 (456,691) - (304,626)
Depreciation and amortisation e K # - (16,699) - (16,699)
Fair value changes on investment & &% 2 N FEE
properties - — 6,421,788 6,421,788
Share of results of associates B LS N B A 542,034 = 59,397 601,431
Income tax expense FTiSHiF & (182,891) - (994,206)  (1,177,097)
Minority interests D EIR R = (242,831) 129,075 (23,255) (137,011)
9. OTHER INCOME 9. HEAbUA
Continuing operations FEEEENR
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Included in other income are: A N E
Building management fee income BFEEEBRA 68,109 56,879
Building management fee expenses BFEEBES N (42,113) (38,940)
25,996 17,939

Exchange gain, net EH W ERR - 3,451
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10. INVESTMENT INCOME, NET 10. B WA F 5
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Continuing operations BEEEEK
Gain on financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFAREREDER
profit or loss classified as held-for-trading: FEEBEZ @ RE E W
Unrealised gain on investments held-for-trading ~ ##{EE & 218 & 2 A &35 I - 20,372

Financial assets at fair value through profit or BAFEGFARGEREDER

loss classified as designated: Bk CREE:
Unrealised loss on equity-linked notes REEMER 2 RKBRER - (46,311)
Realised (loss) gain on equity-linked notes REHBER 22BN

(BHR) W= (16,221) 2,427

Net loss on financial assets at fair value through & A FEF ARG KW DR
profit or loss classified as designated Bk eMEEREER (16,221) (43,884)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or A FEFARSEWHE A

loss classified as held-for-trading: FIEEEZemEBE:
Unrealised gain on derivative financial MESBMIAEZ RERKE
instruments 26,419 51,925
Realised gain on derivative financial instruments  $T4£ ¢ T A 2 28R IS - 65,868
Net gain on financial liabilities at fair value BT ER AR E R
through profit or loss classified as held-for- WAOBERIFEREEZ
trading cRi B ERRFE 26,419 117,793
Impairment loss for available-for-sale investments F& & & 2 R EEE (78,881) -
Transfer from equity on disposals of available- HERFERER
for-sale investments: B AR S e e B
Listed investments FrRE 3,647,768 888,684
Unlisted investment FEmRE 5,221 -
Dividend income on: BN
Listed investments EmRE
— available-for-sale investments —FERE 116,222 86,073
— other listed investments —Efh EHiRE 761 3,913
Unlisted investments FEEMRE 57,791 65,755
Interest income F B WA 209,738 227,292
Imputed interest income on: ZERE
Advances to associates @Lﬁﬁa EAERIA 26,772 33,073
Advance to a minority shareholder B —4 J‘%ﬁﬂx?mlﬁ 381 -
3,995,971 1,399,071
Discontinued operation ERLEEEER
Interest income from discontinued operation REBRIEREER 2
B U A 38 -

3,996,009 1,399,071
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10. RE WA #5 (&)

Included in interest income are interest from derivative financial MEWAZHBENEESMTI A FTHZEE
instruments, listed floating rate notes and unlisted floating rate and B-EETmERRBRILTEEREZA
fixed rate notes approximately HK$28,111,000, HK$1,481,000 and B 57 4928,111,0005% 7T * 1,481,000% 7t &
HK$4,961,000 respectively (2007: equity-linked notes HK$12,132,000 4,961,000 L (Z ST+ F : REBBHEE
and derivative financial instruments HK$50,909,000). 12,132,000/ 7T & 7 4 € & T £50,909,0007%

10. INVESTMENT INCOME, NET (cont'd)

JL) e
11. OTHER EXPENSES 11, BB X2
Continuing operations FEEEER
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHEIT
Included in other expenses are: E R B :
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH 2,860 1,430
Expenses for specific transactions REXSRX 2,400 8,374
12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 12. ERIERERT
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHEIT
Turnover =F - = =
Investment income, net KEWRAFRE 38 -
Administrative expenses THHAX (1,988) -
Loss for the year from discontinued operation REFREBLKIE ¥BEE (1,950) -
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (cont'd) 12. BRI EFETE (B)
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Cash flows from discontinued operation: REBRIEEEEE 2
Remne:
Net cash flows generated from REREEBz2REREFHA
operating activities 42,537 =
Net cash flows used in investing activities AREERESCHESREFHE (174) =
Net cash flows generated from REBRIEBREER 2
discontinued operation RERBFR 42,363 -

On 1st February, 2008, G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (“G-Prop") entered RZBEZNF-_A—H 2ECEERQF

into a conditional agreement with Fame Ascent Investments Limited (T2ENEEAFZREBRAR ([BF])FTAL
("Fame Ascent”) to dispose of the operation in production and sale of —IBE &% - bA%)183,699,000/ 7T i & £

methanol (the “Methanol Project”) for approximately HK$183,699,000. ERBEERE XS ([FEEER]) ZEER
The disposal was completed on 25th July, 2008. Following the disposal, RZTEZNFLAZ+HEB R REE®% -
the results of the Methanol Project was reported as a discontinued REEEE 2 XENIRBEEBU B REEDES
operation and presented separately in the consolidated income statement 5t [#F{EHE 2 ERBEE BRI E X
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and REKRIEKEEBER UREEREERFTD
Discontinued Operations”. Rl
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13. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

13. NEE (E18) Al

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH& T
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at REE (BR)AMNE (k)
after (charging) crediting: A
Continuing operations HEREXER
Total staff costs: “afE B PN
Staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments BEKRAN (BREEEHE) (117,116) (94,997)
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, net of EMREF ST &I - Mk 28U
forfeited contributions of HK$192,000 #3%192,0008 T (ZFZE
(2007: HK$197,000) £ : 197,000/ 7T) (4,118) (4,268)
(121,234) (99,265)
Auditors’ remuneration % 2 BN B & (3,119) (1,925)
Depreciation e (20,005) (16,090)
Amortisation 55 (805) (609)
Cost of trading properties recognised B B KA TR (191,515) (2,240,217)
Cost of cosmetic products recognised {b st G B A T 3R (2,778) (1,300)
Share of tax of associates (included in share of ~ #{hE& QA RIFHIE (Bt A
results of associates) BREE RN RIER) (1,594) (89,152)
Gross proceeds on sale of investments HERFEEREZ
held-for-trading Fr S IR 48 58 1,413,147 4,151,559
Carrying amount on investments HERIEFEERECREE
held-for-trading disposed (1,525,028) (3,963,100)
Transaction cost on investments HEREEEREZRHKA
held-for-trading disposed (4,183) (5,690)
Net (losses) gains on sale of investments held- 5+ A& %5 R 2 H & #HE
for-trading included in turnover BEEREZ (BE) R FE (116,064) 182,769
Gross rental income from investment properties &% & WA L5 961,578 773,331
Less: Direct operating expenses from investment Ji : AFEEER S WA Z
properties that generated rental income REWMEEERERX
during the year (50,876) (59,160)
Direct operating expenses from REEWH|ELEESKAZ
investment properties that did not REMFEEELERSE
generate rental income during the year (11,353) (13,144)
899,349 701,027
Discontinued operation BRILEEER
Staff costs =YD %N (684) -

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

RRAEFIET B R

(21)
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RE-FENF+-A=+—AIER

14. FINANCE COSTS

Continuing operations

Interest on:

Bank loans wholly repayable within five years

Bank loans wholly repayable over five years

Other loans wholly repayable within five years

Amounts due to minority shareholders

Imputed interest on:
Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to minority shareholders

Convertible bonds

Total interest
Exchange (gain) loss on translation of foreign
currency loans

Other finance costs

Less: Interest capitalised to stock of properties
under development
Interest capitalised to investment

properties under development

ARAFAZHEEZ
H 5%
REDHBRERKA

BB
RE B &R R HIA
REDHBRRKA
AR AE 75

£3)

B 4B =E
SMEEFOE X (Was) A

H# 58 A

B BTRBRERPYE
FREXEZHE
BABERTEREME

BEAREZ B

14. I & A

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
306,807 522,265
10,775 1,633
4,420 106,427
= 21,756
322,002 652,081
813 1,006
5,057 2,751
5,305 4,050
11,175 7,807
333,177 659,888
(7,897) 12,306
10,607 4,242
335,887 676,436
(20,502) (40,602)
(32,214) (60,410)
283,171 575,424
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15. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

H th Y 25 K &5 18 % FR

Continuing operations FEEEER
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Included in other gains and losses, net are: H Ao R B 18 F R B4
Impairment loss reversed in respect of BT B E QR RIERE R 2
advances to associates B B 18 187 1,719
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B — RS QR A ER
advances to an associate 2 R EEE (5,472) (1,884)
Gain on purchase of convertible bonds of a BE MM E R Rz TR
subsidiary (Note i) 15 #H 2 Wam (BsED) 6,396 =
Gain on redemption of convertible bonds of a B — B A 7z AT # R
subsidiary (Note ii) 15 %z Wz (B &Eii) 5,595 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note iii) o BT & m) s (BT REii ) 3,870 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of W — B = R ) T R
interests in an associate BEE B (653) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note iv) i — [ B A ml e
(Pf&Eiv) - 158,212
Gain on deemed disposal of interests in an BIEHE—HB & A A
associate HE 25 W 2 - 5,103
Loss on conversion of convertible bonds by AR & &EE TR AR
cash settlement BEH2EE - (236,705)
Discount on acquisition of a subsidiary Wb — Y 8 & Rl - 624

Notes: B 5
Gain on purchase of convertible bonds of a subsidiary arose from acquisition BE—RHNEARZAIRRES 2 K E
of convertible bonds in face value of HK$108,000,000 of G-Prop from Fame R-ZTBEENFNARNZEWELERES
Ascent in April 2008. 108,000,000/ JT Z Al # iR & 25

i. Gain on redemption of convertible bonds of a subsidiary arose from i i [0l — RS A Rl 2 AT R & 55 2 Was T B
redemption of convertible bonds in face value of HK$72,000,000 of G-Prop. [6] < [E M {8 /472,000,000 7T 2 7] # i% & 5 o

ii.  Gain on disposal of subsidiaries arose from disposal of the Methanol Project iii. HEWNBAR KR HEFREER (RH
(see Note 49(a)). 49(a)) °

iv. Gain on disposal of a subsidiary arose from disposal of 15.11% interest in iv. HE—FHRBARKE AR -TZT 5 XA

G-Prop by placing on 7th June, 2007 (see Note 49(b)).

+tBEUREAXNHBESE 215110002 ( ZH
#£49(b) ) °
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16. DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS 16. EEM &

N V2

Fees and other emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2007: RBE-_ZTZENFR-_ZETLF+_A=1+—
five) directors for the years ended 31st December, 2008 and 2007 were BIEFEENSENTAREBEE (ZETLF:

as follows: AE)SEZHEe REMBMESIT
2008 2007

Salaries Salaries

and other and other
Fee emolument Total Fee  emolument Total

HER ek
ik Hit# e a5t e Hioi < CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TET TET TEL

Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung  BI& 2 k& - 3,600 3,600 - 3,600 3,600
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai 2512 % & 34 1,047 1,081 - 1,200 1,200
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai BREIE S 4 200 - 200 180 - 180
Mr. Cheng, Kwee (resigned & & L4
on 21st November, (RZTENE
2008) +—HA=+—H
BHT) 178 - 178 180 - 180
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping BRELL 200 - 200 180 - 180
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun (appointed ~ HE & % &
on 21st November, (RZEZNE
2008) +—HA=-+-B
BZ1E) 22 - 22 - - -
634 4,647 5,281 540 4,800 5,340

No director waived any emoluments for the years ended 31st December, EEMERNBE_ZEZNFR_ZTLF+Z
2008 and 2007. A=+ —HALEFERARZLREIAME -
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HE-FFNG+-A=+—AIFER

17. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, one
(2007: two) was executive director of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures in Note 16 above. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2007: three) individuals disclosed pursuant to the Listing

Rules were as follows:

e kEMEA
RRAEFET B R

Salaries and other benefits

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

AN
7

17. £ & B

AEEREREHFHALH — R (ZFTL
FMB)REARARNTES REZHFHER
X164 EE - EAR ETH AR R B EE 2 42 T I
F(ZETLF ZR)ALZHEWT:

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
5,475 3,588
371 238
5,846 3,826

Number of employees

BEAH
2008 2007
Nil — HK$1,000,000 #—1,000,0007% 7T = 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7¢ —1,500,000/% 7T 3 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T — 2,000,000 7T 1 1

During the years ended 31st December, 2008 and 2007, no emolument
was paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals or the Directors,
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group as compensation for

loss of office.

RoFTN\FR-FTEFt-A=+—AL
SRR S EEF DT NS S B2
AT S BB {5 B B 1 0 (0 8 2 6
ATHEEZHERBHE
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18. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE

Continuing operations

The (credit) charge comprises: I8 (BE) ZHBE:
Current tax: EEATIIA

Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEBMEH

Other than Hong Kong BB A M R
Underprovision in prior years: BAEFEREBIR

Hong Kong Profits Tax FBMEH

Other than Hong Kong & 78 LASIN (2
Deferred tax: RAERIA

Current year REE

Overprovision in prior years BEFEBEEERE

Attributable to a change in tax rate HRBEEE

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation arising in
other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant

jurisdictions.

With effect from the year of assessment 2008/2009, the Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been reduced from 17.5% to 16.5%. On 16th March,
2007, the People's Republic of China promulgated the Law of the
People's Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax by Order No. 63 of
the President of the People’s Republic of China, which has changed the
tax rate from 33% to 25% for certain subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008.
The deferred tax balance has been adjusted to reflect the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the respective years when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled.

18. FI5#E (#E) FHAX

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
67,775 174,389
10,145 9,556
77,920 183,945
12,297 1,181
155 =
12,452 1,181
(1,296,232) 992,588
(8,539) (617)
(292,329) =
(1,597,100) 991,971
(1,506,728) 1,177,097

EBFNERIYBIEANEE 2 (551 B R B8 F %
FiE16.50% (ZFZLF : 17.5% )t & - Hib A
FEREAZHENIEEBEREER ZRITH
Kt HE o

BT N\F T ENFRREFERERZ
EEFBHREAI7Z5%AKE165% R=ZFZF
+tFE=RT+RA HFEAREMBERERZEA
REMBEREREFES635MBE M EARLAMEH
EMRGERE ZERETHERAZHEE
ZEENF— A — B EA33%HF25% ° &
EHIBEBRE TURAE URMREHANREEE
RAEEEBEEEFEER S ERE-
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18. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (cont'd)

Deferred tax reversal of HK$1,597 100,000 included the deferred tax
credit of HK$1,289,805,000 (2007: expense of HK$994,206,000)
on fair value changes on investment properties recognised for the
year and tax reversal of HK$292,459,000 (2007: nil) reflecting the

respective reduction in tax rate was included in the reverse figure of

HK$292,329,000.

The income tax (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled to the

(loss) profit before tax per the consolidated income statement as follows:

(Loss) profit before tax
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operation

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate of 16.5%
(2007: 17.5%)
Tax effect of share of results of
associates
Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes
Tax effect of income not
taxable for tax purposes
Underprovision in respect of
prior years
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Tax effect on accelerated accounting
depreciation over tax depreciation
not provided in prior years

Effect of different tax rates of
subsidiaries operating in other
jurisdictions

Tax effect resulting from change of
applicable tax rate

Tax (credit) charge for the year

BREiAT (518 & 7
~REREER
—ERUEEERT

REBMNEHH X
16.50% (ZZZE 5
17.5% ) 5t & 2 $18

BEBMENREEY
k3%

FEE B E R
Sz HBZE

BB mEBA
AR AZ HIEHE

PBEFEREIR

AERBZHBERZ
MR E

ER LR AER
M E R

BEFEREEH MR
SEITERBANK
MEZRBTE

EEMAEEREE 2
@A RER
PRBEZZE

HARREEHMEEL
Mg TE

AEREHE (BE)FRAX

18. FT1S M (B[E) F < (48)

iR FE I8 5 1,597,100,0007 T B B A&
FEBRAZBRENELNTEEY 2 RLEFRE
#011,289,805,0008 L (Z T L F 1)
994,206,000/ 70 ) * A & A& & B E F & R R
H B/ 2 TR [E1292,459,0008 T (—TF+

F|E) BEEBEERD 8 F292,329,000/
AT @
RERF 2 st (#E) X HRES KRR 2B
Bian (B & FEERNT
2008 2007
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THER FET
(2,960,986) 9,509,965
(1,950) =
(2,962,936) 9,509,965
(488,884) 16.5 1,664,244 175
1,384 - (105,251) a.n
64,772 (2.2) 297,095 3.1
(741,255) 25.0 (720,878) (7.6)
3,913 (0.1) 564 -
52,612 (1.8) 60,656 0.6
(100,350) 3.4 (52,853) (0.5)
(23,034) 0.8 (1,307) =
16,443 (0.6) 34,827 0.4
(292,329) 9.9 - _
(1,506,728) 50.9 1,177,097 12.4
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RE-FENF+-A=+—AIER

19. DIVIDENDS 19. IX &
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiB T
(a) Final dividend for 2007 paid on 25th (@) RZZTZEN\FAA=+HA
June, 2008 of HK 22.5 cents KN2Z —_EE+LF
(2006: HK 18 cents) per share RNHEAR B 5 822 55 (L
(ZZTRF:18%#1L)
Cash e 469,152 129,774
Share alternative under scrip R ARRAK B G2
dividend scheme s B % 1 48,006 277,095
517,158 406,869
(b) Interim dividend for 2008 paid on 8th b) R=ZZTEZENF+ANA
October, 2008 of HK 13.5 cents K2 ZTZTNF
(2007: HK 13.5 cents) per share AR B AR 13.55 1L
(ZZ2ZTEF:13.5581)
Cash e 302,272 121,204
Share alternative under scrip BRI AR B ETE
dividend scheme g B % 1 3,915 187,165
306,187 308,369
Total dividends paid BIRT AR S 4258 823,345 715,238

Final dividend of HK1 cent (2007: HK22.5 cents) per share and special
dividend of HK99 cents (2007: nil) per share have been proposed by
the Directors and are subject to approval by the shareholders in the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

ExgEARNRARESERIEBW(ZZE
+F : 22,58 ) kAR EZRGEN (=F
TLEB) ARRRREERRBFASH
i e
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For the year ended 3 st December, 2008 B _—_TENFLT_HA=1—HIFE
20. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 20. % (E8) &5

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share BRARZIRAEREE ARG 2 BIRER R E
attributable to equity holders of the parent is based on the following data: & (BB B TDREATBERTE:

Continuing and discontinued operations RHESEREBRERIUBEET
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T
(Loss) earnings: (E18B) BH :
(Loss) earnings for the purposes of basic and SEGRER (BR) BT R#E
diluted (loss) earnings per share (BB (FE)Z&F
((loss) profit for the year attributable to (B RARAEEFE ARA
equity holders of the parent) ZAREE (BE)RF) (1,494,376) 8,195,857

Number of shares

KR #E
Number of shares: BHEE :
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AHEBRER (BR) &R
for the purposes of basic and diluted (loss) BE (BR) &z
earnings per share T3 AR I AE 19 & 2,228,668,314 2,277,396,424
Continuing operations FEEEER
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
(Loss) earnings: (E48) & -
(Loss) earnings for the purposes of basic and SEERER (BB BT RS
diluted (loss) earnings per share (BE)BFZ (B1E) BT
((loss) profit for the year attributable to equity (R AR AKEZSHE A B
holders of the parent) ZAREE (EE) & A) (1,493,397) 8,195,857
Number of shares
RHEAE
Number of shares: RmHEA :
Weighted average number of ordinary shares SAHESRER (BE) BT R
for the purposes of basic and diluted (loss) B (B8R BNz TEk

earnings per share INHE 55 8 2,228,668,314 2,277,396,424
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20. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (cont'd)

Discontinued operation

Loss: B8
Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted
ZEE

(&R AR AR =

loss per share
(loss for the year attributable to

equity holders of the parent)

Number of shares: RMHEE :
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of basic and diluted loss 2 E AR ANRE T A 2

per share

For the year ended 31st December, 2008, diluted loss per share from
both continuing and discontinued operations did not assume the
conversion of the outstanding convertible bonds of a subsidiary of the
Company since their conversion would result in a decrease in loss per

share.

For the year ended 31st December, 2007, diluted earnings per share from
both continuing and discontinued operations were the same as the basic
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares

outstanding.

Basic and diluted loss per share from the discontinued operation was
HKO0.04 cents per share for the year ended 31st December, 2008 (2007:
nil), based on the loss from the discontinued operation for the year
of HK$979,000 (2007: nil) and the denominators detailed above as
continuing and discontinued operations for the basic and diluted loss per

share.

RABARGZAFEER)

20. BRX (E518) & (&)

BRIEZEXT

AESRERNBERETES

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET
(979) =

Number of shares

R4 & E

AESRERNBERETER

2,228,668,314 2,277,396,424

MR EBARRZ — BB AR REEZ A
BRESSERERERRL WBE-_ZT
NET-_A=+—BIFE REFBELEE
BRERIEREER 2 SRETERY AL ER
RAMBEBABEES -

BE 4 £ 1] 14 5K 17 60 2 7 B AR R B
BE-TELET-A=+RULEEKEH
BEEEBRORIEEEH SRETRT
HEREARFAR-

HE-ZZ)\F+-A=1+—HLEEFE BEX
IEAE & 2 2 BIRE AR R # 58 E 18 2 ER0.04
B (=TT L5 &) DREREBLKILLE
BEBZAFEEEI7,0008 L (Z T+
FE)RENFAFTEREBBECEEBRE
RIbEEEB T SRERNRBETBER 2 H &M
FTE -
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21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

HK$'000
FH&T
Fair value DFE
At Tst January, 2007 R-_ZEZE+F—H—H 31,771,870
Additions NE 405,793
Increase in fair value recognised in the consolidated Rire Wm kP ERZ A TFEE N
income statement 6,421,788
Disposal of a subsidiary HE — M E A A (35,600)
Disposals = (65,411)
At 31st December, 2007 R=-BFLF+_H=+—H 38,498,440
Additions NE 371,808
Transfer to property and other fixed assets EREYEREMETEEE (14,500)
Transfer to prepaid lease payments ERERNEENE (81,100)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B8 B /B A A 31,000
Transfer from property and other fixed assets e 25 I B A [ TE & E 730
Transfer from prepaid lease payments WFE T E R IEE & 520
Decrease in fair value recognised in the consolidated R WA RPER Z A FERD
income statement (7,467,668)
Transfer to stock of properties ERENERFE (857,000)
Disposals s (179,650)
At 31st December, 2008 R=-ZBBNF+=A=+—H 30,302,580
The market value of the Group's investment properties at 31st December, HASEVEBEBIAERIEGEME
2008 has been arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out on RERFEBERAF ([EHBEE]ERAR

1L REME

that date by Messrs. Norton Appraisals Limited (“Norton Appraisals”), _??}\ﬁJr_ﬁ:JF*EIFﬁLﬁZﬁTE?%%
independent qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group E-AEAEEREMERZAZTE - EH
who has appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation B S & A R Ba A T b ARt B 2
FRENMEZRR - KEMEZHERSEHEH
investment properties is signed by a director of Norton Appraisals, who is BEREE (FHIEMBea8 ) E5E -%EAE
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation, which TESFRBREMBG BN 2 WEHELER
“ETRFEEIR)  WERTE/AELETE
Properties (1st Edition 2005) published by the Hong Kong Institute of fly o

of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation report on the

conforms to the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standards on

Surveyors, was based on market value basis.
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21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cont'd) 21. 1K EME (&)

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to BEEERAFAEARDE SR EARILE 2R
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes, are measured using SEMEDERERDEARATFEENGE I

the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment DERARINEREDZE -
properties.
The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above comprises: PR EYEZEHESRE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F& T
Properties in Hong Kong held under: REBRUATHNEE 2
Long-term lease KEFHE 4 24,420,450 30,710,400
Medium-term lease R ERFR AT 4,532,770 6,336,400
28,953,220 37,046,800

Properties outside Hong Kong held under:  REBUIMEATHAFE 2 W

Long-term lease K EHE 4 310,050 457,900
Medium-term lease FRHEAFE 4V 1,039,310 993,740
1,349,360 1,451,640

30,302,580 38,498,440
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ALl = > >
22. PROPERTY AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS 22 MEREMBETEEE
Furniture,
fixtures Yachts and
and motor
Buildings  equipments vehicles Total
B -£B
BF &L BRERSE =h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET THET
Cost or valuation A {E
At Tst January, 2007 W-ZEE+E—F—BH 59,679 85,836 56,453 201,968
Acquisition of a subsidiary i — R T /8 2 7] - 34 42 76
Additions NE - 3,242 35,372 38,614
Disposals & - (2,465) (9,633) (12,098)
Exchange adjustments BE 5, o8 B - 57 117 174
At 31st December, 2007 R_TZELEF
+ZA=+—H 59,679 86,704 82,351 228,734
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1 )=NG| 1,961 23 172 2,156
Disposal of subsidiaries & T 2 7l (2,064) (32) (1,085) (3,181)
Transfer from investment properties 1% & ¥ 3 & 5 14,500 - - 14,500
Transfer to investment properties BRERENE (874) - - (874)
Surplus on revaluation upon transfer BB EL 7 AR 535 - - 535
Additions RE - 6,979 2,462 9,441
Disposals & - (80) (1,782) (1,862)
Exchange adjustments bE 5 F8 B 103 17 141 361
At 31st December, 2008 R_ZEZENE
+ZA=+—H 73,840 93,711 82,259 249,810
Depreciation ?ﬁ’é
At 1st January, 2007 —ZET+LF—-H—H 10,333 76,209 34,069 120,611
Charge for the year FARFE 1,502 3,928 10,660 16,090
Elimination upon disposals 5 B 3 6 = (2,446) (7,457) (9,903)
Exchange adjustments BE B - 30 60 90
At 31st December, 2007 R-ZTAE
+ZA=+—H 11,835 77,721 37332 126,888
Charge for the year FRE 1,860 3,581 14,564 20,005
Capitalised to property under BRRERTHMEER
development - 124 - 124
Transfer to investment properties HREREVE (144) - - (144)
Elimination upon disposals & B 8 - (77) (1,782) (1,859)
Exchange adjustments BE 5, 5 B - 59 ) 57
At 31st December, 2008 R-TEENE
+=-—A=+—H 13,551 81,408 50,112 145,071
Carrying amounts AR B
At 31st December, 2008 R-BBNE
+ZBA=+—H 60,289 12,303 32,147 104,739
At 31st December, 2007 R-_TTF
+-A=+—H 47,844 8,983 45,019 101,846

The Group's buildings are situated in Hong Kong and held under long-

term lease.

AEEZBFHUREBLRERBOITE -
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23. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 23 HRT Y%
HK$'000
FAT
Cost 2%
At 1st January, 2007 N_ZTZELF—H—H -
Additions NE 33,548
At 31st December, 2007 RZZEEL+FE+-_A=+—H 33,548
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE Y B A A 2,040
Additions NE 52,424
Disposal of subsidiaries HEME A A (2,182)
Exchange adjustments ME 3, E B 666
At 31st December, 2008 RZTENF+_A=+—H 86,496
Carrying amounts SRMEE
At 31st December, 2008 R=BENF+=B=+-—H 86,496
At 31st December, 2007 RZZEZLFE+_A=+—H 33,548
The carrying amounts of properties under development comprises: BERBPYEZRAEDRSE:
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Leasehold properties in Mainland China RERBERERATHAOREZ
held under: HEWZE:

Medium-term lease FRHEAFE A9 86,496 33,548
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24. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 24. B E A
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHT

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprises: A&z BAAEREEE:

Leasehold land in Hong Kong held under: REBRATHOFREZ
FAE £ :
Long-term lease REAFE A 328,971 248,661
Medium-term lease R ERE A - 227

328,971 248,888
Leasehold land in Mainland China held under: AR B K BEZ LA T A 49
BEzHEE T
Medium-term lease FARFE 4V 1,207,982 1,168,743
1,536,953 1,417,631

Amortisation expenses on prepaid lease payments of HK$33,158,000 RNEE S FR33,158,0008 T (Z T F:
(2007: HK$24,867,000) have been capitalised to properties under 24,867,000 7T ) 2 A 1H & R IEH#E 85 5 2 B 1
development for the year. Amortisation expenses on prepaid lease RRERPYEERR - KFEHEEFRB05,000/8
payments of HK$805,000 (2007: HK$609,000) have been charged to T (ZZ T L 609,000/ T) 2 BNHER
the consolidated income statement for the year. BEHEMAX Bt AlRaliam*k -

25. PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD FOR FUTURE 25. B1EBRBRE 2 MERER
DEVELOPMENT

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FH&T
Cost A
At Tst January and 31st December R—A—HBE+ZA=+—H 71,118 71,118
Impairment loss WEER
At 1st January and 31st December R—A—BE+ZA=+—H (71,118) (71,118)
Carrying amounts FREE

At 1st January and 31st December R—A—BE+TZA=+—H - -
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RE-FENF+-A=+—AUFE

25. PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD FOR FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT (cont'd)

The property interests held for a development project in Chenghai Royal
Garden, Shantou, the PRC was held by a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chi
Cheung Investment Company, Limited, which was a 61.96% interest
subsidiary of the Company. On 30th September, 2008, the property
interests held for the development project was disposed to a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. Under a Contract for Pre-registration
of Grant of State-owned Land Use Right (the “Contract”) with the district
bureau of Chenghai dated 5th August, 1992, the Group had made certain
down payment. However, the Group subsequently determined not to

proceed with the land requisition and requested for refund.

In April 2005, the Group commenced legal proceedings at the Shantou
City Intermediate People's Court (the “Intermediate Court") to terminate
the Contract with the Shantou City Planning and State-owned Land
Resources Bureau (“Chenghai Bureau”). In view of the uncertainty in the
recoverability of the amount claimed and any other entitlements under
the Contract, the Group had made a full provision for an impairment loss
of HK$ 71,118,000 during 2004.

On 28th December, 2006, the Intermediate Court made a judgment in
favour of the Group. However, Chenghai Bureau submitted an application
of appeal to the High People's Court of Guangdong Province (the “High
Court") on 23rd January, 2007 and the Group also sent out a reply to the
High Court on 13th February 2007.

On 27th June, 2007, the High Court accepted the application of appeal
by the Chenghai Bureau and made the judgment as follows: (1) the
judgment made by the Intermediate Court on 28th December, 2006 was
revoked; and (2) the case was remitted to the Intermediate Court for
rehearing. On 22nd August, 2007, the Intermediate Court accepted for

rehearing the case within six months.

On 18th February, 2008, the Intermediate Court notified the Group that
the trial period had been extended for six months to August 2008.

On 12th August, 2008, the Intermediate Court issued the civil ruling of
dismissing the Group's civil claim. The Group initiated an application for
appeal to the High Court after receiving the ruling and submitted all legal
documents required in the application on 2nd September, 2008. The
High Court ruled on 12th December, 2008 that the appeal was rejected.

The Group is considering the re-trial issue.

25 FHHEHRBER 2V E D
(&)

REDLIET RS TEEE IS ERRIBRE W
- TR RQREBG61.96% 2 2 H B A 7
EHEBEEERARZ—HE2ENBARIFEA-
REZEZNFAA=TH ZIFERREEY
ERBZELETARRZEZEWNB AR - RIE
R—AN=ZFN\ARHEBEESHEE BRI LZ
BAtimFEREENEGR ([6R])  AEER
XNEFES ANEBEBRTETEITEL -
WIRIFZERRERRETES -

RZZZRAFNA AEEMNLETHRAR
EBT (TR ACEBT ) L SE T AR Bl 82 B 1+ &R
B(IESERERERRER KRIEER- A
RAEEEANESRERERERBESRZE
iR AEEER TSN FERREESEE
171,118,000 7T 2 & H % -

RZFERFT A=+ NRB - REIEFHIR
HREAEERSH - A BEERN _ZTTLF
—AZ+t=BRAERESRARZER ([RAE
RDRZELFRHF MAEETER _ZTTL
FZRAT=HMRSARAEBIRZ M E -

RIZZBZBLFXRNA-TEH SRERERE
BERZ LFRAFLELMTHIR : (D)HIHEF
BARERZZERETZ AT NBIEHZ 2
R RQBREMBREAEF LB -
RIZEZLFNA -+ B HRERERR
NEARNEHIAZR M

RZBZENF_A+TNB PRERAEAE
EEAMBERANEAZE-_ZZTNF/NR-

RZZZENFNA+=ZB FRERTERS
BREEROAKBENRERE - WEZAEE
% AEBRSRERRGFLF AR _FFN
FAA—RERBFMENZREREXM B
BAERER—ZZENF T AT HELHETES
BEZ L AEEEEEFRFEFTENER
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26. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost
At 1st January, 2007
Acquisition of a subsidiary

At 31st December, 2007 and
31st December, 2008

Amortisation and impairment
At Tst January, 2007

Amortisation for the year

At 31st December, 2007

Amortisation for the year

At 31st December, 2008

Carrying amounts
At 31st December, 2008

At 31st December, 2007

The amortisation expense has been included in the other expenses in the

consolidated income statement.

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. Such intangible

RS

RZZEZ+F—H—H

Wb — R 8 A A

i

R=BFBN\F
t=A=+-H

N

At
’_\_

F
+—8

H

+

assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over five years.

26. BB E

Trading and

exchange
rights Trademark Total
BEER
E5% [EE: a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT FHBT
2,705 = 2,705
= 14,300 14,300
2,705 14,300 17,005
2,705 = 2,705
= 1,430 1,430
2,705 1,430 4,135
= 2,860 2,860
2,705 4,290 6,995
- 10,010 10,010
= 12,870 12,870

BERXEAGARaRZEMMAX -

b EERARRERERFH  WARLK
FEROFEE-
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27. GOODWILL 27. &
HK$'000
FAT
Cost 2%
At 1st January, 2007 and 31st December, 2007 R-EZE+F—A—HK
—ETELE+ - A=+—H 47,748

Acquisition of subsidiaries (see Note 48(a)) LK B o 8 2 =] ( LB 7 48(a) ) 6,291
Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries HEEH B AR 2 e 2,019
At 31st December, 2008 RZZEZNEFE+_A=+—H 56,058
Impairment W E
At 1st January, 2007, 31st December, 2007 and R-_EZLtF—H—H"
31st December, 2008 —ETtEFFZA=+—HBRK

—EENFF+ZA=+—H 47748
Carrying amounts SREE
At 31st December, 2008 R=BENF+=B=+-—H 8,310

At 31st December, 2007

Impairment testing on goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the
following cash-generating unit. The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of
accumulated impairment losses) as at 31st December, 2008 is allocated

as follows:

REMELERIRE

Investment properties and financial investments

The recoverable amount of the goodwill allocated to investment
properties and financial investments business was assessed by reference
to value-in-use model which based on a five years cash flow projection
approved by the Directors. A discount rate of approximately 4% per
annum was applied in the value-in-use model when assessing the

recoverability of the goodwill.

R=ZBELFT+-_H=+—H =

25 2R 36 1B R
RRENATNE BEEIEETIRSESE
B -R-_ZZENF+_A=1+—RH BEZK

HE (MR REBEEBR) S EET :
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
8,310 -

DEEREVEREHMBEEB 2EETHE
CHEDNBRBESSECAFRERERA -
WRZEFERBEERXNETTIH - RTEEEZ
AlRERER FREEENKAZFNEE
K BARE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %x

For the year ended 3 Ist Decembey; 2008

—ZEZEN\FEFIHR Annual Report 2008

CRs R EEE:
BE-FE\FHA=1—HIFE

27. GOODWILL (cont'd)

There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved for the
preparation of the cash flow projection. Key assumptions included gross
margin and discount rate which are determined by the management of
the Group based on past performance and its expectation for market
development. Gross margin are budgeted gross margin. The discount rate

used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the industry.

28. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Cost of investment in associates & Bk N AR
Listed in Hong Kong RES L™
Unlisted e

Share of post-acquisition profits, B (5 W IR 18 s
net of dividend received R B AR 2

Market value of investment in associates HEMBE RNRITE
Listed in Hong Kong REB L™

The Company provided corporate guarantee to secure bank loans granted
to its associates. The fair value of the financial guarantee contract was
determined by Norton Appraisals, independent qualified professional
valuers, and it was recognised as interests in associates and financial

guarantee liabilities in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet.

Particulars of the Group's principal associates at 31st December, 2008 are

set out in Note 57.

The investment properties held by the Group's principal associates
were revalued at 31st December, 2008 by the Norton Appraisals. The
valuation, which conforms to the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
Valuation Standards on Properties (1st Edition 2005) published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, was based on market value basis.

27. & (&)

WERERERASREZABR L AT -2
BREEHASEERERBERAERR RHY
MEHRBAEEZENERFTHEK - FH X

TREENE - MARMBZ TR KA BERBA
I [ R B2 1T ZE 40 B 2 5 FE AL B o

28. Mt & N RIHE S

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
- 47772
283,667 308,254
586,060 854,910
869,727 1,210,936
- 269,523

ARRRE R R ERIERER S AR ERIRTT
ERZBR -BBREREOZIATFEHRBLA
ERBEXHEMEAEREE YEREAEH
ZHEABERBRABIR/BEARERE LM
BHRERAR

m

R-ZENF+_A=+—HZEEH
BN TEST ©

Mg B

;‘%
-

EI

= A
BXEBENRZREMECHERER
ZEENF+_A=+—BETEM %
BTEBAEMBGMRM ZMEMHESE
A (ZZZTRFER) LRME/ELEET

RE
i
a7y
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28. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (cont'd) 28. BiE ARl (B)
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's associates REEZBERNT 2 M BERB AT
is set out below:
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Total assets BEMAE 11,507,439 11,883,342
Total liabilities BEEE (9,409,701) (8,718,169)
Net assets FERE 2,097,738 3,165,173
Minority interest DR EER 12,364 12,828
2,110,102 3,178,001
Group's share of net assets of associates AEEEGHERRFEE 869,727 1,210,936
Turnover S 554,912 2,311,861
(Loss) profit for the year REE (BE)=F (46,825) 1,575,943
Group's share of result of associates for the year 7S5 BEI#E (G & N B ANFE E4E (8,388) 601,431

A legal action against an 50% associate of the Group, The Kwong
Sang Hong International Limited (“Kwong Sang Hong"), was taken by
a Chinese joint venture partner of Kwong Sang Hong in respect of a
development project in the PRC. The provision of HK$19,700,000 (2007:
HK$19,700,000) against damages, legal costs and interest was made by
Kwong Sang Hong.

On 23rd June, 2008, the Supreme People's Court of Hubei Province, PRC
issued the “Certificate for proof of unpaid debt” to Kwong Sang Hong
and confirmed that Kwong Sang Hong has the right to claim the chinese
joint venture partner the loan amounting to RMB2,826,400. Since there
is nil balance in all the bank accounts of the chinese joint venture partner,

Kwong Sang Hong is unable to enforce its legal right in the meantime.

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, G-Prop issued and allotted
of 493,678,883 and 740,518,325 new shares at an issue price of
HK$0.162 each to Asian Kingdom Limited (“Asian Kingdom") and Fame
Ascent. Accordingly, the Group's shareholding in G-Prop had decreased
from approximately 34.99% to 13.699%, resulting in a gain on deemed

disposal of interest in an associate of approximately HK$5,103,000.

7N £8 [# 7 50008 % A Al The Kwong Sang Hong
International Limited ([E417]) 2 — @+ E
EEBHMNPE-—EHRERE B KIUEETEH
TEREET BETEREE ZEZER KA
B {EHI19,700,0008 T 2 BB (— BT L F:
19,700,000/ 7T ) °

RZZEZNFEASAZ+=H HBEMtES
ARERAEETE L [ RTEHERE L
WiEEREETBEEERARE2,826,400MR +

EEBHREERR BRTBREERE A
BRITREFPHAELS WEETRIERETE
HEERER -

RZZET+LE+T_A=Z+—HLEFE @
(E 2 8 178 & 1%0.162/% Jt M Asian Kingdom
Limited ([ Asian Kingdom | ) & & & 217 K& fid 2
493,678,883 % 740,518,3250% %1 % o A It - A&
SERCEZRIERL34.99% T EZE13.69%"
HERBELE —HBERAER 2 B mL
5,103,000/ 7T ©
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28. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (cont'd)

On 1st February, 2008, the Group and Fame Ascent had entered into
a sale and purchase agreement, which Fame Ascent agreed to sell
740,518,325 shares of G-Prop to the Group at HK$0.163 per shares
for the consideration of approximately HK$120,777,000. Following the
completion on 5th February, 2008, the Group's shareholding in G-Prop
has increased from approximately 13.69% to 50.20% and thus G-Prop
became a subsidiary of the Company for the year ended 31st December,
2008. (see Note 48(a))

29. ADVANCES TO ASSOCIATES

Interest bearing advances to associates

Interest-free advances to associates

The advances to associates are unsecured. An approximately
HK$1,621,238,000 was expected to be repayable in 2010 and 2011
and the amount is therefore shown as non-current. For the remaining
HK$163,219,000, the Group will not demand repayment within one year
from the balance sheet date and the amounts are therefore shown as
non-current. The interest bearing advances to associates bear interest at
the prevailing market rates. The Directors consider that the fair value of
the interest-free advances as at the balance sheet date, determined based
on the present values of the estimated future cash flows discounted using
the prevailing market rates at the balance sheet date, approximate to their

carrying amounts.

30. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

Share of net assets of jointly controlled entities

BEARZERRBEZFEE

28. BtE NElfER (B)

RZFZENF_H—H AEBEHRFFTL
EEME BUEBARERTR0.163B TR
ANEE HE740,518,325/ & E R 1D KB4
120,777,000 L - R = \NFE - AR A%
Bk 1% REBR & E 2 R AE B £13.69%35 i
£5020% EEZERBEE_ZTZENF+ A
=T —BIEFERARARIZHE AT - (KK
#£48(a))

29. B \THEE A |l FRIR

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAET
148,015 168,064
1,636,442 1,184,677
1,784,457 1,352,741

PR E DRI RIE R EE A - 41,621,238,000
BILZHRERRAR T —ZTFR T ——FE
B ANZERBIEERSMEE -SLFIER 2
163,219,000/ 0 AEBE T2 ERRNEE B L
S—FRNEER ALZERIEIIEERBMEE -
BNBERNRZAERBUAER 2 TISEEF
KB - MESBFNEER 2 AFE ' AlIER
HEBZERMSEEMNXRERBERRRS
MEZRKREBEAENEG ESSRAREE
HZzAFEREEEmEES -

30. & 1422 ) #4181 25

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx THET
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30. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (cont'd)

Details of the Group's jointly controlled entities which are held indirectly

by the Company at 31st December, 2008, are as follows:

30. KRR HIHEER (F)

ARAHERAZAREARZEFRER —F
ENF+ZRA=+—HZHBOT:

Proportion of nominal

Form of value of issued
Name of jointly business Place of share capital held
controlled entity and structure incorporation e BT Principal activities
HEEFIEEER E3 3 RS2 o /B 3 3t B IR 2N E B b = FEEK
Golden Royce Investment  Incorporated Hong Kong 35.08% Dormant
Limited Gl oAV B ZE—F
SHRIMIREFR QA
Top Grade Assets Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands 45.10% Dormant
Gl ava RBHERRES EmeEx
Upgrade Properties Incorporated British Virgin Islands 45.10% Dormant
Limited Rl AV RBERRES TmE

AEBEz HREHBEBEZMBEMBRRLT

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's jointly

controlled entities is set out below:

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT Fi& T

Total assets BEBE 4,237 -
Total liabilities AfRRE (160,372) =
Net liabilities FRE (156,135) -
Net assets attributable to the Group AEBEEFEE - =
Turnover & = =
Loss for the year KEFEE (10) -
Loss attributable to the Group AEEBGEBE - =
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31. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 3. FEKRE

N

Available-for-sale investments comprise: TEREGRE

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR T
Listed investments: EFHRE:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REB LM ZREARB S - 11,389,583
Unlisted fund: FEEMESD:
— Fund established elsewhere —REMMEKY 2 ES - 202,119
Unlisted securities: EEMES:
— Equity securities incorporated in Hong Kong —REBEBEMZRAF S 235,684 229,954
— Equity securities incorporated elsewhere — F EAth 3t [ S 1 2 AR AR 3B 55 - 78,881
235,684 11,900,537
Debt securities B & 216,712 -
Club debentures SHES 15,731 15,731
Total CEl 468,127 11,916,268
Debt securities held as at the REREBREZEBIEFERE:
balance sheet date comprise of:
Listed floating rate note (Note 1) FAFEER (M) 35,262 -
Unlisted floating rate notes (Note 2) FEMEEER (H5E2) 111,364 =
Unlisted fixed rate notes (Note 3) EEMEEER (FE3) 70,086 -

216,712 =
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31. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(cont'd)

Notes:

1. The floating rate note listed elsewhere with maturity date in October 2011
carries floating interest at EURIBOR +0.2% per annum.

2. The floating rate notes are unlisted with maturity dates from July 2011 to
January 2014 and carry floating interest at LIBOR plus 0.23% to 0.35% per
annum, payable on quarterly or half-yearly basis.

3. The fixed rate notes are unlisted debts securities carrying fixed interest at
4.75% to 7.00% per annum with maturity dates ranging between February
2011 to March 2016.

For listed investments, unlisted fund and debt securities, the fair values
are determined based on the quoted market bid prices available on the
relevant stock exchanges and on the industry group. At the balance sheet

date, they are not either past due or impaired.

For unlisted equity securities incorporated in Hong Kong, the fair value
is determined based on discounted cash flow valuation techniques, with
assumption on discount rates ranging from 1% below Prime to Prime and
no earning growth factor were used. Prime is defined as HK$ best offered

rate quoted from time to time by Standard Chartered Bank.

For unlisted equity securities issued by private entities incorporated in
the United States of America, and the club debentures are stated at cost
less impairment loss at each balance sheet date because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors are of
the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably. During the
year ended 31st December 2008, the Group identified an impairment
loss of HK$78,881,000 related to the unlisted equity securities.

FEEBNEMBE LT AMER T ——
F+ A WRFBEXZBMNRITRZERS
MEFE02EFE -

2 FRERAKLT HHANTF-T——&+
AE=T—mE— A LHETH 8 ERHRR
T RIS 8% MEFF023ES035EHE -
BEFERLELN -

3. EEZEBRAFLTMEBLES  RETF X
475BE700E:E  BHANFEF T ——F
—REZZE—XRF=A8-

METHRE FFLETESREFEZFME  AF
BETRBHEBRESZRZ S M RITEERIMBNT
LEREBEETE REER Ll ERBRGRELS
TR RU(E °

PRRBBEM I LTRAESMS AFE
DHEABRRSREGEEZEE  HEEEA
HENTFREBNXFIEZZEETN K ZF
RERETRER TEERAFNBEREER - RE
BENEAERBITRITTIRREZETHES
M o

BN EBREM 2 A ABEEIT 2 IE ETRAE
HFUARGHESM S  BREAZERAES
RetEFrMEeBATERMEZS R 2 BRERE
ZHEEE ESeRAAEUEHEBEEER
FE BEZERABLFNESHEHFRLEER
ZHRATNBRBEBEBAR R_ZENF+=
A=T—HIEFE AEEBEREE ETRA
BH B 2R EEE 78,881,000 7T ©
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32. ADVANCES TO INVESTEE COMPANIES AND

(@

(®)

A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER

The advance made to an investee company, of approximately
HK$377,000 (2007: HK$330,000), with principal purpose of
providing second mortgage for a property development project,
which is unsecured and interest-bearing at the prevailing market
rate. The advance is not repayable within one year and is
therefore shown as non-current. The advance made to another
investee company, of approximately HK$332,124,000 (2007:
HK$309,725,000) with principal purpose of providing fund for a
property development project at West Kowloon Reclamation Area,
which is unsecured and interest-free. The advance is not repayable

within one year and is therefore shown as non-current.

The Directors consider that the fair values of the advances to
investee companies at the balance sheet date approximate their

carrying amounts.

The advance made to a minority shareholder is unsecured and
interest-free. The advance is not repayable within one year and is

therefore shown as non-current.

The Directors consider that the fair value of the advance to a
minority shareholder at the balance sheet date, determined based
on the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
using prevailing market rate at the balance sheet date, approximates

to its carrying amount.

32. BRI RERAI R —F

(@

(b)

DB R IR

AN —HEXKEE R A FKIEL377,000
Bt (ZEF T+ :330,000870) * =
ZR-IBVFEEREBEERH _IZ ZK
BVEERRRER 2 TSN ET R
HRBRTERN —FAEE WIEFE
MEBME - AN S —HAEIRERTK
15 #49332,124,000%8 0 (ZE & £ F
309,725,000 7T) - EERAFENEEER
ZUHFEERBERMES ZRADEE
ARES HRBRTER—FAEE"
WYIEIER B IEE -

EXZERRBNEIRERFREANLG
BHZAFEREREEMRS -

BN —RDBBRRKBADNEERRLE
HRBR ISR —FAREE  #IEIFR
S -

BN -2 BBRRFEARGEER Z2AF
ENEGEREAZERM SRR EM
AARRBEEREMAELZREEE &

ERANGEERAZAVERAEREE
BE-
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33. LOANS RECEIVABLE 33. R E K
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBIT
Long term loans receivable, secured BHEMz EERBER
Non-current EREMESE 60,129 61,300
Current mENEE 112 583
60,241 61,883
Other loans and advances, unsecured EER EMERRBR 5 3
60,246 61,886
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B —FREIENSIERB A E
under current assets 2 FRIA (117) (586)
Amounts due after one year —F1% BBz 508 60,129 61,300
Loans receivable comprise: B ERBLE:
Effective Carrying amounts
Maturity date Collateral interest rate IRMEE
EpGRE] EE BRI 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Loans receivable 2 years — 15 years Properties Prime rate
M B MEE+HF EUES REEN R 450 2,092
Loans receivable 1 year Nil Fixed rate
FE W E K —& il & 7 A & 5 3
Loans receivable 19th January, 2010 Unlisted equity Prime — 1%
JE W & 3R —E-TFE-—A+NH securities REBEE
FE LT AR RE 55 I 59,791 59,791
60,246 61,886
The Directors consider that the fair value of the Group's loans receivable EZEgRRASERKER 2 AFEELR®R

approximates their carrying amounts. BEEE-
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34. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a)

(b)

(©

Pledged deposits

The amount represents deposits pledged to banks and other
financial institutions to secure credit facilities granted to the
Group. Deposits amounting to approximately HK$378,483,000
(2007: HK$406,492,000) have been pledged to secure short-
term borrowings and are therefore classified as current assets. The
remaining deposits amounting to approximately HK$99,599,000
(2007: HK$79,217,000) have been pledged to secure long-term

borrowings and are therefore classified as non-current assets.

The deposits carry interest rate at the prevailing market rate. The
pledged deposits will be released upon the settlement of relevant
borrowings. The fair value of the deposits at the balance sheet date

approximates to the corresponding carrying amount.

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Securities trading receivables and deposits are mainly amounts
due from clearing house, brokers and clients. The fair value of the
securities trading receivables and deposits at the balance sheet date

approximates to the corresponding carrying amount.

Time deposits, bank balances and cash

The deposits carry interest rate at the prevailing bank savings
deposits rate and mature within 1 month. The Directors consider
that the fair value of the time deposits, bank balances and cash at
the balance sheet date approximates to the corresponding carrying

amount.

35. STOCK OF PROPERTIES

Completed properties

Properties under development held for sales

Less: Impairment loss recognised

EEIPRYES

B BRI EER

FIFELEZBRDYE

34.

(a)

(b)

(9

35.

Hith & /& E

HAFEN

I FRERIR IR T IR1T R H Ah & RUMHE - 1F
RiaTAREBEE 2775 ° 378,483,000
BT (ZZEZ L5 406,492,000/870) 2
GHREEARBEEZEA TENES
HRAMREEE - #8 N 499,599,000 717
HK(ZZFZT £ :79,217,000% 70) B 1
ARIAERZER  WHELE S BEAIER
E)EE -

REFREFE FMEHERMH K-
HEBERENERESEERRRER
WHFRREER 2 A FEEEABEERE
(RS

o

R EFR G RBAR 75
BUREFEARZXZEBREREBRE RS
B BrR&LREFPHIA - WRKES
RHEBREFREER 2 A TFEEAR
HEREERS -

EHFEH RITHGBREL

TR MR BERFRIT 2 HFHRAE AR
—EARFBR -EFER/EHEFH R
THEBEREESNEERZ A FEEER
FARRE(EAEE

N

MEHFER

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
289,700 228,616
5,120,262 4,032,313
5,409,962 4,260,929

(464,467) (479,467)
4,945,495 3,781,462
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35. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (cont'd) 5. MFEFE (8

At 31st December, 2008, the Directors reviewed the carrying amounts of RZZZNF+_A=+—H ZFESL2EHHE
the properties under development held for sales with reference to current HEZERPYEZREMISRE R B EHE
market situation and the estimated selling price of the properties under BRRRE2EAEE SHFIELECRETY
development held for sales provided by Norton Appraisals. No impairment X2EEE - RZZENFR_ZTLF+=
loss recognised was made during the year ended 31st December, 2008 RB=+—HIEFEA SRR EMRERE -

and 2007.
36. INVESTMENTS HELD-FOR-TRADING 36. FEEE 2113
Investments held-for-trading comprise: FIEEBEZREBHE:
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Listed investments: FiRE:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REBEAB LM ZRAZ S - 173,063
— Equity securities listed elsewhere —REA MR ETH 2 BT S - 194,690
- 367,753

The fair values of the investments held-for-trading are determined RIEEEZREZATEDRBHEEESRZS
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the relevant stock Frz % B AMEBEEE -

exchanges.
37. EQUITY-LINKED NOTE 37. REHBRIE
Equity-linked note is designated as financial assets at fair value through REEHZER D B RRATFEFTARGRZ
profit or loss. TRIBE-
Carrying amounts analysed for reporting purposes as: FRERERR 2 REBES T :
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT

Current eI E - 101,516
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37. EQUITY-LINKED NOTE (cont'd)

Major term of the equity-linked note is as follows:

Notional amount

BERHE

US$20,000,000
20,000,000% 7©

The equity-linked note had a contract period of 24 months and is callable,
bearing interest at 20.2% per annum with guaranteed coupon in the first
quarter. The equity-linked note was linked with an overseas listed equity
securities at a predetermined strike price and expired on 22nd February,
2008.

The equity-linked note was exposed to stock price risk, time risk and
implied volatility risk of the underlying stock but was not exposed to the
fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rate of the underlying stock.
At 31st December, 2007 the fair value adjustment to the note was
mainly related to the fair value of stock price and the strike price of the
underlying stock. The time risk and implied volatility risk were minimal to
the fair value of the note. Accordingly, the stock price risk was considered
as the main and the direct risk factor which affect the fair value of the

note.

The equity-linked note was measured at fair value at balance sheet date.
Its fair value was determined based on the quoted bid price provided by

the securities' broker for equivalent instruments at balance sheet date.

38. INVENTORIES FOR COSMETIC PRODUCTS

Finished goods UK fm
Raw materials R4 %+
Total AET

As at 31st December, 2008, all inventories were stated at the lower of

cost and net realisable value.

37 MEHNBERE (8)

REHBRBEZEZEARET:

Maturity
A

2008
—BENF

BREHRSNEEEA-_+NERZELH A7
ﬁ“@'ﬁ¢§ﬁ202r'ﬂﬂ[@§5ﬁ§ EZREL

cREBMEBRATBEITFEER-—SFI/N LT
szlx HFH TERZTENF-A=+=
HE| -

BEHBRERREREERER - FEER K
8 B SR S| 1R R 0 L e - B 30 B R AR R SMNEE
Haxpgak X2 LF+ —_HA=+—
H ZEBZATFEABRIZEREEBR QT
B R B A RE - B L B & ol R
EREREZZBZ ATFEZFZEBM - Bt
BEEERAREA/TEZZBEAFEZEE
rFEERRRAE-

BEHOEENEEBUNAFEFE EAF
AE

BB IBEREFLLRE QE?EI?EL#ZWE -
AREBEE -
38. bt miEE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET
2,881 1,257
545 168
3,426 1,425

RZBZENF+_A=+—H FEAFEEX
ARATBEFERETREEDNR-
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39. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables BN E 5 BR 1A
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREAE

Other receivable, deposits and prepayments

Included in trade receivables mainly comprised of rental receivables billed

in advance and properties sales proceeds receivables.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit quality
of each counterparty. The collection is closely monitored to minimise any
credit risk associated with these trade debtors. Considerations in respect
of sold properties are payable by the purchasers pursuant to the terms of
the sales and purchase agreements. Rental in respect of leased properties
are payable in advance by the tenants. Other trade debtors settle their
accounts according to the payment terms as stated in the respective

contracts.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance
for doubtful debts) at the balance sheet date:

0 - 30 days TE=1H
31 — 60 days =+—HZE+H
61 — 90 days At—HZAh+H
Over 90 days N+BIRE

H Ao U R - & RIAN FIR

39. RIARTE - & R IR FIR

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
44,040 129,938
(8,687) (10,499)
35,353 119,439
188,086 179,994
223,439 299,433

BREZEETEZRERAMEZRBREKES R
YR E RUROR -

AEECHTREZEERR LRFEEER
HHFZEEER ARETYERWFEBER
BREEREFRZSFRREZRBZEER
B-BNARBEEMZZGAINEENE
ZRE-HEYMEZHLAERBF AL -
H i E S EHARZE RIS A58 2 5%

HBERRE -

EUE SRTE (MR RERE) REE B ZIRR
DT :

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
18,634 103,443
3,024 1216
1,890 1,391
11,805 13,389

35,353 119,439
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39. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 39. RWARTA - & MM FR
(cont'd) (#&)
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which are past due B8 B ERBREZ BN E FERIE 2 R DT
but not impaired: LU
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
0 - 30 days TE=1H 8,395 4,932
31 — 60 days =+—HZE~+H 2,950 1,013
61 — 90 days AT—HBZA+AH 1,884 1,306
Over 90 days NTBIRE 11,740 13,357
Total CEl 24,969 20,608
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: REEEEZE T
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHEIT
Balance at beginning of the year R E AR 2 &R 10,499 16,622
Amounts written off as uncollectible LA BT 45 [B] #f 85 2 70IR (1,926) (5,832)
Amounts recovered during the year REFEE B FHIE (41) =
Impairment losses recognised (reversed) HIEWE ZRIERER (#0) 2
in respect of trade receivables BB E R 155 (291)
Balance at end of the year RF 4 2 484 8,687 10,499

For those past due but not impaired receivables, although no collateral is
held, the Group has assessed the creditworthiness, past payment history
and substantial settlement after the balance sheet date, and considers
that the amounts are still recoverable and no further credit provision is
required in excess of allowance for doubtful debts. Trade receivables
over 90 days amounting to HK$11,740,000 (2007: HK$13,357,000)
are sufficiently covered by rental deposits received from the respective
tenants and no allowance is required for these receivables under the

Group's allowance policy.

Trade receivables which are neither overdue nor impaired are in good

quality.

The Directors consider that the fair value of the Group's debtors, deposits
and prepayments at the balance sheet date were approximate their

carrying amounts.

HEBHEERAEZERRENS  BRLE
R AEECREGEE  BEERRERRE
HRBZEEBERELTG  WRAZHEEMD
AE - EFEEE—S (ZRREBE) 2
E#{E - HBiBI0H 2 W E 5 8R1511,740,000
BT (ZET L F 1 13,357,000/8 70 ) B LA AT
WZzEBEF 2R «MRE BREAEEZ
BERX EERZSRWFIEELEE-

B MR 2 R E P EE Y HER
4 -

EEERRAEEREEAZRKIRE 2
EENFBEZAFEEEREERS -
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40. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Liabilities a8
BEBEEZERMAR
FEEEE LD

Financial liabilities, held-for-trading

Interest rate swap

Major term of the interest rate swap is as follows:

Notional amount

BERHYHE

US$100,000,000
100,000,000 7T

Under the terms of the 12-year interest rate swap agreement, the Group
receives interest from the counterparty at a fixed rate of 12% in the
first year and will receive interest at floating rate, which is calculated by
reference to the USD vyield curves spread, for the remaining life of the
interest rate swap period. The Group will pay interest at floating rate
calculated by reference to 3-month USD LIBOR throughout the interest

rate swap period to the counterparty.

The swap is most sensitive to the following market parameters: USD
interest rate risk, USD vyield curves spread risk and USD interest rate
volatility risk. The fair value of the swap will drop when (a) the USD
interest rate increases; (b) the USD yield curves flattens or gets
inverted; or (c) the USD interest rate volatility decreases, and vice versa.
The magnitudes of sensitivity to these market parameters have been

estimated at the balance sheet date as follows:

. If the USD interest rate shifts up in parallel by 1 basis point, the fair
value of the swap will decrease by 3.5 basis points.

. If the USD vyield curves (30 years against 10 years) flatten by 1
basis point, the fair value of the swap will decrease by 22 basis

points.

. If the USD interest rate volatility decreases by 100 basis points, the

fair value of the swap will decrease by 35 basis points.

The swap is measured at fair value at each balance sheet date. Its fair
value is determined based on the quoted price provided by the securities'

broker for equivalent instruments at the balance sheet date.

40. 1A =@M T A

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
24,432 50,851

MEEHENZTEARWT

Maturity
FHA

13th January, 2017
—T—+F—A+=H

ERM+ —F2RXREHENERRZLHT
AEEEF A EEY T A RGRAE EF =12
EFE AHOBRTHEAMANZHNEX (K2E
IR ERBREEMEE) &L - AREHR
MEEHENERBRABEH FNE2R=
8 AR mBERITRIRF B K 2 F B K&+
BZHE -

BEHAEOKXTITSH2RTE XM XE
B~ SETT I ES 3R i AR (B R A S SR T I R R R
B o & (a) X T A X EFHE ¢ (b)SE 7T et K il
AR B 3 S [R) B ¢ 3¢ () 35 7T A 3ROR B Rk 59 B
BHEHNZATFERTE RZAR-ZEMS
2RZPERERBERAMGSOT:

c SR A EKF AT EEE 1=
AN AFER TE3.EER-

c HETHA XM (=ZTFL+F)FB
VEER  =HAa 2 R FES T F221E
EE o

. s 3 70 F| SR W8 OR A 100 E 2y - IR Hf A
H 2 ANFEA TPEI5EER -

EHAEAORSEEBRARAFEFE -EQFE
TRBEESRLENEE R RTEZEETARE

BE-
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41. CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS 41. RN ERIB R FEFT IR

Included in creditors and accruals are trade payables of approximately ENEBEREFRBEREENE ZERELY

HK$141,563,000 (2007: HK$43,765,000). 141,563,000 7T ( = BB+ 4F : 43,765,000/
JT) °

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet EREZREEREEB ZEREROMAT
date:

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR T

0 - 90 days TENTH 111,874 38,243
Over 90 days A+BRE 29,689 5,522
141,563 43,765

The Directors consider that the fair value of the Group's creditors and EEERRAKENAEE B 2 BAERIE R ET

accruals at the balance sheet date was approximately their carrying amounts. I Z AT EEHEREERE -
42. BORROWINGS 42. 6 &
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHEIT

Secured bank loans repayable within a period of: ZBR N7 EifEE ~

EEMRITER
Less than 1 year —FLT 3,163,925 2,771,741
More than 1 year but within 2 years —F LA BT BARME 2,350,783 1,180,588
More than 2 years but within 5 years M F LA BB R F 5,979,300 8,192,557
Over 5 years FEFEMUE 175,175 7,444
11,669,183 12,152,330

Other secured loans repayable within 1 year BAR—FAEERZ
HiBHEAER - 177,528
11,669,183 12,329,858
Less: Amounts due within one year B — AR H 2 5RI1E (3,163,925) (2,949,269)
Amounts due after one year —F1R BB 2 78 8,505,258 9,380,589

The bank loans are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest ZERTEREREEEE  FREEHBRITA
ranging from HIBOR+0.37% to HIBOR+1.5% (2007: HIBOR+0.37% to EHREMOITEEIMSEAE (ZTTLF  F
HIBOR+0.8%) per annum. BIRITREREMOI7TEENOSERE ) sHHE -
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42. BORROWINGS (cont'd)

The other loans are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest of inter-
bank borrowing rate +0.2% (2007: inter-bank borrowing rate +0.2%) per

annum.

The Directors consider that the fair value of the Group's borrowings

approximate their carrying amounts.

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currency other than HK$

are set out below:

Swiss Franc I A BB

43. PROVISIONS

Contingency provision HANFIRE

At 1st January ®—H—H
Provision for the year RNEZ R

At 31st December R+tZR=+—8H

Note: The provision represents construction cost determined by the management's
best estimate of the Group's liability on contingency claims by a third party to
whom a property under development project was previously disposed of.

42. 68 (&)

L ERAZEEE  FEIRIRTRER SN
02B (ZZEZTEF IRITRFEHREM0.2E) 5
%o

\

EXeRRAKEEREZAFEREAREER
=

AEBUBTAINEEAEZBEWT

2008 2007
CHF$'000 CHF$'000
F it 58P T35 BR
- 25,605
43, BE 5
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
16,017 16,017
37 =
16,054 16,017

et : BBEHEREEER —RFE=BHENEHZ®
RHYERB ENRAREMEE 2 AR A ERT
e 2 RIEMFTMERE 2 BEKA -
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44. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 44, AJ RHGE FH

(a)

In April and May 2005, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds (the “2005 Convertible Bonds") with maturity
date in 2010 and principal amount of HK$1,750,000,000 and
HK$60,000,000 respectively.

The 2005 Convertible Bonds are convertible on or after 20th
May, 2005 up to and including 20th March, 2010 into fully paid
ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.10 each of the Company
at conversion price of HK$7.37 per share, subject to adjustment.
Unless previously redeemed, converted, purchased and cancelled,
the 2005 Convertible Bonds will be redeemed at 100% of their
principal amount on 20th April, 2010

C))

KRRADHRZETHRFENARA A
BIOARASER) 750,000 0007 7t &
60,000,000 TR =_ZE—FFHH 2
;f%ﬂ%ﬁﬂﬂa%(F:%;ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬂx%
#H1)o

—EE ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁxfa%‘{ﬁé_? THER
AZ+HBgZ2EE_T—TF=A=+
H (B8f%B )tﬂﬁﬁx%‘fﬁxzmﬁn (7l
THRE) ABAARATEREE0.108 T
2R E R - RIESEAMELED -
Hit BERTH S -_ZZRAFAHR
BREFBR-_Z—ZFNA=+HIRE
K& 58 2 100%fE @] °

The 2005 Convertible Bonds contain two components, liability —ETRFAHRRESBEMERL S —
and equity elements. Upon the application of HKAS 32, the 2005 BERERSD RERBESENSE
Convertible Bonds were split between the liability and equity R —ETERFARRESEE D B
elements. The equity element is presented in equity heading BENERTD - ERBON [AIRRE

“Convertible bonds — equity reserve”. The effective interest rate of

the liability component is 4.38%.

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, HK$4,000,000 in
principal of the 2005 Convertible Bonds had been converted into
573,888 ordinary shares. In accordance with Condition 8 of the
Terms and Conditions of the 2005 Convertible Bonds, the Company
has an option to redeem the outstanding 2005 Convertible Bonds
on 21st May, 2007 at 100% of the principal amount. On 20th
April, 2007, the Company gave notice to the bondholders of the
outstanding 2005 Convertible Bonds to request early redemption.
All outstanding of the 2005 Convertible Bonds in principal amount
of HK$318,500,000 had been executed the right to convert into
shares of the Company (the “Conversion Right"). The Company
took the option by cash settlement to satisfy the Conversion Right
in HK$ in full. Accordingly, all outstanding of the 2005 Convertible
Bonds were settled by cash of approximately HK$571,700,000
in May and June 2007. There was no outstanding of the 2005
Convertible Bonds as at 31st December, 2007.

HrEmFEE PUAEREY BB
BERENES438E -

bz

RZZEZEF+_A=+—HIEFE"

— T TR F AR E 4,000,000 7T AR
SEE IR A573,888 LA - R IE =
TR F ] B EFIER R 2 F81H
B RARARERR _ZZ+4HA
—+— BIRASE 2 100%HE B R ITHE 2
—ETRFABRBRES R T LFD
AZ+H ARARRRIEZ_ZZTRHEF
ARRELRZEFRFAEARLERIZRE
[B] 7 3 40 - 78 & %8 /318,500,000 7T 2
RITE—_ZSTEAFIRBRELRE ZEAT
EH AR AR 2 #EF ([HRARHE]) -
RRARIAB T EBTER S EERIERE
VS E gAY & S A SO N e =]
FrAMBRESFER T FRHARLN
A B E AR £ 49571,700,000/8 TL45 & o
RZTZELF+_A=1+—8  WERT
2 _TTRFARRES -
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44. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (cont'd)

(b)

During the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Group further
acquired 36.519% equity interest of G-Prop which was previously
recognised as an associate of the Group at 31st December, 2007.
Accordingly, the Group holds 50.20% shareholding of G-Prop and

G-Prop became a subsidiary of the Group.

G-Prop issued in the aggregate principal amount of HK$180,000,000
HK$ denominated zero coupon convertible bonds (the “2008
Convertible Bonds") to Asian Kingdom and Fame Ascent (collectively
referred to as the “Bondholders”) on 25th October, 2007.

Each 2008 Convertible Bonds entitles the Bondholders to convert
to one ordinary share of G-Prop at a conversion price of HK$0.162
subject to adjustment. Conversion may occur at any time between
25th October, 2007 and 24th October, 2010. If the 2008
Convertible Bonds have not been converted, it will be redeemed
on the date of maturity at the principal amount of the 2008

Convertible Bonds then outstanding.

During the year ended 31st December, 2008, Fame Ascent entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Mass Rise Limited (“Mass
Rise"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in
which Mass Rise agreed to purchase 36.51% equity interests
in G-Prop and part of the 2008 Convertible Bonds from Fame
Ascent. Following completion of the transaction, HK$72,000,000
of the 2008 Convertible Bonds was held by Asian Kingdom
and HK$108,000,000 of the 2008 Convertible Bonds was
held by Mass Rise respectively. On 31st October, 2008, G-Prop
redeemed the 2008 Convertible Bonds at the principal amount
of HK$180,000,000 in full at 100% outstanding principal amount
by cash. The 2008 Convertible Bonds so redeemed has been
cancelled simultaneously. At 31st December, 2008, there is no
outstanding of the 2008 Convertible Bonds.

44, Al RARE FH

(b)

(&)

RZBENF+ZA=+—HILFE &
SEE—SPHESE (ZARZZTTLF
TZA=T - BEHRERANEE 2 BE
ANaE)3651%nKkE it AREFES
E50200# ¢ EEMKALAEER 2
ig=ENG]|

CER-ZZEZLF T A= +£E§§TT$
& 42 %8180,000,000% T 2 & 7t T B 7]
B E S ( :%?)\E—Hﬁﬂxf %J)
Asian Kingdom& % 5 (REA [EHFFE
Al) e

BEAFFAEABEAZRRREC. 1628 T
(Al FHRAE) BT {“—ZT/\EEIMQ%
HFRMB—BREEEBER - N_TTLF
+A=-+RABE-_ZT— EEH% +
E/HHFEIEnfﬁw?FEﬁEHETTRT@"1I€ﬂf§$/\
FARBRES R LR ARBBHHRE
KARTEZZZSTN\FURRESF LS
HEONZEES -

ZENF+_A=+—HIEFE £
iIKRRzHEE2EANBARERS
B (TERDFIEE M Hit-
REMZARESEI6S51%0EER
ZTZNFAARESHF -ZERD
(1% » Asian Kingdom# /72,000,000
BRLZ_ZTN\FARKRES MESR
81455 108,000,000/8 7T 2 — T T )\ F 7]
BRRESF - RZTEN\EFE+A=1+—8"
SEBRRITERAET Z100%ERN &5
180,000,000/ T AR @ BHERI =T F
NEABBRES R LER 2 —TT)\F
RBREFERSZFHEH RZZT)\F
TZA=+—8 BERTEZZTZN
FARRES -
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44,

©)

45.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (cont'd)

Movement of the liability component of the 2005 Convertible

Bonds and the 2008 Convertible Bonds for the year is set out

below:

Liability component of the 2005 Convertible Bonds
at 1st January, 2007

Conversion into ordinary shares

Imputed interest expense for the year

Conversion of the 2005 Convertible Bonds

by cash settlement

Liability component of the 2005 Convertible Bonds
at 31st December, 2007

Additions of the 2008 Convertible Bonds arising
from acquisition of subsidiaries

Purchase part of the 2008 Convertible Bonds

Imputed interest expense for the year

Redemption during the year

Liability component of the 2008 Convertible
Bonds at 31st December, 2008

44 ATRIRES (88)
(0 ZZEZRFABERESFE-_ZZTNET
BRESFZBBIBIRNAFEE 2
Fan R
HK$'000
FET
—ETRFAUBRRESFR
—ZEE+F-A—BZ2EaEHXRD 279,689
BERBRAL B (3,475)
RFEEzREFBHAXZ 4,050
MBS EE TR ARZEZTHF
AR E S (280,264)
—ETRFABRESFR
BT E+-A=1+t—BZEEHS -
WHEMRB AR FELEARZ
—EEN\FABRRES 144,682
BARXS T N\FAIRKRES (88,558)
RFEEzREFEFAX 5,305
NEZER (61,429)
—EENEAURRESFR

—EEN\FE+-A=+—HZAEERD -

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES AND

MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS

Both the amounts due to associates and minority shareholders are

unsecured. Except for the amount due to one minority shareholder

which is interest bearing at the prevailing market rate, the amounts

due to associates and the remaining minority shareholders are interest-

free. The associates and minority shareholders will not demand for

repayment within one year from the balance sheet date and the amounts

are therefore shown as non-current. The Directors consider that the fair

value of the amounts as at the balance sheet date, determined based on

the present values of the estimated future cash flows discounted using

the prevailing market rates at the balance sheet date, approximate their

carrying amounts.

45. R Bt NA M VIR E
=5 15
TN IE

REBERARLBRRFAY HEER KR
RE—RDERZHRIBTIRE B35 H K&t
BN RABERNR REMDBBRRKIELR
RE-ZEWERARIBBERTENEE

E—FRAEREE WZEFRRIEF R T
B-REFENGHEAZAFEDNRERERZ
ERMSNXBBEGHRRRSREME
HeBRE EFER/NEEAZAFEER
BREEMES °
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46. DEFERRED TAXATION 46. IRIEFIE

UNTRAKRERAFERBERE FEIEL R
(BRI ZEBEEEHARE (BE) RHEE

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) provided

(recognised) by the Group and movements thereon during the current

and prior reporting years:

& :

Fair value
Revaluation  Accelerated adjustment on
Convertible of investment tax acquisition of Tax
bonds properties  depreciation  subsidiaries losses Total
8
WEARZ
TARES REVXER NERERE - AVPERE HBER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT TEL TEL FET FET
At Tst January, 2007 RZZZt$-H-H - 4,462,805 11,535 - (86,049) 4,388,291
Addition through acquisition of BBYE M
a subsidiary WEARRNE - - (75) - - (75)
Realise on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FNBARKED - (2,021) (1,779) - 1626 (2,174)
Charge (credit) to consolidated WEa YRR (KE)
income statement - 985,836 11,394 - (5,259) 991,971
At 31st December, 2007 RZZEZL+F
+-B=+-AH - 5446620 21,075 = (89,682) 5378013
Addition through acquisition of BRKENBRARRE
subsidiaries 5,704 3,102 - 9,853 (95) 18,564
Effect in change in tax rate RS d - (296,252) (1,151) - 5,074 (292,329)
(Credit) charge to consolidated e la® (BE) Mk
income statement (1,632) (1,279,249) (33,440) - 9,550 (1,304,771)
Charge to equity RRAFER R - 139 - - - 139
Redemption of the 2008 BE-_ZZ)\F
Convertible Bonds ARRES (4,072) = = = = (4,072)
Realise on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAANRE - - - (9,853) - (9,853)
At 31st December, 2008 RZBENE
+=A=+-8 = 3,874,360 (13,516) = (75,153) 3,785,691
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46. DEFERRED TAXATION (cont'd)

For the purposes of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets have been offset. The following is the

analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax liabilities RIERHIEGE
Deferred tax assets BERIEEE

At the balance sheet date, the Group has the following major
unrecognised deferred tax assets due to the unpredictability of the future

profit streams.

Accelerated tax depreciation MERTLIEAT &
Tax losses BIs e e

The unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

46. EIEFIE (&)

REERBRZZY ETELEHBAEBNE
EHEEECKHHE - MMBRER R ZRT
MBS OITIT

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
3,882,381 5,444,587

(96,690) (66,574)
3,785,691 5,378,013

REE R NEBB AT BB AR R OE
MAERZERRERAEE -

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
(24,673) (1,639)
(284,835) (332,573)
(309,508) (334,212)

AR RIS E IR R R A -
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47. SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year were as

follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Authorised:
At st January and 31st December

Issued and fully paid:
At 1st January
Issue of ordinary shares in lieu of
2006 final cash dividend

Issue of ordinary shares in lieu of
2007 interim cash dividend

Issue of ordinary shares in lieu of
2007 final cash dividend
(Note i)

Issue of ordinary shares in lieu of
2008 interim cash dividend
(Note i)

Repurchase of ordinary shares
(Note ii)
Issue of ordinary shares from

conversion of convertible bonds

At 31st December

FREE0.10B T

ERR

EEBA

R—A—BE+=A
=t-H

EETRARKRA:

®—A—H
RE-ZTRF
ABRSKEM
B2 ERR
RE-ZTZTLHF
FEREREM
BII2EBR
RE-_ZTLHF
AR BB
B2 EBR
(BisEi)
RE-_ZZNE
FHREREM
B2 EAR
(FizEi)
e L ER
(FiEii)
BHAAREST
B2 EBRR

R+=A=+-AH

47. R% 2

RAFEARRRBRAZEHIT

Number of shares

Share capital

g ] [
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHL
5,000,000,000  5,000,000,000 500,000 500,000
2,300,443,378  2,259,809,483 230,044 225,981
= 23,829,941 = 2,383
- 16,230,066 - 1,623
3,822,246 = 382 =
357,455 = 36 =
(226,873,000) = (22,687) =
- 573,888 - 57
2,077,750,079  2,300,443,378 207,775 230,044
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47. SHARE CAPITAL (cont'd)

Notes:

() In June and October 2008, 3,822,246 shares and 357,455 shares of
HK$0.10 each were issued by the Company at HK$12.56 per share and
HK$10.952 per share as scrip dividend respectively.

(i) During the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Company repurchased its
own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

Month of

Repurchases

ETEEZA®G

March 2008 —ZEENF=H
May 2008 —ETNEES
June 2008 —ETZNEFEXA
July 2008 —ZETN\FLH
August 2008 —ZEENFENA
September 2008 —EENFA
October 2008 T )N\F+A
November 2008 T N\F+—A
December 2008 T N\F+=A

The above ordinary shares were cancelled upon repurchase. None of the
Company's subsidiaries had repurchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company's listed shares during the year.

48. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Acquisition of G-Prop (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries
As at 31st December, 2007, the Group held 13.69% interest in
G-Prop, a listed company in Hong Kong. On 5th February, 2008,
the Group further acquired 36.51% interest in G-Prop, which
result G-Prop became a 50.20% indirectly owned subsidiary of the

Company after the acquisition, at a consideration of approximately

HK$120,777,000.

No. of

ordinary

shares
repurchased
FBEEBEREE

1,959,000
2,820,000
11,888,000
19,546,000
58,078,000
94,207,000
16,917,000
14,601,000
6,857,000

47. IR (&)
B &E
) RZZEZNFRNARTA ARQBH BT
3,822,246% & 357,4550% B AR I 50.10% It 2
BROARBERE - BITED R ARERI12.567 T
M &R%10.952/8 T °
@iy RZZEENF+ZA=+—HLFE &AH
RERZEE AL B FFEET:
Price per share Aggregate
FRERE consideration
Highest Lowest paid
BS BI& EffERE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FAT
11.70 11.40 22,811
13.30 13.10 37,355
11.80 10.72 134,171
12.12 11.16 223,825
11.26 10.64 639,076
10.96 9.04 971,141
9.48 6.13 137,688
6.04 4.60 78,653
6.80 5.47 43,140
Ll EBERERBEREHE ARFSHBA
AIRAFEHEREE - B BB ARG E[A
MG -
48. W RE M B A 7]
(a) UKBLZELHXERAGRANKBAA

RZZEZtF+_A=+—H &&H
REBBLMAREE 213.69%% % o
RZZEZNF_ARAH AEBENURE
#9120,777,0008 L — L WE S E 2
36.510% M  #EITWEE élz;ﬂztma
A)# B 50.2000 25 2 EEH B A



168 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED EA B X5 E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= 4 B & 3R 3k MY 5
For the year ended 3 st December, 2008 BE_FENFLT_H=1—HIFE

48. WEEIN B ~ 7] (&)

(a) Acquisition of G-Prop (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries (a)

48. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

WELELFERAAIRENE R A

(cont’d)

The net assets acquired in the transaction are as follows:

(&)

RXBTREZEEFERT:

Carrying
amounts
before the Fair value
acquisition adjustments Fair value
W EE AT =
BREE ATERE ATE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHBIT FHEIT
Net assets acquired: WebE & &5 ME
Investment properties LEWME 31,000 - 31,000
Property and other fixed assets MR EMEEE E 2,156 - 2,156
Properties under development BRPME 2,040 - 2,040
Prepaid lease payments BN HEERIE 62,565 - 62,565
Tax recoverable A B 18 106 - 106
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWERIE 1R & &
B RIA 115,508 - 115,508
Time deposits, bank balances and cash ~ FHIFZ - BITEH K
H& 311,257 - 311,257
Creditors and accruals JE 1~ BR 1B K FE 5T 5/ 18 (2,025) - (2,025)
Deposits and receipts in advance & R IE L WEGRIA (419) = (419)
Tax payable J& A5 ¢ IR (462) - (462)
Convertible bonds MR ES (144,682) - (144,682)
Deferred tax liabilities BT IB A & (18,564) - (18,564)
Convertible bonds equity reserve ARG SRR (30,234) - (30,234)
328,246 = 328,246
50.20% net assets acquired BB & = 7 $ B 2 50.20% 164,780
Interests in associates held prior to WHERTFE A 2
the acquisition NS (49,672)
Goodwill Gk 6,291
Total consideration wRE 121,399
Satisfied by: LATR 2175 R 2 A+
Cash consideration paid ENBREENKE 120,777
Expenses incurred for acquisition WHEE A+ 2 X 622
121,399
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEREE 2T RA
R
Bank balances and cash acquired ik g 2 sR1T#E R RIR S 311,257
Cash consideration paid BENBESNKE (120,777)
Expenses incurred for acquisition WIEEEX 2R (622)

189,858
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48. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd) 48 WHEHNB A A (&)

(a) Acquisition of G-Prop (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries (a) UWELELPEERAGTREWBAT
(cont’d) (i)
Details of the acquisition were disclosed in the Company’s joint B ZFREBRARF TENF
announcement dated 7th March, 2008. ZSATRELHZBER ﬁl?\] ®
G-Prop contributed approximately HK$66,000 loss to the Group for TEAREREEERHRARKESER
the period from the date of acquisition to the balance sheet date. E184966,0008 7T - KB R — T T\ F
If the acquisition had been completed on 1st January, 2008, the —HA—RZEK EER/AREETR WA
revenue and loss of G-Prop contributed to the Group would have X &5 18 5 Rl & /6,790,0007% 7T 528,000
been HK$6,790,000 and HK$28,000 respectively. The proforma AL -BEERHEEZ2ERE  LIFAK
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an MR —FE N \F-A—BAxKKBE
indication of revenue and results of the Group that actually would BRARIRARREZER T RERR
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1st RZFME-
January, 2008, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

(b) Acquisition of The House of Kwong Sang Hong International ~ (b) '%/&The House of Kwong Sang Hong

Limited

On 29th June, 2007, the Group acquired 100% equity interest
of The House of Kwong Sang Hong International Limited (which
is engaged in manufacturing and retailing of cosmetic products)
from an 50% associate for consideration of approximately
HK$20,000,000.

International Limited

RZZEZELFNAtTHE AEBUR
{& £920,000,0005% 7T 7] — & # B 500%7#
@ BB A AW BB The House of Kwong
Sang Hong International Limited ( & 21¢
EEHBORERTE) 2100%K A #

g
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48. WEEIN B ~ 7] (&)

Y fEThe House of Kwong Sang Hong

48. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

(b) Acquisition of The House of Kwong Sang Hong International (b)

Limited (cont’d)

The net assets acquired in the transaction are as follows:

International Limited (#&)

RXBTREZEEFENT:

Carrying
amount
before the Fair value
acquisition adjustment Fair value
W BE Al 2 AFE
BRE{E e AFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET F&T
Net assets acquired: W hE & 1A -
Properties and other fixed assets 2 N B B E A 76 - 76
Trademark EiZ - 14,300 14,300
Deferred tax assets BIETIRE &= 75 - 75
Inventories for cosmetic products bR EFEE 1,555 - 1,555
Debtors, deposits and JEUEBRTE =& &
prepayments KN 1,865 = 1,865
Bank balances and cash RITEBERE 2,912 - 2,912
Creditors and accruals FES AR IE R FE AT R0IE (159) = (159)
6,324 14,300 20,624
Discount on acquisition of a subsidiary & — R I B A A1 47 % (624)
Total consideration BB 20,000
Satisfied by: AT 52 % A
Cash B& 20,000
Net cash outflow arising WHEFELZRESR
on acquisition: FHER
Cash consideration paid BEfNBEEKE (20,000)
Bank balances and cash acquired i 2 sR1T R IR S 2,912
(17,088)

WEZFBRERARANR _ZZLFLH
BEHBZAMA-

Details of the acquisition were disclosed in the Company’s

announcement dated 3rd July, 2007.

The House of Kwong Sang Hong International Limited contributed The House of Kwong Sang Hong International

Limitedd WEEB =4 E B IR AR E B ERE
18 49204,00078 7T °

approximately HK$204,000 to the Group's loss for the period from

the date of acquisition to the balance sheet date.
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49. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Disposal of Big Winner Investments Limited and its (a)

subsidiaries

During the year ended 31st December, 2008, G-Prop (a
50.20% interest subsidiary of the Company) entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Fame Ascent to dispose of its
subsidiaries, Big Winner Investments Limited and its subsidiaries
(the "Big Winner Group”, which is engaged in production and
sale of methanol), at a total consideration of approximately

HK$183,699,000.

The net assets of the Big Winner Group at the date of disposal were

as follows:

Property and other fixed assets

Properties under development

Prepaid lease payments

Deposits and prepayments

Bank balances and cash

Creditors and accruals

Loan from an intermediate holding company
Deferred tax liabilities

Release of translation reserve
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Satisfied by:

Cash

Loan from an intermediate holding company
Expenses incurred for disposal

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

Cash consideration
Expenses incurred for disposal
Bank balances and cash disposed of

49. HEME A A

HEBHKEFRARAREN B A A

RZZEZENF+_A=+—HLEE"
2 E (AR T A50.200% 25 2 B A
AEZATVEERZ REREYD
183,699,000/ T i1 & H T B 2 51 B /1%
BERARLREMBAR ([BHEE]
HEBALEERHEERE) -

EHEENLERMZEERFENT:

2008
HK$'000
F#&IT
YR H A E K E 3,181
BRAME 2,182
BN EERIE 66,091
e RIEKIA 115,546
RITHEAR KRB S 11,324
J& < BR 18 K% J& 51 5K0E (1,071)
FREER AR ZER (183,842)
LR IEEE (9,853)
3,558
B Ol E & (9,761)
HEMB ARz W 3,870
(2,333)
AR5 75 2 A+
Re 183,699
FREERARIZER (183,842)
HEMEAZHAL (2,190)
(2,333)
PERNEEZESRAFE:
RERE 183,699
HEMEAZHAX (2,190)
BEHEZRITEBRKE S (11,324)
170,185

The impact of the Big Winner Group on the Group's result and cash

flows in the current and prior years are disclosed in Note 12.

EREERAFERBEFEHASEE

BRBERENTENMEI2RKE-
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49. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd) 49. LEWB AR (&)

(b) Disposal of 15.11% interest of G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (b) HEZELFEBEMRAFTZI15.11%#E %
On 7th June, 2007, the Group had disposed 15.11% interest in a R-ZBEZLFNALH AEBUKRE
subsidiary, G-Prop, by placing at a consideration of approximately #7180,000,000% 7T LA BE & 75 = H & 7
HK$180,000,000, resulting in a gain on disposal of approximately —RHMNBAR (£E)215.11%# %
HK$158,212,000. Accordingly, the Group's shareholding in G-Prop & 75 2K 2 W s 49 /158,212,000 T °
had decreased from 50.1% to 34.99%. G-Prop therefore ceased to Hit - REER 2 E 2 RIEH50.1%6EF =
be a subsidiary and became an associate of the Group. 3499% Ht @ ETHAREE 2 WE

RE MARARE 2B ERE -

The net assets of G-Prop at the date of disposal were as follows: CEREHERRZEEFBENT
HK$'000
FHIT
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFE:
Investment properties REY % 35,600
Available-for-sale investments HERE 100
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEYARIE - & RTB (I FRIA 7,536
Time deposit, bank balances and cash FEHBEZR BTEHRNIES 98,460
Creditors and accruals FE T BRIE K FE AT FRIA (1,236)
Deposits and receipts in advance Be k8L WERIA (8,418)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEE & (2,174)
Net assets EEFE 129,868
49.9% minority interest 49.9% ) AR R g = (64,769)
The Group's share of net assets REBEBIEEEFE 65,099
Share of net assets disposed of BHEHEEEFE (18,424)
Dividend approved before and paid after disposal 74 tH & B #it /& & A HH & 1B IR (2 f% B (3,976)
42,699
Advance to associate NP N P L] (30)
Share of net assets owned by the Group BEASERHEREECEESE
after disposal (included in interests in associates) (2 &H ARt A a1z ) 42,669
Share of net assets disposed of BEBEHEEEFE 18,424
Expenses incurred for disposal HEEEZRE 3,364
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— BB ARz K 158,212
Total consideration BB 180,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEREEZHSRAFRE:
Cash consideration HeRE 180,000
Dividend received from the disposed subsidiary BEELEMBARKRZEE 3,976
Expenses incurred for disposal HEEEZRE (3,364)
Bank balances and cash disposed of BEHEZRITERRIRE (98,460)

82,152
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50. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 50. F2EBEERH

During the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Company issued RZEZNFT_A=T—HIEFE KAH

and allotted a total of 3,822,246 ordinary shares and 357,455 ordinary 5 Bl A & 1% 12.567% 7T % 10.9527% 7T 2% 17 & Bt

shares of HK$0.10 each at HK$12.56 and HK$10.952 each respectively BEEREMEO0.108 T2 MR 3,822,24608 &

in lieu of cash for the 2007 final and 2008 interim dividends totalling 3574550 MRBZZEZ+FERARZTTN

HK$51,921,000 (as referred to Notes 19 and 47). FHRE RGN S A%51,921,0008 T (25
BizE19%47) -

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, the Group had the following R-EELF+_A=+—HLEFE AEHE
major non-cash transactions: ZEBFBRERHWT:

(a) The Company issued and allotted a total of 23,829,941 ordinary (@) ARRDAAERR11.628FBTK11.532/%8

shares and 16,230,066 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at TLETRREESREECI0E L ZEBK

HK$11.628 and HK$11.532 each respectively in lieu of cash for the $£23,829,9410% }16,230,0660% * LA &

2006 final and 2007 interim dividends totalling HK$464,260,000 —EERERPER T LFHRHBH R

(as referred to Note 47). % I B 48 58464,260,000/8 7T (2 B W &
47) °

(b) The 2005 Convertible Bonds with an aggregate principal amount (b) A& #EEA4,0000008 Lz —EERF
of HK$4,000,000 were converted into 573,888 ordinary shares of AMRESE LR AR A RFREEO0.10
HK$0.10 each of the Company. P TT 2 B Ak573,8880% °
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51. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 51. B EEH

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts of the assets pledged REEH AEBARGIHAEESHAH 2 —
by the Group to secure general banking and other loan facilities and to RIBTEEREMEFURITESRIARS
secure the derivative financial instruments transaction, granted to the MMz BEEREESI MO

Group are analysed as follows:

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHBT

Investment properties REME 28,643,220 37,048,548
Property and other fixed assets 2 I H B E & = 60,289 47,635
Prepaid lease payments TR ERIE 319,552 239,229
Stock of properties MEEE 2,995,196 561,938
Investments held-for-trading BIFEBE KA - 194,690
Non-current pledged deposits FE T B R 1F X 99,599 79,217
Current pledged deposits A 3R 378,483 406,492
32,496,339 38,577,749

In addition, the Group has subordinated and assigned its advance to AN REEBER —EBE QAR R —BEEXE
an associate and advance to an investee company of approximately BRAERZRIT—REEBEBN —HEE
HK$1,275,036,000 (2007: HK$1,152,022,000) to financial institutions NEl Rk —EEZRE AT FHIEA,275,036,000
to secure banking general credit facilities granted to an associate and an B (ZEZ L4 :1,152,022,0007% 7T ) & 55
investee company and interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company REZEVBHEE MARAARFIETHERARZ
have been pledged as part of the security to secure certain bank  HEZAIEEHEALEBERS THRAIEEZ
borrowings granted to the Group. B
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52. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT 52 B AREAERKABE
LIABILITIES

(a) Capital commitments: (a) BXFEE:
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAEIT
Authorised and contracted for: BERtERBEL:
Development expenditure of BEEMEZERX
properties in Hong Kong 1,269,073 460,080
Development expenditure of REAEYEERAT
properties in Mainland China 724,969 126,637
Development expenditure of R EERAX
properties in Macau 36,412 51,780
Renovation of properties (R ZES 268,571 276,546
2,299,025 915,043
Authorised but not contracted for: BEREBREL:
Development expenditure of ERMEERHAX
properties in Hong Kong 205,320 163,113
Renovation of properties B - 224
205,320 163,337
(b) Contingent liabilities: (b)) HAEE:
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Guarantees given to bank, in respect of A—EEERR, —BEZ
banking facilities utilised by REDNAERZRITEER
an associate/an investee company MR TR 2 IR 1,069,650 1,069,650
Guarantee given to a bank in respect of A% M & A Bl EERITHEA
banking facilities in lieu of the cash ZEEHEUARERS
public utility deposit jointly utilised NAEBFRIMAERT
by subsidiaries R ZER 10,000 10,000

1,079,650 1,079,650
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52. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (cont'd)

(c) Risk management
The Group has established adequate risk management procedures
that enable it to identify, measure, monitor and control the various
types of risk it faces. This is supplemented by active management
involvement, effective internal controls and adequate internal audits

in the best interests of the Group.

53. OPERATING LEASES

52. EAREENSAAE (B)

() EEBEEE
AEBBRHFT —ETENRBREERT
AHR EE BERRIEGREEYNEE
R WEHABENEIEERE AR
MEDER 12 I B 49 N SR E A% - LAIRPE AR &=
B ) B (£ Tl 25 o

53. & 4

The Group as lessee K& B ARMEA
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Minimum lease payments paid REEHBE@EMEEEM
under operating leases in respect of NN 2 B & 58
premises during the year 1,044 603

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which

fall due as follows:

REER ARERTARBEEXEAN AR
RIEE S FER 2 AER T AR R

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET TET

Within one year R—FRA 1,171 810
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZFELF (BEEREMF) 907 1,028
2,078 1,838

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated for an average term

of 1 to 2 years.

EEBOMESEASEREE TS FENERE
N2HE - BOFAT-—EMFAZ K
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53. OPERATING LEASES (cont'd) 53. @ EMA (&)
The Group as lessor K5 B 73 H A

Property rental income earned during the year was approximately RAF B MER S WAL /961,578,000
HK$961,578,000 (2007: HK$773,331,000) less outgoings of BT (ZZETTLF:773,331,0008 L) -
approximately HK$62,229,000 (2007: HK$72,304,000). Ik 5 X 4962,229,0008 T (Z 2 Z £ F -
72,304,0005 7T ) ©

The investment properties of the Group are expected to generate annual REE 2R E Y TE AR B EERS B F2.35%
rental yields of 2.35% to 8.93% (2007: 2.18% to 9.09%) on an ongoing %£893% (ZFZT L F:2.18%%9.09% ) 2
basis. All of the properties held have committed tenants not exceeding UL K PR 2 P A 1 B A E TR A 4F B
five years. AP BBAF -

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the REEB ASBECREAF NHHEZ B

following future minimum lease payments: SEBREREETL
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Within one year R—FRA 929,236 746,961
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZELF (BEAEERRSE) 804,413 690,961
Over five years AFNRE 12,668 -

1,746,317 1,437,922
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54. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(the "ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior
to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of
staying in the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas
all new employees joining the Group on or after 1st December, 2000
are required to join the MPF Scheme. For the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employees and the Group. The maximum
relevant payroll costs for contribution purpose is HK$20,000 per month.
Staff members are entitled to 100% of the Group's contributions together
with accrued returns irrespective of their length of service with the Group,
but the benefits are required by law to be preserved until the retirement
age of 65. For the ORSO Scheme, the Group contributes 5% to 10%
of relevant payroll costs to the ORSO Scheme and the contribution by
employees is at 5%. Staff members are entitled to 100% of the Group's
contributions together with accrued returns after completing 10 years
of service or more, or attaining the retirement age, or are entitled at a
reduced scale between 30% to 90% of the Group's contributions after

completing a period of service of at least 3 years but less than 10 years.

The total costs charged to the consolidated income statement of
approximately HK$4,310,000 (2007: HK$4,465,000) represent

contributions payable to these schemes by the Group for the year.

4. R IRAEFET S

AN &R [E 22 B — TEAR SR I 2E AR IR AT KB T SR
E2HFGTE ([BERARTE]) RN ZZZEE
F+Z AHT—IBRERRGIE A E S G ENEH
ALz RTERE ([RERFE]) <&
Bz EERAEB 2 EESREA L H
REABE - RERBE ST BIBLAT - BB RIK
FTEIK B 2 (B BB BB S I R IKET 2
B AL NEAERTE MRS TF+ =
A—BRZENMAREE 2 EEBHESLNA
et - ANEERER S ARER A
e BB H IR A Z5% MK - g8 M ANEE
ZHERER R ERT F BB E KR LR
A A20,0008 7 TR ERAEE 2 REF
5+ {2 B9 ATV 100% 728 & B i 3 E [ 5T [El
B WRBEN EENEEREERNFR
655k 7 Al EHR - BB R RGBT - NEE
] Bk 3R R ET B fE B B H A 7N 2 5% % 10%
MK MR 8 BIfE L 50 M 3 - /8 B AR TS M 10
G 38 BA _E 3k B 3R K 4F B I 75 BT LIS 100% 7N S
B it FGE R FEET B 3R - M RS F ERZIFEER R
104F 2 & 8 Bl A] R 5 Rk b 5 X 5 3000 2 90% 2
BN

RER A WS RNBR 2 48 A #)/54,310,000/8 7T
(ZZEZ 4 : 4,465,000 70 ) Bl &£ BA KR
FERAZESHEEMNZHRK
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55. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had the following material transactions with related parties
during the year:

Income received from associates: B E A E 2 A
Secretarial fee wEEH
Office and retail rental BTFERTEMERS
Building management fee AREERE
Management fee ERE
Interest income A
Administration fee THE
Accountancy fee 25 B

Rent, building management fee and rates paid BEfNEE AR Z2HE
to associates AEERE =MW

Imputed interest expenses relating to convertible
bonds issued to a private company owned
AENEXH

B — BB A
— MBS R A 2R E

B S R E 1 R
—fRBE A ZRE

by a Director
Consideration paid to an associate
for acquisition of a subsidiary
Consideration received from an associate
for disposals of investment properties

Secretarial fee, administration fee and accountancy fee were charged
based on an appropriate allocation of costs incurred by central
administrative departments of the Group. Office and retail rental, rent and
rates, and building management fee were determined on terms similar
to those applicable to transactions with unrelated parties. Management
fee was charged at the terms agreed by both parties. Interest income was
charged at the prevailing market rate based on outstanding balance during
the year. Consideration paid for acquisition and consideration received for
disposals were reference to open market value.

On 31st October, 2008, G-Prop redeemed the 2008 Convertible Bonds
in principal amount of HK$72,000,000 in full by cash, which was held by
Asian Kingdom, a private company owned by a Director.

Details of the balances with related parties as at the balance sheet date
are set out in Notes 29 and 45 above.

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel is disclosed in Notes 16
and 17 to the consolidated financial statements. The remuneration of
the Directors and senior executives is determined by the Remuneration
Committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

A ff

S5.BERNEALTRS

B —2EEHEAZ—BELA
REBITABBRESEBZ

BREEHERREMBPICHEEIIN AEE
RARFEEERBEBEATETATERARLS
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
1 7
275 668
- 36
112 48
7,332 8,969
25 162
120 120
1,600 614
3,556 =
- 20,000
- 29,280
MEEBR THRERSHEDNEAEE ZH R

TTRERFIFTEE & 2 RS Z 38 & 9 B ER » &=
FERTEDEES HEREMARKEE
BETIZEEREA TR 5 EMAZ BEUERT
BT - EREIREE T E 2 HRFUE - FE
WATIIRBAFERNREESHIZE R TISH
R E KB 2 RE R L ERERZ K
BN2RBAFRMESE -

RZZZENF+A=1+—H0 SENRLEH

& [l Asian Kingdom (BE —REEHBZLAR
7)) B 3 7N £ %872,000,0008 T2 — T T\ F
ARRES -

REEH HBEEALZRFE
X FE29 K45 ©

R BRI £

FTEEFEANSHE
FEFEAEME NG MBmMEMTI6K17
AEBE-BEZRERTHRABZHMESEHINE
BEg2ZEIALTRERMSGBEEEE -
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56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of
all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and therefore the following
list contains only the subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2008 which

principally affected the results or assets of the Group.

Fully paid

Place of Class of share/ share capital/

incorporation/ registered registered

operation capital held capital

Name of subsidiary M FisRe,/ BrRE/

WEAREHE REHH & A &Rl M E AR

Alpha Team Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Uss1

EEABRAHE Rk (E

Baharica Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20

EE BBR 20/ 7T

Billion Up Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Uss1

EEABRAE &Rk (E

Bingo Power Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1

ABUBARAE R E

Cardin Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2

EABERRA EE &Rk 2B

Chi Cheung Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,387,659.87

Company, Limited* B L@k 33876598787
EREXARAF®

Chinese Estates, Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000

ZEABEBERARA £ Rk 1,000/ 7T

Chinese Estates Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200

(Harcourt House) B EER 200/ 7T

Limited

56. T 2B AR FIB

ExeRRlbaBARENESREA
Rzt TREBFER-_ZTZNF+_H
St HEAEEZXEREEREERNEL
MEBLRZFFE-

Proportion of
nominal value

of paid-up capital/
registered capital

held by the Company

AARAFBHERE Principal activities

AMEFEEZED L TEXK
Directly Indirectly
E# i %

= 100% Investment holding

REZR

- 100% Property investment

NERE

= 100% Investment holding

REZR

= 100% Securities investment

BEHRE

- 100% Property development

and trading

NEFRLEE

= 61.96% Investment holding

REZR

100% = Investment holding

and provision of
management services

REERRIREE RS

- 100% Property investment

UES 8
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56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 56. TEWE ARG (&)

(cont'd)

Proportion of

Fully paid nominal value

Place of Class of share/ share capital/ of paid-up capital/

incorporation/ registered registered registered capital

operation capital held capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary AR FiiE R/ BRRE/ ARRABEHEZREAS Principal activities
WEAREH gEm & AR EMEAR AMEAEBEZBDL TEEH

Directly Indirectly

H# 3%

Chinese Estates Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 = 100% Property investment
(Tung Ying Building) B Rk 28T MERE
Limited

Chinese Estates Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 - 100% Property investment
(Windsor House) 0 Rl 100/ 7T MERE
Limited Non-voting deferred HK$2

ERFHETR 28T

Conduit Road Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 70% Property development
Development Limited &8 Tk 10,0008 7T MELE

TREZXRARRAA

Country Homes Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 - 100% Property investment

N TR 2007 7T NERE
Non-voting HK$164,400
deferred ordinary
BREE 164,4007% 7T
R EBR
Non-voting HK$1,000
deferred founder
ERRE 1,0007% 7T
BRI AR

Country Honour Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 = 100% Property investment

HEERAR EE Rk 28T MERE

Dollar Union Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 - 87.50%* Property development

ERFARRA N TR 100/ 7T and trading
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56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(cont'd)

Name of subsidiary

WELRERE

Everbright Pacific Ltd.

Evergo China
Holdings Limited

Evergo Holdings
Company Limited
EXSEERRAF

Fair City Limited
RUERAR

Fair Eagle Finance
Credit Limited
REGRBBAF

Fair Eagle Futures
Company Limited
REHNEERAF

Fair Eagle Securities
Company Limited
REEHBRAF

Fancy Mark Limited
(Business name: Fancy
Mark Capital Limited)
(¥4« Fancy Mark
Capital Limited )

First Aim Limited

Place of
incorporation/
operation
M
R

British Virgin Islands

Bermuda/Hong Kong
BRE/BE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

BRERREE/
BB

British Virgin Islands

Class of share/
registered
capital held
RS,/
& AR

Ordinary
R

Ordinary

Ordinary

Rl

Ordinary

Rl

Ordinary

Rl

Ordinary

Rl

Ordinary
R

Ordinary

Rl

Ordinary
Rk

Fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
BRRE/
HEMEX

US$1
E

HK$100,775,869.10
100,775,869.107% 7T

HK$1,000

1,000/ 70

HK$2
2B

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000/8 7©

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000/ 7T

HK$228,000,000
228,000,000/8 7T

US$1

IE

US$1
IE

56. = BB A A

Proportion of
nominal value

of paid-up capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
ERRFAEHERE,
AZMEXAEEZED L
Directly
E# &

Indirectly

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

5 (&)

Principal activities

TREHR

Securities investment

EERE

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Property development
and trading
NWEERREE

Securities margin
financing

HEERECHE

Brokering and dealing in
futures contracts
HERNERLRE

Provision of brokerage

RELLERE

Securities investment

EERE

Property investment

NERE
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56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 56. TEWE ARG (&)

(cont'd)

Proportion of

Fully paid nominal value
Place of Class of share/ share capital/ of paid-up capital/
incorporation/ registered registered registered capital
operation capital held capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary AR FiiEmRe BRRE/ ARARABEHEZRES Principal activities
WEAREHE gEm HEMERER &R AMEAEBEZBDL TEXEH
Directly Indirectly
=§:3 %
G-Prop (Holdings) Bermuda/ Ordinary ~ HK$20,282,550.08 - 50.20% Investment holding
Limited? Hong Kong L@ 20,282,550.087 T REZEKR
cECEAERAF® BRE/
BB
Global Stage Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 - 100% Securities investment
AREARES TR 17T HHRE
Global Young British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 = 100% Property investment
Holdings Ltd. HBREBRHE &Rk 1%7T MERE
Grand Silver Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 - 70.01% Property development
(Business name: Grand  Hong Kong TR IE MEER
Silver Capital Limited) ~ EB#B RS/
(X747 Grand B
Silver Capital Limited )
Grandhall Secretarial Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% Secretarial services
Services Limited BB Rl 10,000/ 7T e
HEWERBARAR
Great Empire British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 - 100% Investment holding
International Ltd. EERERRES EBR 17T REZER
Great Will Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 - 100% Property investment
HBERRHE &R (E MERE
Groupluck Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Money lending
Company Limited B L@k 278 TT &
High Victory Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary uss$1 = 100% Investment holding
BBERAR HBERRHE &R (E REER



184 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED EABX£ & E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= 4 B & 3R 3k MY 5
For the year ended 3 1st December; 2008 BE_FENFLT _H=1—HIFE

15 (&)

56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 56. T ZEM B A Bl&F

(cont'd)

Proportion of

Fully paid nominal value
Place of Class of share/ share capital/ of paid-up capital/
incorporation/ registered registered registered capital
operation capital held capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary ) A FERe/ BRRE,/ ARARAABHEZRES Principal activities
WELRERE R & A Rl HEMEA HMEAEEZED L TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# i &
Hillsborough British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 - 100% Property investment
Holdings Limited Hong Kong LR E MERE
REERRES/
B
Luckpoint Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Investment holding
Investment Limited BE Rk 28T REER
ERRERBAF
Lucky Guide Hong Kong Ordinary HK$6 - 51% Property investment
International Limited BE Rl 678 7T MERE
BEHERER A
Lucky Well British Virgin Islands Ordinary us$1 - 100% Securities investment
Investments Limited EBERRES Rk E febati g
Mass Rise Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
EABRAA Hong Kong L@k 1% BEER
(Business name: HE#BREE/
EABEAERAR) e
(B2
EABEAERAR)
Million Point Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 = 100% Investment holding
EBERRES gL E REER
Modern City Hong Kong Ordinary HK$4 - 75% Property investment
Investment Limited £ LR 45T ME®RE
HHEREARAA
Moon Ocean Ltd. British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$7,001 - 70.01% Property development
RBHBAREE BBk 7001 7T MEER
Non-voting deferred US$2,999
BRRERTR 2,999% T
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56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 56. TEWE ARG (&)

(cont'd)

Proportion of

Fully paid nominal value
Place of Class of share/ share capital/ of paid-up capital/
incorporation/ registered registered registered capital
operation capital held capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary AR FirRe,/ BrRRE/ AAFFEHERES Principal activities
WEARERE R & A KR HEMEAR HMEAEEZE DL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
EE %
Moregift Investments Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% Property investment
Limited e LR 10,0005 7T MERE
Oriental Ford Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Money lending
Finance Limited B R 2B &
BEMBERAT
Oriental Kingdom British Virgin Islands Ordinary Uss1 = 100% Securities investment
Limited HBEUEBREE Rk 1%7T BHRE
Paul Y. (New Tunnel) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Investment holding
Limited e LRk 28T REER
RE (FRE) BRAR
Paul Y. Holdings Cayman Islands/ Ordinary ~ HK$70,715,005.70 100% - Investment holding
Company Limited Hong Kong L@l 70,715,005.7078 T REER
HewHs,/
EB
Perfect World Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 = 100% Estate management
Company Limited BB =R 10,0007 7T MEERE
BENEERERAR
Pinecrest International British Virgin Islands Ordinary Uss$1 = 100% Investment holding
Limited HBEEBREHE =R 1%7T REZER
Pioneer Time British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 - 100% Property investment
Investment Limited Hong Kong LR EZ MERE
KBEBRES/

&R
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56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 56. T BB A RIFFIE (8)

(cont'd)

Proportion of

Fully paid nominal value

Place of Class of share/ share capital/ of paid-up capital/

incorporation/ registered registered registered capital

operation capital held capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary ) A FERe/ BRRE,/ ARARAABHEZRES Principal activities
WELRERE R & A Rl HEMEA HMEAEEZED L TEXH

Directly Indirectly

E# i &
Rich Honour Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Investment holding
LRERAR £ BBk 28T REER
Silver Step Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property development
REFBRRA BE Rk 28T and trading
NEERRKEE
Silvercord Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$14,600 - 100% Property investment
REARDA BB LRK 14,6007 7T NERE
Sky Rainbow Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100% Securities investment
RBHRAREE L E BHRE
Smart Ocean Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 = 100% Investment holding
HEEBRAHE Rk (E REER
Speed Win Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property development
AEFRAR 5 TR 28T and trading
WEERKEE
Stable Castle Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100% Property investment
ZREBRRF 5 TR 157T NERE
Sun Power British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 - 100% Securities investment
Investments Ltd. Hong Kong Rk EV BHKRE

ERERRER/

&
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56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 56. TEWE ARG (&)

(cont'd)

Proportion of

Fully paid nominal value

Place of Class of share/ share capital/ of paid-up capital/

incorporation/ registered registered registered capital

operation capital held capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary AR FirRe,/ BrRRE/ AAFFEHERES Principal activities
WEARERE R & A KR HEMEAR HMEAEEZE DL TEXH

Directly Indirectly

HE %

Sunny Ocean Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 - 100% Property investment
(Business name: Hong Kong LR IE MERE
Sunny Ocean EBRBRES/

Investments Limited) Bk
(X2
Sunny Ocean
Investments Limited )
Sunny Smart Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 - 100% Securities investment
RREARES TR IE EFRE

Super Full Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100% Securities investment
Investments Limited B R 18T BHRE

BMREFRAA

The House of Kwong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 = 100% Cosmetics distribution
Sang Hong Limited B ERR 500,000/ 7T and trading

BEZRRRA ftmaHRE S

Topwood Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary us$1 - 100% Securities investment

HBEBREHE R 1E7T BHHRE

View Success Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 61.96% Property investment
Investments Limited £ EBR 28T and trading

RTREBRAR MEREREE

Viewide Properties British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 - 100% Property investment
Limited Hong Kong LR EZ MERE

RBEARES/

&R
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For the year ended 3 st December, 2008 BE_FENFLT_H=1—HIFE
56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES ~ 56. = ZHI B A RIS (&)
(cont'd)
Proportion of
Fully paid nominal value
Place of Class of share/ share capital/ of paid-up capital/
incorporation/ registered registered registered capital
operation capital held capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary MR Fis e,/ BRBRE/ ARAFARBHZRE Principal activities
WEAREHE R & A &Rl M EAR AMEFEEZED L TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# &
EXaRE () PRC Registered US$299,600,000 - 100% Property development
ARAT Gy HfBEA  299,600,000% T NEER
Evergo Real Estate (wholly foreign-
(chengdu) Company owned enterprise)
Limited (O EBERE)
BxaBEmE(LE) PRC Registered US$10,500,000 - 100% Property investment
ARAT HE &R 10,500,000% 7C NERE
(Evergo Real Estate (wholly foreign-
(Shanghai) Company owned enterprise)
Limited) (I EBERE)
BEXREE (KF) PRC Registered US$449,400,000 = 100% Property development
BRAF HE HfBEAR  449,400,000% T NEER
(Evergo Enterprises (wholly foreign-
(Chengdu) Company owned enterprise)
Limited) (I EBERE)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at the end of R AR R F T2 AR I P - I A B /BB 1 B
the year or at any time during the year. BREMEBHES-

# Listed company in Hong Kong # BB ETMAA
& 75% owned by the Group and 25% owned by Power Jade Limited & N £ B 5 A 75% K Power Jade Limited$§ A25%
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57. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of
all associates would be of excessive length and therefore the following list

contains only the associates as at 31st December, 2008 which principally

affected the results or assets of the Group.

Name of associate

BeNTan

Best Profit Limited
FEARAA

Direct Win

Development Limited

BRERARAF

Earn Elite

Development Limited

BAREARAA

Ever Sure
Investments Limited

KRR EERAF

Finedale Industries Limited

EHREXERAA

Healthy Point Limited
BHERRNE

Power Jade Limited

(Business name:

Power Jade Capital Limited)

(kBaHE:

Power Jade Capital Limited )

Place of
incorporation/
operation
EMAR,
T B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
EE

Hong Kong
EE

Hong Kong
EE

Hong Kong
EE

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

KEEBRES/
EH

Class of share/
registered
capital held
FERH,/
& E R

Ordinary
Rl

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

TRk

Non-voting preferred
ERZEELR

Ordinary

57. &

ExeR

oh P44 AKX N\
=i = N

5t

RIIE2MBERRENESRIER

==
=!

RITE -8t TRABBER-"FENF+=-A
St HUEAEEZXEREEREEVEY

fal MK\
=

Fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
BeRE/
&R

HK$1
18T

HK$900
9007 7T

HK$2
28T

HK$2
28T

HK$9,999
9,999 7T

HK$2
28T
HK$1
AT

US$20
20ETT

AR

Percentage

of equity
attributable
indirectly

to the Group
rEEREEA
REBD

25%

33.33%

50%

50%

33.33%

50%

50%

Principal activities

TREHR

Property development

MEER

Property development
and trading
MEERREE

Property investment

ES

Property development
and trading
MEERREE

Property investment

UES

Property investment

MEBRE

Investment holding

REEK
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57. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

(cont'd)

Name of associate
BENREE

Strongplus Limited

The Kwong Sang Hong

International Limited

Union Empire Limited

BEERAF

ERRBHEFRAA
Chongging Champion
Globe Company Limited

EREVRHERRAR
Chongging Champion
King Company Limited

ERREFRMERRAA
Chongqing Sino Land
Company Limited

RAEMARERRAR
Oriental Arts
Building Co. Ltd.

Place of
incorporation/
operation
AR

British Virgin Islands
AREARES

Bermuda
BRE

Hong Kong
Bk

PRC

i

(wholly foreign-
owned enterprise)

(OMEBELE)

PRC

iF

(wholly foreign-
owned enterprise)

(MEBELE)

PRC

iF

(wholly foreign-
owned enterprise)

(hEBELE)

PRC
F
(Sino-foreign equity
joint venture enterprise)

(FHRELELEF)

Class of share/
registered
capital held
FiR®,/
M EARER

Ordinary

Ordinary
&R

Ordinary

Registered
A E A

Registered
A E A

Registered
A E A

Registered
Rl

57. =&

Fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
BrRE/

A EA

Usg2
2ETT

HK$100,000
100,000/ 7T

HK$1
17T

HK$1,150,000,000
1,150,000,0007 7T

HK$650,000,000
650,000,000/ 7T

HK$1,480,000,000
1,480,000,000/8 7T

S$24,920,000
24,920,000 7T

55 ik A%\
== Hip

==00A\

Percentage

of equity
attributable
indirectly

to the Group
AEBEBEENS
REBS

50%

50%

25%

25%

25%

25%

50%

V)
1]

iy

Il

5 (&)

Principal activities

FREK

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Property development

MEER

Property development

NEER

Property development

NEER

Property development

NEER

Property investment
and hotel operation

NERERBERE
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58. BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION OF THE 58. AR RINEHE B ZEF

COMPANY
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Investments in subsidiaries WERARKE 5,141,416 5,140,342
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE W Bf /B A R 3K IR 2,733,412 3,424,825
Other current assets HtREEE 5,782,312 2,440,685
Amounts due to subsidiaries RE M E R RFKIE (8,625,060) (4,168,183)
Other current liabilities Hitvms) & & (329) (603)
Financial guarantee liabilities MBS EREE (4,657) (5,635)
Net assets BEFE 5,027,094 6,831,431
Share capital (Note 47) B (Bt =347) 207,775 230,044
Reserves 55 4,819,319 6,601,387
Total equity & 7 e 25 48 BH 5,027,094 6,831,431
(@) The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new (a) BECHMASCEMZHERARAE
interpretations which are effective for the Company's financial —EE N\F-—A—BRBZVMBEEL
year beginning on 1st January, 2008. The application of the MAEFT RETZE - RIS RITZREYL
amendments and new interpretations had no material effect on BHAGTHBNBESTHMEEER
how the results and financial position for the current or prior MBRAZ mER WA NEREME
accounting periods have been prepared and presented. A Eo
The Company has undertaken to provide necessary financial RABEABREAFABER LA F
resources to support the future operations of the subsidiaries. The MBARIZARKEE BEFERA W
Directors are of the opinion that the subsidiaries are financially BRARIEERHUBERBITEE-
resourceful in settling obligations.
(b) The carrying amount of the investments in subsidiaries is reduced (b) MBARKAEARHEBERLIZEETKRES

to their recoverable amounts which are determined by reference to
the estimation of future cash flows expected to be generated from

the respective subsidiaries.

B OARAREEE2ERARE W
BRARZMEFAARAKAESREETE °
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58. BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (cont'd)

(c) The amounts due from (to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of the
Directors, the fair values of the amounts due from (to) subsidiaries
at 31st December, 2008 approximate their corresponding carrying

amounts.

(d) Profit of the Company for 2008 amounted to approximately
HK$1,258,000,000 (2007: loss of HK$697,000,000).

59. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 14th January, 2009, a share award scheme (the “Scheme") was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting. The Scheme is to recognise and reward certain employees
for their contributions to the Group and to give long-term incentives for
retaining them for the continued operations and development of the
Group. For further details, please refer to the Company's circular dated
23rd December, 2008.

60. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the

current year's presentation.

61. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 16th March, 2009.

58. ARRIRNBEHEBAZER
(&)

0 EE(Ra)MBRAAREREER %
ERITEBEEERR - EFGAR ER
(RE)WMBRBARER -_ZZNF+ -
A=Z+t—BZRVEREEABREER
=,

d X2RR-_ZEZENFZ2EMNH A
1,258,000,0008 Tt (ZEZE F : i 1E

697,000,000 7T )

o

5. £ E HEE1\

RZZZNF—HATEAE AARBBIRRER
KRR S LR BB ([5%518]) - %
AEEERAAKREIEFHERZETRESRT
BERDR WIERBRSI AN AEE  HER
AEBz2ERERME N2 R BER - KT
fRE—BFE BEHARRBHA-ZTEN
FT_AZT=HZBK-

60. L B & F

ETHBRBFELEN IR UNGRFEZ
2575

61. FAE T 4R & B 5k

SERZZEENAF=A+NBHERKRE
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EFEMBHRE

Five-Year Financial Summary

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five ~— AKERERFZEE EEHBBERZLT

years is as follows:

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TAT THET
Results ES
Turnover = 3 1,264,925 4,478,075 4,763,789 2,274,988 5,257,357
(Note 1)
(BrzEn)
(Loss) profit for the year from REEREFHELR
continuing operations %2 (BE) & (1,454,258) 8,332,868 7,557,087 6,454,667 1,658,412
Loss for the year from AEEREBLIL
discontinued operation mEEKZEE (1,950) - - - -
(Loss) profit for the year AEE () &H (1,456,208) 8,332,868 7,557,087 6,454,667 1,658,412
Attributable to: el
Equity holders of the parent BRERAHE 2
BEA (1,494,376) 8,195,857 7477345 6,154,572 1,619,085
Minority interests LERRER 38,168 137011 79,742 300,095 39,327
(1,456,208) 8,332,868 7,557,087 6,454,667 1,658,412
Basic (loss) earnings per share BREAR (B1E) &7
(HK$) (Note 2) (B7) (MfE2) (0.67) 3.60 3.39 3.00 078
Final and interim dividends BRABETEHRE
per share (HK cents) (F&4L) 145 36 30 21 19.5
Special dividend per share B RIRS (L)
(HK cents) 99.0 - - - -
Notes: Mt 5
1. During the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Group changed its 1. RZIZEZENF+ZA=+—BLFE F&£EH
presentation in the sale of held-for-trading investments to a net basis. BHEREEEREZERT A ERRIFE
Accordingly, the figure for year 2007 has been adjusted to reflect the change BEEER-Al FHR_ZZLFEZHFTUR
as described in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements. BRVEH 2 AR NAR & M IS SR M 57 -

For the year ended 31st December

BE+t-A=t+-BLEE

2. BREA(BR)RINRBARKRAEREE
AR (BR)ENENEEFEERTRNZ
R HEE -

2. The calculation of basic (loss) earnings per share is based on the (loss) profit
attributable to equity holders of the parent and on the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the relevant years.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

LIFEMBERE

Assets and liabilities

Total assets

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent
Minority interests

Net asset value per share to
equity holders of the parent
(HKS)

Number of shares issued

BERER

BRARRAEERFAA
RiERARS

EYNCIEN: 22PN
BREERE
(A1)

BEEITRNER

At 31st December
R+=ZA=+-H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET THT THL TAEL
51,877,539 66,714,307 57,634,327 40,441,292 26,004,971
(16,574,890)  (19,048774)  (21,671,693)  (16738595)  (9,882,692)
35,302,649 47,665,533 35,962,634 23,702,697 16,122,279
34,650,593 47,161,638 35,532,698 23,301,520 16,211,794
652,056 503,895 429,936 401,177 (89,515)
35,302,649 47,665,533 35,962,634 23,702,697 16,122,279
16.68 20.50 15.72 11.14 7.99
2,077,750,079 2,300,443,378 2,259,809,483  2,091,506,780 2,030,214,000
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ETEWRHR

The following table sets forth the Group’s major properties as at 31st

December, 2008:

ZEBEYE:

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG

BFEME

Properties held for investment

Location

1 26

Windsor House
311 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

(including 158 car parking spaces)

EERE
BBEEETITE3115%
(B 158{AEN )

Harcourt House

(excluding 7th, 8th, 9th, 22nd,
23rd, 25th, 26th and 27th floors,
rooms 1004 and 1805)

39 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

ERAE

BB B S TITE39%R
(7-8:9:22-23-25+
26[%27# + 1004 K% 1805 KR M)

Excluding all car parking spaces area

TRERAEMZHE

Approx. gross
floor area

(square feet)

Lot number BAEAEBRNE
1th B 4R 5% (EAR)
The Remaining Portions of 817962

Inland Lot Nos. 7717 and 7718
Section A of

Inland Lot No. 781 and
Sections A and C of

Inland Lot No. 782

A B 7717 R 7718%;
NP

PHLER 7815RARR &

P B 78257 AR CEX

Certain parts or shares of and 272,478*
in Inland Lot No. 8573

P 857355 2

ETHAEME

Usage
i}

Commercial

GRS

Commercial

GRS

Category of
the lease
term

HEBER

Long
=3t

Long
=4

TREJIAEBR _ZZNF+_HA=+—H

Group’s
interest
P4 R &2

100%

100%
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEYFRMR

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (cont'd)
BEME (B)

Properties held for investment (cont’d)
FIEREYF ()

Location

i B

MassMutual Tower

38 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(including 55 car parking

spaces on lower basement)

*HEENE
BB E LTI E38H
(BEMETEZ
55EE L)

Excluding all car parking spaces area

TEEMEEZEE

Tung Ying Building*

No. 100 Nathan Road and
nos. 1-19A Granville Road
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

REAE*
BEBENELDE

FZE 1005 &

INERLE E1-19A%

Under redevelopment

BEEH

Lot number

Certain parts or shares of
and in Inland Lot Nos. 3287
and 6936

A ;3287 269365 2
ETHAHME

The Remaining Portion
of Kowloon Inland Lot
No. 6022

NBEAH ER60225%
SRTESD

Approx. gross
floor area
(square feet)
BEEIEBAY
(FFR)

345,415*

403,715
(upon completion

of redevelopment)
(BExXKER)

Category of

the lease

Usage term

itk R
Commercial Long
[GES =31
Commercial Medium
[GES Fh A

Group’s
interest
it

100%

100%
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Schedule of Principal Properties FEYRH R

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (cont'd)
BEME (B)

Properties held for investment (cont’d)

FEREYX (&)
Approx. gross
floor area Category of Group’s
(square feet) the lease interest
Location Lot number BEEIEBEIY Usage term £H
i 2 1 ER 4R 5% (FAR) Jick - HAER P4t &
5. Silvercord Certain parts or shares of 256,133 Commercial Long 100%
Shops, restaurants and and in Kowloon Inland Lot mE R H
food court on basement No. 10656
shops on lower ground floor FLEE R ER 106565 2
ground floor ETHBHHMHTE

(excluding shop no. 38)

1st floor

(excluding shop no. 39)

2nd floor

(excluding shop no. 41)

the whole 3rd floor and

car parking spaces nos. 1, 2, 6,
7,8,9, 21,24, 25, 26, 29,

30, 34 and 35 on basement
No. 30 Canton Road
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

ESip Ll
BBENERDEEREI0N
WEEE EERERES
1 TME B

T (38R kRSN

112 (3958 A EBBK )

218 (415EEHRR M)
ERE 2 EHRIE 2 6
7:829+2124+25-26+29"
30 343555 B
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEYFRMR

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (cont'd)
BEME (B)

Properties held for investment (cont’d)

HFEREY X (&)

Location Lot number

i 2 1 ER 4R 5%

6.  Causeway Place Certain parts or shares of

Shops nos. M1, M2, M3, N1, N2, and in Inland Lot No. 7742

0 and P on ground floor MR 774255 2
shops nos. N2, O and P on ETHBAHNE

mezzanine floor

the whole of 1st and 2nd floors
and their respective portions
of exterior walls, together with flats
CLJKLNOPAQ

(each including a flat roof)
and H on 3rd floor

Hong Kong Mansion

nos. 1-7 Paterson Street and
nos. 2-10 Great George Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
8T

BRMEE

BREAE-75% R

MR E2-105%

EERE

M M2 M3 ~NT N2 »
O KPS 7

EIEN2 - OR P 48
1BRE2E

REAZ#D ZIMEER

ZEC I ) K L*N*0:P-Q
(BREBBEU2TA) RHEM

Approx. gross

floor area Category of
(square feet) the lease
BEEIEBAY Usage term
(FFR) Jick =3 HAER
48,897 Residential/ Long
Commercial K

TE/H#

Group’s
interest
S
it

100%
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ETEWRHR

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (cont'd)

BEMxE (8)

Properties held for investment (cont’d)

HEREY R (F)

Location

it 2

7. Excelsior Plaza
Shop nos. 1 to 3 and
6 to 12 on ground floor and
unit nos. 6 to 11 on 1st floor of
Yee On Building and
Shop nos. 21, 23 and 24 on
ground floor of Chee On Building
together with the external walls
on ground floor, 1st floor and
2nd floor and the main roof of
Yee On Building
Unit G on 2nd floor
shop no. 32 (part) on 2nd floor
and naming right on ground floor,
1st floor and 2nd floor of
Yee On Building
Shop no. 31 on Tst floor
shop no. 32 (part) on ground floor
1st floor and 2nd floor
external walls and
naming right on ground floor,
1st floor and 2nd floor
and the main roof of
Chee On Building
Shop no. 32 (part) on 2nd floor
external walls and
naming right on ground floor,
1st floor and 2nd floor of
Annex Land Building
24-26 East Point Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
RRES
BHBMBER [£:1824-269
teR KB T 1235 mH Rk
6% 1257 48
RIB6EREN K
BERAREM T2 23R245 5
ERETREMT 118 KB IME
KEEXRA
R ANE2ECEN
Rog325 s (#5)
PARG T ~ 118 218 2 i
BERREVRIREM
325 EE (D)
118 K218 Z HME R
R 1B R2ME 2 BRI R
FEXA
K Annex Land Building
28325 HE (850)
T 18 R218 2 IME R i £ 4

Lot number

i B 4R 5

Certain parts or shares

of and in

Sub-section 1 of Section G of
Marine Lot No. 52

and the Extension thereto and
Section A of Sub-section 1 of
Section A of Marine Lot No. 52
and the Extension thereto
BEHES25RCER 1D B R
HIEREH AR

B ERS25RAR 1 D BRARR K&
HERH D 2ETHBAENE

Certain parts or shares

of and in

Section B of Sub-section 1 of
Section A of Marine Lot No. 52
and the Extension thereto and
Sub-section 3 of Section G of
Marine Lot No. 52

and the Extension thereto

the Remaining Portion of
Inland Lot No. 469

and the Remaining Portion of
Section A of Inland Lot No. 470
B B 525RAR 1 5 BXBER
REERE 5

82 B525R GE 3 D Y
RELERE D

M ER4695% 84 T3 2 &

A ER4T0SRAB 82 T 28D 2
ETBokmE

Certain parts or shares

of and in

Sub-section 2 of Section G of
Marine Lot No. 52

and the Extension thereto
BE 525G B
REZEESDH 2
ETHosknE

Approx. gross
floor area
(square feet)
BEEEBRAH
(EFR)

52,413

Usage
Jiikes

Commercial
[EES

Category of
the lease
term

HHER

Long
=

Group’s
interest
2
Frit s

100%
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FEYFRMR

Schedule of Principal Properties

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (cont'd)
BEME (B)

Properties held for investment (cont’d)
FIEREYF ()
Approx. gross
floor area Category of Group’s
(square feet) the lease interest

BEEIEBAY Usage term £E
(FER) R# HEER Frik

Location Lot number

8. Wanchai Computer Centre Certain parts or shares of 36,716
and in Inland Lot No. 8562 [EES R H#
A FR85625% 2
AETHAHNE

Commercial Long 100%
Shops nos. 2 and 3

on ground floor

Southorn Centre

150 Hennessy Road and the
commercial accommodation
on Tst and 2nd floors
Southorn Centre

130 Hennessy Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

B ERE
EREFHEFE505
B L

#2335
REEFHEI305

EEHR L

1B R2EZEMH

9. Sun Fair Mansions
12 Shiu Fai Terrace
Mid-Levels East

Section M of 39,700 Residential Long 100%
Inland Lot No. 2302 F=x R H#

and the Extension thereto

Hong Kong and Section X of
HEXE Inland Lot No. 2302
ERRFL and the Extension thereto
EEE12% 3 B 23025 MEX
REERHBHD

Ko R E% 230255 XEX M
HERZSH
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ETEWRHR

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (cont'd)

BeWE (&)

Properties held for investment (cont’d)

HEREY X (H)

Location

i

10.  Chic Castle
Various shops on
1st, 2nd and 3rd floors
President Commercial Centre
602-608 Nathan Road

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Chich &
B8 N8 F 2E602-6085%
BEEEAE

112 2B RIBE T

11. Tuen Mun Centre
Cinema portion on
ground floor, 1st to 3rd floors
flat roof on 4th floor
portion of external walls of cinema
shops nos. 14 and 16
on ground floor
Nos. 2-8 Wo Ping Path
Nos. 7-35 Yan Ching Street
Tuen Mun, New Territories
Hong Kong
R AL
BB A
MFE2-85%
CBE7-355%
wMh - 1BEIRERED
48T & HH B IME R
T 14R 165 E M

& Excluding flat roof area on 4th floor

TREMBTEZEE

Lot number

i B A 5%

Certain parts or shares of

and in the Remaining Portions
of Kowloon Inland Lot

Nos. 7061, 7062 and 7063
NEAMERT061 - 7062 %
70635788 N EE ) 2

AT BHSHE

Certain parts or shares of
and in Castle Peak Town
Lot No. 57

F LT ER575% 2
AT BHKHEE

Approx. gross
floor area
(square feet)
BEEIEBEIY
(FFR)

4,998

20,048*

Category of

the lease

Usage term

A& HEER
Commercial Medium
[EES i
Commercial Medium
[EES i

Group’s
interest
ik 22

75%

50%
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEYFRMR

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (cont'd)
BEME (&)

Properties held for investment (cont’d)

HFEREY X (&)

Location Lot number

i 2 i R AR 5

12.  Gemstar Tower Certain parts or shares of
Unit C (including the and in Hung Hom
storeroom thereof) on Inland Lot No. 545
13th floor and the roof AT A ER5A55% 2
together with ATBIHHE

50 car parking spaces

on 1st to 3rd floors

No. 23 Man Lok Street
Hung Hom, Kowloon

Hong Kong

BEHLH

BB NELHRLE235
13ECEM (BHEERYE)
RRBER

11 2318 50fHE AL

Excluding area of the roof and all car parking spaces

TEERE RAEEMZEE

Various Portions of Certain parts or shares of

No. 1 Hung To Road and in Kwun Tong
Kwun Tong, Kowloon Inland Lot No. 415
Hong Kong B NIRA155 2

(Comprising 352 workshop units ATHARMNE
and 77 car parking spaces)

BEENEBE

BEEIRETEN

(BfE352[EIT5EMR

T7{E=EAL)

Excluding area of the roof and all car parking spaces

TEERERAEEMZEE

Approx. gross
floor area
(square feet)
BEEIEBAY
(FFR)

4,850%

532,010*

Industrial

Tx

Category of
the lease
term

HHER

Medium

8

Medium

B8

Group’s
interest
it

61.96%

33.33%
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ETEWRHR

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (cont'd)

BeWE (&)

Properties held for sale

FEHEYE

Location Lot number

1th B 1th B 4R 5%

1. York Place Marine Lot No. 296

No. 22 Johnston Road 8% 1R 2965
Wanchai, Hong Kong

York Place

BBEH

HEHE 22 %

Certain units have been sold after 31st December, 2008
ETEMNER-_ZEZNF+-_A=+—HEEL

Miami Crescent
No. 328 Fan Kam Road

Certain parts or shares of and
in Lot No. 1861 in D.D.100

Ying Pun, Sheung Shui XLEH17100%

New Territories, Hong Kong H1EX 186157 2

ERERE ETHAHMNE

BENR LKERE

MR RER328%

Indihome Certain parts or shares of and

No. 138 Yeung Uk Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

in the Remaining Portion of

Tsuen Wan Town

Hong Kong Lot No. 406
RERE LB R406%:
BEEMALEE BTEDZ
BEE138% ETHOHNE

Certain units have been sold after 31st December, 2008
ETEMER=ZZZENFF+_A=+T—HEED

Excluding all car parking spaces area

TREREEMZEE

Approx. gross

floor area Group's
(square feet) interest
BREERAR Usage £E
(FFR) Rg it &
84,806* Residential/ 100%
Commercial
TE/H¥#
6,798 Residential 50%
F=x
50,933** Serviced 50%
apartments/
Commercial
R34
T/ H#
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEYFRMR

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (cont'd)
BEME (B)

Properties held for sale (cont’d)

HFELHEYX (&)

Location Lot number

i 2 i B 4R 5%

4. Gemstar Tower Certain parts or shares of
Units E and F* on 16th floor and in Hung Hom
unit C on 17th floor and Inland Lot No. 545
units A and C on 18th floor A3 54555 2
No. 23 Man Lok Street ETHBAHMNE
Hung Hom, Kowloon
Hong Kong
BAHL
AR NEAH
REE235%
161 ER FFE (L
17 CEAL R
1818 AR CEf

&3 Unit F on 16th floor has been sold after 31st December, 2008
6B FENER-_TT/N\F+_A=+—HEEL

5. Parc Palais, King's Park Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11118

Junction of Princess Margaret Road LB ER 111185
and Wylie Road

Kowloon, Hong Kong

R HEEE

BEBENE

ATBEREBERR

Approx. gross
floor area
(square feet)
BEEIEBIY
(FFR)

26,278*

16,869

Usage
A%

Godown

Residential
FE

Group’s
interest
%5
Pk 2R

61.96%

10%
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Schedule of Principal Properties FEYRH R

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (cont'd)

BEME (&)
Properties under development held for sale
BIEFHEZZERTYF
Estimated
Approx. gross
Estimated site area floor area Group's
Stage of completion  (square feet) (square feet) interest
Location Lot number completion date WEERHH GHAREER Usage &8
% &% THRER st TR A (£5R) (FAR) BE  FbER
1. 55 Conduit Road Remaining Portion of Site formation 2012 36,000 87800 Residential 70%
Hong Kong Section A of Inland work completed ~ —E—=fF i
&b Lot No. 2138 WETRIR
T 18555 Sub-section 1 of B
Section A of Inland
Lot No. 2138 and
Inland Lot No. 2612
RBR2138FARA T 55
MHER21385RARR 1 2 R ]k
R ER26123%
2. Hoi Ting Road and Kowloon Inland Superstructure End of 2010 146,132 1,095,980 Residential/ 25%
junction of Lot Nos. 11167 work in progress  ZF—FF Commercial
Hoi Wang Road and  and 11168 FETR R /A%
Hoi Ting Road ERR ETH
West Kowloon 11167%11168%
Reclamation Area
Kowloon, Hong Kong
BEANE
BAEEER
BEER
BRER
BEERR
3. Junction of Kowloon Inland Excavation 2011 86,758 650,600 Residential/ 15%
Hoi Wang Road, Lot No. 11073 work in progress  ZF——%F Commercial
Yan Cheung Road and /L5 At BREIR T/ H%
Yau Cheung Road 11073%: ETH

West Kowloon
Reclamation Area
Kowloon, Hong Kong
AR
BAEEEE
ALE

RAER
RAERR
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEYFRMR

PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA
FEAREY X

Properties held for investment

FFEREYF
Approx. gross
floor area
(square feet)
Location HEIHBENE
1 B (EFR)
1. Main Tower and Executive Tower 636,681

of Hilton Beijing

1 Dongfang Road

North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
TRAREEETRRITHRE
IR MG R

RZIRIHE

RITB1%

2. Oriental Place 103,685
9 East Dongfang Road
North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
RAEBEBRAE
IR G R
R=ERIK
R R

3. Lowu Commercial Plaza 29,416
79 retail shops on 1st floor
Jianshe Road, Luohu District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
BB ES
BERE RN
PR etdrs
1B7ETERH

4. Evergo Tower 263,708
(excluding unit no. 3 on 9th floor and
unit no. 7 on 10th floor)

1325 Central Huaihai Road and
1 Baoging Road, Xuhui District
Shanghai

EEXRAE

FETRER

B BR 13255 R

BERI%
(TEEMEIZERI0ETE)

Usage
Jick

Hotel/
Commercial

BIE/ B

Commercial

GRS

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

Category of
the lease
term

A ER

Medium

o

Medium

HE

Medium

o

Medium

]

Group's
interest
£HF
P4 R 22

50%

50%

100%

100%
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Schedule of Principal Properties FEYRH R

PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA (cont'd)
FEAEYE ()

Properties under development

Il

A

REFYF
Estimated
Approx. gross
Estimated site area floor area Group's
Stage of completion  (square feet) (square feet) interest
Name of project Location completion date WEERHH GHAREER Usage &8
RS 2 TR fhr 72 A A 8 (FAR) (FAR) BE  FiibER
1. Metropolis Height East of Yixue Lane Site formation Mid of 2012 194411 1,652,000 Residential and 100%
2B HEZE south of Hongbu Main Street  work in progress ~ ZF—ZF commercial
and north of Tangba Street B TEIR a2 FERER
Jinjiang District E1TH
Chengdu
Sichuan Province
MR BTRIE
EEENUR
A ERARE R
AL
2. Splendid City* Group 1,2, 6 Superstructure Phase I: 795,625* 3,743,000% Residential and 100%
EBER Langjia Village work of Phase | Mid of 2010 commercial
Group 1,2,3, 4,7 in progress F-8: EEREE
Yuejin Village F-82 —3-FF
Jinniu District FETE Frp
Chengdu TP
Sichuan Province
MR BTE4E
BHRM 264
BN 223478
< The project will be developed in two phases. Area states herein represents aggregate area of the whole project.
BEEOMBABR - LEEEREMEERR 2EEE-
3. Chinese Estates East of Sanguigian Street Site formation Mid of 2012 404,267 3,229,000 Residential and 100%
Plaza south of East Dagiang Street ~ work in progress ~ —F—Z—fF commercial
ZERS west of South Taisheng Road 1B FE T 72 Fm EERESE
and north of Tidu Street ETH
Qingyang District
Chengdu

Sichuan Province
mIERBTE*E
SHABNR

AiE R
AFEHUA R
REHRI
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEVFRMR

PROPERTY IN THE UNITED KINGDOM
REI R

Property held for investment
HEREY R

Location

it B

82 Eaton Square
Belgravia, London
SW1W, 9AP
United Kingdom

PROPERTY IN MACAU

R ASEIES

Property under development held for sale

HEHEZREAYFE

Location Lot number

b it R

1. Avenida Lot 1¢, Lot 2, Lot 3
Wai Long Lot 4 and Lot 5
Development* (Parcels 5a, 5b & c)
Taipa, Macau 10:2°3 4k
RP it 5(# %5 5bRc) B
RESR
BRER*

Approx. gross

floor area

(square feet)

HEEEENE
(FAR)
17,750
Estimated
Stage of completion
completion date
TH B it TR A S
Site formation Phase I:
work of Phase | 2012
commenced F—H:
F-Hz —F-—C
wRFETE
ERR

Category of
the lease
Usage term
A& ERE ]
Residential Long
T= R
Estimated
Approx. gross
site area floor area

(square feet) (square feet)
BEERAY GHAREER
(FAR) (FAR)

848,000* 5,786,242*
(excluding

car park area)

(TR

FESER)
2,088,197*

(car park area)

(FEHER)

The project will be developed in phases. Area states herein represents aggregate area of the whole project.

FHEDBHMBER HEEBEAREBRE ZEEE-

Usage
ik

Residential
FE

Group’s
interest
g
P4 R 22

100%

Group's
interest

%8
Frib s

70.01%
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Schedule of Properties Development Rights  #] ¥ % /& # 25 iff &

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG
ENEEIE S

Properties held for sale

FIEHEYF
Approx. gross
floor area Group's
(square feet) interest
Location Lot number HEEERAR Usage £H
it B 1 B 4R 5% (FFR) A& it &
1. MOD 595 Kowloon Inland 24,521%* Residential/ 100%
No. 595 Lot No. 11173 Commercial
Reclamation Street NEAHER T/ H%
Mongkok, Kowloon 1117358
Hong Kong
MOD 595
BBNERA
HR I H5955%
2 Certain units have been sold after 31st December, 2008

ETENER-_ZEENF+_A=+—HEKEH

u Excluding all car parking spaces area

TRERAEMZEE

Note: The property development rights were granted pursuant to development agreement with Urban Renewal Authority.

Miat: MEBREDREETEERRI LI ERBARD -

2. The Zenith Certain parts or 26,759* Residential/ 87.5%
(Phase 1) shares of and in Commercial (notes 1 &2
3 Wanchai Road & Sections A and B of Tx/HE on next page)
258 Queen’s Road East Inland Lot No. 8953 (TEZ
Wanchai, Hong Kong 7 B 8953 5% Pi5E1 R2)
1o 58 I AKRBERZ
(£—H) ETHYHMHE
BB
B EIR K
ERAER2585

w3 Certain units have been sold after 31st December, 2008

ETEMER-TENF+ A=+ BEEH

v Excluding all car parking spaces area

TRERAEMZEE
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Schedule of Properties Development Rights

MREBRERM R

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (cont'd)

BREME (&)
Property under development held for sale
HEHEZREAYFE
Estimated
Approx. gross
Estimated site area floor area Group's
Stage of completion  (square feet) (square feet) interest
Location Lot number completion date BWEEROH AHAREER Usage &HE
buf3 B RS THER fhEt T A & (FAR) (FAR) R# R $
1. The Zenith The Remaining Redevelopment End of 2013 15,775 159,700 Residential/ 87.5%
(Phase II) Portion of work in progress  —EF—=4 Commercial ~ (notes 1 & 2)
3 Wanchai Road & Inland Lot BRIR R ffz/@% (WEk2)
258 Queen's Road Fast No. 8953 TP
Wanchai, Hong Kong M ER
REL 89535
(£=8) #THH
BN
Eff B35 R
ERAER8
Notes:
B = -

It refers to the percentage of interest of property development rights in a consortium which engaged Urban Renewal Authority (“URA")

(the successor to Land Development Corporation) in the project.

BEETREZR ([TRRB]) (RIMERARZECTA) XA EZBE CHENEERENZESR

aN

e @

The 87.5% attributable interest of property development rights includes the indirect interest of 12.5% held through the Group's interest
in Power Jade Limited which has a 25% direct interest in the consortium.

FEML YIS RAER 2 875%Em BIEHEBAEER Power Jade Limited (55 :Z ¥ BE25%H ) FTH512.5% 2 M #x o

In this joint venture with URA, the consortium finances both the land costs and construction costs, and is entitled to claim for
reimbursements for land costs and construction costs so incurred together with the share of any development profits with URA in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the joint development agreement.
FHETREBAECAZEEEF ZMELALMKARBERARMES WHRKBELRERBHRIK
3B AR SRS SRR - DA R BT A R B ) (R MR B R s A
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Schedule of Properties Development Rights  #] ¥ % /& # 25 iff &

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (cont'd)
BEME (B)

Property under development

REFYF
Estimated
Approx. gross
Estimated site area floor area Group’s
Stage of completion  (square feet) (square feet) interest
Location Lot number completion date WEERHH AHACEER Usage &8
8 HRER THER fhat TR A H (FAR) (FAR) Rz K $
1. i-home Kowloon Inland Superstructure Early of 2009 13,228 112,462 Residential/ 100%
Larch Street and Lot No. 11182 work in progress  —ZZTNE Commercial
Bedford Road NERME FEIR E4) fx/m%
Tai Kok Tui 111825 ETH
Kowloon
Hong Kong
(including

4 motorcycle spaces and
25 car parking spaces
for residential,
commercial visitors)
i-home
EENEAAR
HIMERLEE
(BR4EZSEEENR
BT

EE HEHTAH)

Note: The property development rights were granted pursuant to development agreement with Urban Renewal Authority.

Miet: MEBRRBDRBATREZRIILZERBERL -
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Schedule of Property Contracted to be Acquired

B’ &8 T W s ¥ B R

PROPERTY IN MAINLAND CHINA

slEiPN 227/ ES

Estimated
Approx. gross
Estimated site area floor area Group's
Stage of completion  (square feet) (square feet) interest
Name of project Location completion date WEERHH AHAREER Usage £
BERER o 2 THRER fhEt T A & (FAR) (FAR) B# Frfh g
1. Huaxinjie Street No. 1 Zhongrin Section In design stage 2016 2,207,546 11,080,000 Residential and 25%
Development* and Qiaobei Village EHAER ZERE school
Chongging Huaxinjie Street RERER
BRM Jiangbei District
ENHHE Chongging
BRERS BEMILR
EXEEE
BIRR
R
* The land was acquired in public auction dated 30th July, 2007. The contract for grant of state-owned land use right was signed with

Chongging Land and Resource and Housing Administration Bureau on 2nd February, 2008.
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